
 
 

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council 
meeting. 

 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE 

Tuesday, August 2nd, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
800 HARRISON AVE, LEADVILLE, CO. 

(Held in-person and via Zoom) 
 
 

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83111814072?pwd=RHppaHJJWjFTakpXSDhF… 

Meeting ID: 831 1181 4072 

Passcode: 80461 

Dial by your location 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

6:00 p.m. 1. Call to order of Regular Meeting of City Council 
 2. Roll Call 
 3. Approval of Agenda 
 4. Housekeeping Matters 
 5. Public comments about items not on the agenda 
  Citizens wishing to speak to council on issues not on the agenda are requested 

to send a message in the chat section or raise your hand in the participants 
section of Zoom or in person. Staff will call on public in order. Comment is 
limited to three (3) minutes (not including council questions). Action, if 
required, will be assigned to city staff. For matters on the agenda public input 
will be heard prior to a vote being taken on the matter. 

6:20 p.m. 6. Approval of the minutes  
A. Approval of July 19, 2022 Minutes 

6:25 p.m. 7. Presentations and Discussions 
A. Leadville Lake County Economic Development Corporation Main Street- 

2nd Quarter Update 
B. City Administrator Report – Laurie Simonson 

6:45 p.m. 8. Resolutions and Ordinances 
A. Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting 

Chapters 15.04, 15.08, and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to 
Adopt by Reference the 2018 International Building Code, the 2018 
International Residential Code, the 2018 International Mechanical Code, the 
2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, the 
2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, 
and the 2018 International Fire Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; 
and Providing Penalties for Violations Thereof (Second Reading) 

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83111814072?pwd=RHppaHJJWjFTakpXSDhFd2FVSUJLdz09
https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83111814072?pwd=RHppaHJJWjFTakpXSDhFd2FVSUJLdz09


 
 

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council 
meeting. 

 

B. Ordinance No.8, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Approving a Third 
Amendment to the Railyard at Leadville Phase 1 Planned Unit 
Development (Second Reading) 

C. Resolution No. 34, Series 2022: A Resolution Approving an 
Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of Leadville and Lake 
County Concerning the Establishment of a Multijurisdictional Housing 
Authority 

D. Resolution No. 35, Series 2022: A Resolution Authorizing the City of 
Leadville to Enter into A Municipal Lease-Purchase Agreement with 
Community First National Bank for the Lease and Purchase of One Type 1 
Fire Apparatus for the Leadville-Lake County Fire Rescue 

8:45 p.m. 9. Public Meetings Planner  
 10. Mayor’s Report 
 11. Council Reports 
9:00 p.m. 12. Adjournment 

 



                         800 HARRISON AVE. 
LEADVILLE, CO 80461 

 
 

1 

Regular Meeting 07/19/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 08/02/22 

CITY OF LEADVILLE  
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  

 
Tuesday, July 19, 2022    6:00 P.M.    Council Chambers 
 

 
1. Call to order of regular council meeting at 6:03 p.m. in Council Chambers and via Zoom. 

 

2. Roll call:  

a. Present: 7- Mayor Labbe, CM Hill, CM Luna-Leal, CM Lauritzen, MPT Greene, CM Grant, 

and CM Forgensi. CM Greene appeared via Zoom and left at 8:00 pm. 

b. Absent: 0- None 

 

Staff Members Present: Laurie Simonson, Caitlin Kuczko, Dan Dailey, Hal Edwards, Mayda 

Silver, and Christiana McCormick 

 

3. Approval of the agenda:  CM Hill moved to approve the agenda, and CM Forgensi seconded. All 

present were in favor. 

a. Agenda Revisions: None 

 

4. Swearing in of New Council Member Shannon Grant: Municipal Judge Floyd swore in CM 

Shannon Grant. 

 

5. Housekeeping Matters:     CM Forgensi spoke about seeing the houses affected by flooding on Toledo 

Street. Discussion regarding culverts, ditch lines, and other methods of mitigating water flooding in the 

future. Mayor Labbe spoke about the mobile home parks that need more work.  He mentioned that on 

7/31/2 2 the Tabor Opera House will have an event where the City will have tables from 12 pm – 2 pm 

to inform the public.  The dedication to Crossroads Trail happened on July 14th. Excavation for the 

Visitors’ Center for bathrooms starts tomorrow.  Pedal for the Park raised $32k for the park.  Judge 

Floyd and Mayor Labbe spoke with the City Prosecutor regarding problematic dog owners.  CM Grant 

spoke about the success of Music in the Park. 

 

 

6. Public comments for items not on the agenda:  Rohn Bertoles spoke about the issues with diagonal 

parking on West 5th street.  Mr. Bertoles also spoke about the Streets Department Interim Supervisor 

Jim Schneiter and whether he has a WC45 or WC43 license.  He also questioned why Mr. Schneiter is 

driving a City truck instead of his own.  Kristi Garza spoke about her concerns with the Sheriff’s office 

regarding anti-racism, equity, and law enforcement.  She mentioned that she has expressed her concerns 

to the Lake County Board of County Commissioners.  She inquired whether the City’s Police 

Department would like to do a coordinated Professional Development with the Sheriff’s Office 

regarding those topics.  Ms. Garza also spoke about the recommendations given to Planning and Zoning 



                         800 HARRISON AVE. 
LEADVILLE, CO 80461 

 
 

2 

Regular Meeting 07/19/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 08/02/22 

and the capacity issues for the grant.  Tim Bergman, Lake County Manager, spoke about the continued 

vandalism happening in the city including the skate park and Ice Palace Park.  Mr. Bergman requested 

assistance from the city’s police department. 

 

7. Approval of Minutes:  

a. CM Luna-Leal moved to approve the minutes of 6/21/22; CM Hill seconded. CM Forgensi, 

CM Greene, and CM Grant abstained. All present were in favor.  

b. CM Hill moved to approve the minutes of 6/23/22; CM Luna-Leal seconded. CM Forgensi, 

CM Greene, and CM Grant abstained. All present were in favor.  

c. CM Hill moved to approve the minutes of 7/5/22; CM Forgensi seconded. CM Lauritzen 

abstained. All present were in favor.  

 

8. Department Reports 

Bills – CM Forgensi moved to pay the bills, and CM Luna-Leal seconded. All present were in 

favor. 

  

9. Presentations & Requests: 

A. City Administrator’s Report – Laurie Simonson updated the City Council regarding the 

following: 

a. The City Council has received their new Surfaces.  The use of the computers during 

Council meetings will save staff time and money on paper and toner. 

b. The City has been approached by people who have lost housing due to Climax’s 

acquisition of the old Community Banks building.  The house on 809 Spruce Street may 

be used by a single family until a Conditional Use Permit is approved. 

c. City Council will need to set a goal-setting meeting.  Council has agreed to set the 

meeting for a Work Session on 8/30/22. 

d. The City of Leadville has joined the Colorado Association of Ski Towns.  There is a 

meeting on August 25th and 26th in Salida. 

e. Laurie is waiting for the salary data from the HR consultant.  Colorado Municipal 

League has released its data. 

f. E-Bikes on the Mineral Belt: State law states that E-bikes (Classes 1 and 2) are allowed 

on regular bike paths.  Speeding issues will be addressed by the police department. 

 

B. Discussion on City Financial Contribution for the Leadville Lake County Regional 

Housing Authority- 

a. Michael Yermann from Southern Colorado Economic Development District presented 

information regarding the creation of the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing 

Authority.   

  

CM Luna-Leal moved to approve the City’s annual contribution to the Leadville Lake 

County Regional Housing Authority to be an amount not to exceed $240, 000 for the 2023 

budget. CM Luna-Leal amends the motion to align with the budget presented to City 



                         800 HARRISON AVE. 
LEADVILLE, CO 80461 

 
 

3 

Regular Meeting 07/19/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 08/02/22 

Council during the July 19th, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting with the expectation that 

City Council will revisit the budget in 2024. 

CM Hill seconded. Vote was 6-0-0-1. 

10. Resolutions & Ordinances: 

A. Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapters 15.04, 

15.08, and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by Reference the 2018 

International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 

Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas 

Code, the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, and 

the 2018 International Fire Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; and Providing 

Penalties for Violations Thereof (First Reading) 

Mayor Labbe opened the floor for public comment on Ordinance No. 7, Series 2022 (First 

Reading): 

Mr. Craig Boulle spoke about the discrepancy in the International Fire Code and Voice/Alarm 

Communication System section in the 2012 code.  He spoke about how this code requires any 

Group A occupancy of over 49 to have a Voice/Alarm Evacuation System.  However, in another 

section of the International Fire Code, there is a requirement for occupancy of 1000 or more to have 

a Voice/Alarm Communication System. 

Councilmembers acknowledged the possible discrepancy in the International Fire Code and it will 

be addressed with Fire Chief Dan Dailey. 

CM Forgensi moved to adopt Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Repealing and 

Reenacting Chapters 15.04, 15.08, and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by 

Reference the 2018 International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 

International Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas 

Code, the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 

International Fire Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; and Providing Penalties for Violations 

Thereof (First Reading) CM Luna-Leal seconded, Vote was 6-0-0-1. 

B. Ordinance No.8, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Approving a Third Amendment to the 

Railyard at Leadville Phase 1 Planned Unit Development (First Reading)  

 

CM Hill moved to adopt Ordinance No.8, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Approving a Third 

Amendment to the Railyard at Leadville Phase 1 Planned Unit Development (First Reading) 

CM Luna-Leal seconded. Vote was 6-0-0-1.  

 

 



                         800 HARRISON AVE. 
LEADVILLE, CO 80461 

 
 

4 

Regular Meeting 07/19/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 08/02/22 

11. Motions: 

A. Mid-Year Cost of Living Adjustment 

CM Luna-Leal moved to approve mid-year cost of living adjustment for city employees under: 

Option B as proposed by Council. 

 

CM Hill seconded. Vote was 6-0-0-1. Motion passed. 

B. Leadville Urban Renewal Authority Budget 

 

CM Hill moved to approve the Supplemental Budget for the Leadville Urban Renewal 

Authority 2022 of $96,000. 

 

CM Luna-Leal seconded; Vote was 6-0-0-1. Motion passed. 

12. Public Meetings Planner: There are no changes to the Public Meetings Planner. 

 

13. Mayor’s Report: Mayor Labbe spoke about the Latino Conservation Week Festival occurring on 

Friday, July 22 at Mountain View West from 11 am to 2 pm. 

 

14. Council Reports:  CM Luna-Leal and CM Forgensi will be absent on the August 2nd Meeting.  CM 

Luna-Leal wanted to inform the Council of his resignation at Full Circle. 

 

 

Adjournment: 9:55 pm. 

 

APPROVED this 2nd day of August by a vote of ___ in favor, ___ against, ___ abstaining, and ___ 

absent. 

 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 

 

ATTEST: 

By  

 

   

 ___________________________________  

Deputy City Clerk 

 



L
e
a
d

v
il

le
 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty

 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 (
L
L
C
E
D
C

)

2
0

2
2

 Q
u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 U
p
d
a

te
s

C
it

y
 o
f 
L
e
a
d

v
il

le

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

2

1. 2
.

3
.

4
.

5
.

6
.

7
.

8
.M

is
s

io
n

 A
n
d

 V
is

io
n

B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs
/
A
d

m
in

is
tr
a

ti
o

n

M
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip

P
ro

je
c

ts

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic
a

ti
o

n
s

S
a

le
s

 T
a

x
 D
a

ta

F
in
a

n
c

ia
ls

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 D
a

ta



M
is

s
io

n
 &

 V
is

io
n

O
u

r 
M

is
s

io
n

T
h
e

 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 is

 T
H
E

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 c
a

ta
ly

s
t 
fo

r 

b
u

s
in
e

s
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 b

y
 h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 r
e

ta
in

 a
n
d

 e
x
p
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 b
a

s
e

 in
 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 a
n
d

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

G
o

v
e

rn
e
d

 b
y

 a
 B

o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs

 e
le
c

te
d

 b
y

 it
s
 m
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip
, t

h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 is
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
a

 d
iv
e

rs
e

 a
n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
 f

o
r 
a

ll
 o
f 
L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

O
u

r 
V

is
io

n

W
e

 w
ill

 e
s
ta
b

lis
h

 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 a

s
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
c

h
m
a

rk
 f

o
r 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 in
 C

o
lo

ra
d

o
 

b
y

 b
e

in
g

 a
 p

o
w
e

rf
u

l 
a
d

v
o
c
a

te
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 e
ff
e
c

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc
e

s
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 t
h

ri
v

in
g

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d

.



1 2 3 4

B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs
/

A
d

m
in

is
tr
a

ti
o

n

2
0

2
1 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R
e

p
o

rt

T
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 r
e

le
a

s
e
d

 it
s
 f

ir
s
t 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt

2
0

2
2

 B
o
a

rd
 O

rg
a

n
iz
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P
a
c

k
e

t

T
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 r
e

le
a

s
e
d

 t
h
e

 f
ir

s
t 
d

ig
it

iz
e
d

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 

D
ir
e
c

to
rs

 o
n
b

o
a

rd
in

g
 P
a
c

k
e

t

T
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs

 h
a
d

 

v
a
c
a

n
c

ie
s 

th
a

t 
w
e

re
 f

ill
e
d

 in
 Q

1 
S
e
e

 t
h
e

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 B
O
D

 l
is

t

S
ta
ff

 u
p
d
a

te
: T

h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 o
ff

ic
ia

ll
y

 v
o

te
d

N
a

n
c

y
 B
a

ile
y

 a
s
 E

x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir
e
c

to
r 
a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
d

M
e

ry
l 
A

u
n
e

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr
a

ti
v
e

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
fu

ll
 t

im
e

5
T

h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 p
a

rt
n
e

re
d

 w
it

h
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 C
o

lo
ra
d

o
 

In
c

. (
D
C
I)

 a
n
d

 h
e

ld
 it

s
 f

ir
s
t 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

R
e

tr
e
a

t 
in

 o
v
e

r 
5

 y
e
a

rs
. S
e
e

 t
h
e

 S
tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
a
c

k
e

t.
 -

 P
e

n
d

in
g

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l

https://indd.adobe.com/view/984b832d-760a-4a8d-ad72-61f4c8704154
https://indd.adobe.com/view/80264b93-db16-43eb-aa9d-2048480e3798
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/Efs7MI_zjglAgn_jB2-wr8EBP7U1X9Vb1a2yPOinkjWWYw?e=nOKFaE


2
0

2
2

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs

E
x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te
e

B
o
a

rd
 O
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs

T
e
d

 G
re
e

n

B
lu
e

 F
lo

w
e

r 
C
a

n
d

y
 &

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

N
e

ll
 W

a
re

h
a

m

C
lim

a
x
 M

o
ly
b
d
e

n
u

m
/
F

re
e

p
o

rt
 

M
c
M

o
R
a

n

T
im

 H
il

l

C
it

y
 o
f 
L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

J
e
ff

 M
c
G

u
in

n
e

s
s

S
ilv
e

r 
C

it
y

 P
ri

n
ti

n
g

 &
 O
ff

ic
e

 S
u

p
p

ly

K
e

it
h

 M
o
ff
e

tt

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 B
a

n
k

s
 o
f 
C

o
lo

ra
d

o

H
e
a

th
e

r 
L

in
d

h

R
e
M
a

x
 A

s
p
e

n
 L
e
a
f 
R
e
a

lt
y

 B
e

n
 C
a

ir
n

s

C
o

lo
ra
d

o
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 -
 

T
im
b
e

rl
in
e

T
ra
c

y
 P

u
rd

y

L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 C
h
a

m
b
e

r 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

M
a

ry
 S
c

h
ro
e
d
e

r

P
u
e
b

lo
 B
a

n
k

 a
n
d

 T
ru

s
t

T
y

ro
n
e

 R
im
b
e

rt

L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 T
ra

il 
10

0
 L
e

g
a
c

y
 F

o
u

n
d
a

ti
o

n

B
re

tt
 A

n
tc

za
k

S
t.

 V
in
c
e

n
t 
H
e
a

lt
h

T
in

g
 Z

h
u

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 P
e
a

k
s
 M

o
te

l

J
a

m
ie

 S
e

if
fe

r

F
u

n
 I
s
 U

n
 L

td

M
e

li
s

s
a

 K
e

n
d

ri
c

k

K
e

n
d

ri
c

k
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 I
n
c

M
a

tt
 W

e
s

te
n
b

u
rg

W
e

s
t 
G

ro
u

p
, P
C

P
re

s
id
e

n
t

J
a

s
o

n
 H
a

ll

A
lp

in
e

 F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &
 G

if
t 
S

h
o

p
p
e

T
re
a

s
u

re
r

M
ic

h
a
e

l 
L
e
a

h
e

y

E
v
e

rg
re
e

n
 L
a

n
d

 C
o

.

V
ic
e

 P
re

s
id
e

n
t

V
a
c
a

n
t

S
e
c

re
ta

ry

K
a

y
la

 M
a

rc
e

ll
a

B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r

L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 G

o
v
e

rn
m
e

n
t

L
e

g
a

l 
C

o
u

n
s
e

l

C
h

ri
s
 F

lo
y
d



M
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip
 

D
o

n
o

r 
6

.8
6

%
V

o
ti

n
g

 2
6

.4
7

%

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

3
1.

3
7

%

N
o

n
 -

 P
ro

fi
t 

2
8

.4
3

In
 K

in
d

 6
.8

6
%

D
o

n
o

r

V
o

ti
n

g

G
e

n
e

ra
l

N
o

n
 -

P
ro
fi

t

In
 K

in
d

2
0

2
2

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 M
e

m
b
e

rs

January July 0
10

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

10
0

11
0

8
8

10
2

N
e

w
 M
e

m
b
e

r 
G

ro
w

th

2
0

2
2

 M
e

m
b
e

r 
R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
R
a

te

R
e

n
e

w
e
d

 9
5

.7
0

%

D
ro

p
p
e
d

 4
.3

0
%

R
e

n
e

w
e
d

D
ro

p
p
e
d

S
in
c
e

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 o
f 

2
0

2
2
, t

h
e

 

L
L
C
E
D
C

 h
a

s
 e

x
p
e

ri
e

n
c
e
d

 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
m
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip
 g

ro
w

th
, 

w
it

h
 a

 9
5

%
 r
e

n
e

w
a

l 
ra

te
 a

n
d

 1
4

 

n
e

w
 m
e

m
b
e

rs
 r
e
c

ru
it
e
d

 Y
T
D

. 

F
o

r 
a

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 l
is

t 
o
f 

m
e

m
b
e

rs
, c

lic
k

 h
e

re

https://www.lakecountyedc.com/members


P
ro

je
c

ts
 

B
u

s
in
e

s
s

 R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 &

 E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

T
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 a
c

ti
v
e

ly
 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 in

 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 a
n
d

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
. I

n
 2

0
2

1,
 w
e

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e
d

 o
v
e

r 
10

0
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 v

is
it

s
 w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

x
im
a

te
ly

 3
0

 a
c

ti
v
e

 p
ro

je
c

ts
.  
In

 2
0

2
2
, t

h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 a
n

n
o

u
n
c
e
d

 t
h
e

 

re
a
c

ti
v
a

ti
o

n
 o
f 

o
u

r 
B
R
&
E

 C
o

m
m

it
te
e

. I
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
1,

 t
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
r'

s
 v

o
te
d

 t
o

 h
ir
e

 J
u
d

y
 G

re
e

n
 u

n
d
e

r 

c
o

n
tr
a
c

t 
 t

o
 l
e
a
d

 a
n
d

 a
s
s
is

t 
th
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te
e

. I
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
2
, a

n
d

 s
in
c
e

 G
re
e

n
's

 h
ir
e
, c

o
m

m
it

te
e

 m
e

m
b
e

rs
 h
a

v
e

 b
e

g
u

n
 s

it
e

 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 l

o
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 g
a

in
 p
e

rs
p
e
c

ti
v
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 n
e
e
d

s
 o
f 
L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 a
n
d

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 o

w
n
e

rs
. T

h
e

 

c
o

m
m

it
te
e

's
 g

o
a

l 
is

 t
o

 r
e
a
c

h
 5

0
0

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 B

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n
d

 o
f 

2
0

2
2
, a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

ll
y

 v
is

it
e
d

 3
5

 

b
u

s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te
e

 b
e

g
a

n
 o

n
 J

u
n
e

 1
5

th
.  
S
e
e

 b
e

lo
w

 f
o

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 d
e

ta
ils

. 

P
ro

je
c

t 
D
e

ta
il

B
u

s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 I
d
e

n
ti

fi
e
d

 9
3

.4
6

%

B
u

s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 O

u
tr
e
a
c

h
e
d

 6
.5

4
%

B
u

si
n
e

ss
e

s 
Id
e

n
tif

ie
d

B
u

si
n
e

ss
e

s 
O

u
tr
e
a
c

h
e
d

B
R
&
E

 is
 t

h
e

 o
n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

m
a

in
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o
f 

s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 

lo
c
a

l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
. L

o
c
a

l 

b
u

s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 h
a

v
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 t
ie

s
, r
e
d

u
c

in
g

 

th
e

 r
is

k
 o
f 

le
a

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 B
R
E

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s
 a

re
 o
ft
e

n
 l
e

s
s
 

e
x
p
e

n
s
iv
e

 t
h
a

n
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 

a
tt

ra
c

ti
o

n
, y

ie
ld

in
g

 m
o

re
 

jo
b

s
 o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

.

    T
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 B
R
&
E

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 p

ro
v

id
e

s
 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
ti
a

l, 
o

n
e

 o
n

 o
n
e
, b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 t

o
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 

in
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 in

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 t

o
 o

v
e

rc
o

m
e

 

c
h
a

ll
e

n
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 id
e

n
ti
fy

 m
e
a

n
in

g
fu

l 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 f
o
c

u
s
 o

n
 a

tt
ra
c

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

re
ta

in
in

g
 jo
b

s
 in

 o
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. A

 f
o

rm
a

l 

B
R
&
E

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 id
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 h
u

rd
le

s
 a

n
d

 

c
h
a

ll
e

n
g
e

s
 f
a
c

in
g

 l
o
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

v
id
e

s
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 t
o

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 

is
s
u
e

s
. T
e
c

h
n

ic
a

l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 p
ro

v
id
e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 B
R
&
E

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 c
a

n
 h
e

lp
 a

 

b
u

s
in
e

s
s
:

In
c

re
a

s
e

 c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s
 in

 t
h
e

 w
id
e

r 

m
a

rk
e

tp
la
c
e

 A
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h

 e
x
p
a

n
s
io

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
a
d
d

 n
e

w
 

jo
b

s

K
e
e

p
 f

ro
m

 r
e

lo
c
a

ti
n

g
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s

H
e

lp
 s

u
rv

iv
e

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 d

if
fi
c

u
lt

ie
s

C
o

n
n
e
c

t 
to

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s

B
R
&
E

 P
u

rp
o

s
e

O
v
e

rv
ie

w



P
ro

je
c

ts
 

C
li

m
a

x
 R
e

s
il

ie
n
c

y
 P

il
o

t 
P

ro
je
c

t

P
ro

je
c

t 
U

p
d
a

te
s

W
e

 a
re

 e
x
c

it
e
d

 t
o

 a
n

n
o

u
n
c
e

 t
h
a

t 
w
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 s
e

le
c

te
d

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 

in
 a

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
je
c

t 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

t 
C

lim
a

x
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 h
e

lp
 o
f 
B
e

tt
e

r 
C

it
y
, 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 
a

n
ti
c

ip
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
th

re
a

ts
 o

n
 

o
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. T

h
ro

u
g

h
 s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g
, o

u
r 

g
o
a

l 
is

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 l

is
t 

o
f 
a
c

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

. S
u
c

h
 t

h
re
a

ts
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b
e

 

c
o

n
s
id
e

re
d

 in
c

lu
d
e
: s

to
rm

s
, d

ro
u

g
h

t,
 c

iv
il 

u
n

re
s
t,

 a
n
d

 p
a

n
d
e

m
ic

s
. 

M
o
b

ili
z
a

ti
o

n
 t
e
a

m
 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

n
 J

u
ly

 1
5
, 2

0
2

2
. R
e

v
ie

w
 a
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
e

re
. 

P
e

n
d

in
g

 f
in
a

l 
c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

2
2

.

https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/ERhFwzaPGxlJnX4SR3M8bvYBukbzb0wuLhaKB0Qr5eQTRg?e=fi9BW6


P
ro

je
c

ts
 

L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E

n
tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 

E
c

o
s

y
s

te
m

 G
ra

n
t/
S
C
E
D
D

P
ro

je
c

t 
U

p
d
a

te
s

L
e
a
d

v
ill
e
/
L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 v
a

lu
e

s
 t

h
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
, s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 

s
e

rv
e

 it
s
 r
e

s
id
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 g
ro

w
in

g
 n

u
m
b
e

r 
o
f 

v
is

it
o

rs
 w

h
o

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 

a
re
a

. I
t 

is
 c

ri
ti
c
a

ll
y

 im
p

o
rt
a

n
t 
fo

r 
s
m
a

rt
 g

ro
w

th
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
re

 a
tt
e

n
ti

o
n

 is
 

d
e
d

ic
a

te
d

 t
o
: (

1)
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip
, (

2
) 

o
ff
e

ri
n

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n
d

 

m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
, a

n
d
, (

3
) 
c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
 in

te
g

ra
te
d

 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o
f 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 o

w
n
e

rs
, g

o
v
e

rn
m
e

n
t 

o
ff

ic
ia

ls
, o

rg
a

n
iz
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

e
d

u
c
a

to
rs

 a
n
d

 o
th
e

r 
k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
is

t 
th
e

m
 w

it
h

 s
e
c

u
ri

n
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc
e

s
 n
e
e
d
e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

.

https://www.mainstreet.org/howwecanhelp/resourcecenter/entrepreneurialecosystems


P
ro

je
c

ts
 

B
ro
a
d
b
a

n
d

 I
n
fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

P
ro

je
c

t 
U

p
d
a

te
s

T
h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C
, C

it
y

 o
f 
L
e
a
d

v
ill
e
, a

n
d

 o
th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
iz
a

ti
o

n
s
 h
a

v
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

re
d

 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 V
e

ro
 B

ro
a
d
b
a

n
d

's
 f

ib
e

r 
o

p
ti
c

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 t

o
 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

. L
L
C
E
D
C

 

B
o
a

rd
 P

re
s
id
e

n
t 

s
ta

te
s
; "
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
-w

id
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

-s
p
e
e
d

 

b
ro
a
d
b
a

n
d

 w
o

n
’t

 a
u

to
m
a

ti
c
a

ll
y

 u
n

lo
c

k
 b
e

tt
e

r 
jo
b

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 

o
r 

s
p

u
r 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
 g

ro
w

th
, b

u
t 
b
e

tt
e

r 
jo
b

s
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
in

g
 b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 c
a

n
’t

 

h
a

p
p
e

n
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

n
 a
ff

o
rd
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

lia
b

le
 in

te
rn
e

t 
c

o
n

n
e
c

ti
o

n
".

F
o

re
c
a

s
te
d

 t
im
e

lin
e

 f
o

r 
th
e

 p
ro

je
c

t'
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 is

 2
 y
e
a

rs
, w

it
h

 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 in
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

o
f 

2
0

2
2

. S
e
e

 t
h
e

 a
tt
a
c

h
e
d

 

L
e
a
d

v
il

le
 H
e

ra
ld

 a
rt

ic
le

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
u

p
d
a

te
s

. 

V
ie

w
 V
e

ro
 B

ro
a
d
b
a

n
d

 P
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h
e

re

https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/ERCC5-uAtZROicoCQz-PzvUBp9_lUQzCg1rBb-GsWvI_7Q?e=bL3Grs
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/Ed6HPXBi4oFHltCYGCqEbhsBVzLFk1-Xb48IpLZaoUZGHQ?e=0YLbWc


M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

W
e
b

si
te

O
v
e

rv
ie

w

S
o
c

ia
l 

M
e
d

ia

N
e

w
s
 

L
e

tt
e

r

L
L
C
E
D
C

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs

 h
a

v
e

 

v
o

te
d

 t
o

 r
e
a

ll
o
c
a

te
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

 

n
e

w
 w
e
b

s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
c

o
m
e

 a
 

re
s
o

u
rc
e
fu

l 
to

o
l 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

m
e

m
b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt
e

rs
. 

K
ri

s
ty

le
e

 G
o

g
o

le
n

 f
ro

m
 T
a

n
d
e

m
 

d
e

s
ig

n
 l
a
b

s
 h
a

s
 b
e
e

n
 h

ir
e
d

 t
o

 

c
re
a

te
 w
e
b

s
it
e
, w

it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

w
e
b

s
it
e

 u
p

k
e
e

p
in

g
 in
c

lu
d
e
d

 f
o

r 

L
L
C
E
D
C

 s
ta
ff

. W
e
b

s
it
e

 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 a
n

ti
c

ip
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
2

3

In
 2

0
2

2
, t

h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 e
n

g
a

g
e
d

a
 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 
fo

r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 w
it

h
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
, p

re
s
s
 r
e

le
a

s
e

s
, 

m
o

n
th

ly
 n
e

w
s
p
a

p
e

r

a
rt

ic
le

s
, a

n
d

 s
o
c

ia
l 

m
e
d

ia
. 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

ra
te

s
 h
a

v
e

in
c

re
a

s
e
d

 o
v
e

r 
2

0
2

1,
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

4
0

%
 

w
it

h
  
a

 r
e
a
c

h
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

4
3

%
.

L
L
C
E
D
C

 N
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 

to
 im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n
d

 e
v

o
lv
e

 in
to

 a
 

re
s
o

u
rc
e
fu

l 
to

o
l 
fo

r 
b

u
s
in
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 

s
ta

y
 e

n
g
a

g
e
d

 a
n
d

 in
fo

rm
e
d

. O
p
e

n
 

ra
te

s
 h
a

v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e
d

 a
ro

u
n
d

 4
6

%
, 

w
it

h
 J

u
n
e

 3
0

th
 h
a

v
in

g
 a

n
 o

p
e

n
 r
a

te
 

o
f 

4
3

%

In
 2

0
2

2
, t

h
e

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 f
o

rm
e
d

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
it

h
 T

h
e

  H
e

ra
ld

 D
e

m
o
c

ra
t,

 t
o

 r
e

le
a

s
e

 m
o

n
th

ly
 a

rt
ic

le
s

. 

F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

3
rd

 a
rt

ic
le

M
a

rc
h

 2
4

th
 a

rt
ic

le

A
p

ri
l 

15
th

 a
rt

ic
le

 

M
a

y
 2

6
th

 a
rt

ic
le

J
u

n
e

 2
0

th
 a

rt
ic

le

https://www.lakecountyedc.com/
https://www.leadvilleherald.com/article_7914b90a-94c2-11ec-b530-c7a3921bf776.html
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/EbL-9ZrzF_pMlebE6fYJkW4BiYlcVv6rjBx6fz6Jt0VF7w?e=kh5rAV
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/EbxUcLMmDpxGo_F3Ii6fN0MBFddr9_leyoNMLnvLKUBMDg?e=BeQnvw
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/ERnHKRHshgNFsjsG2hJadDsB7cwFai9C_qHwHs1q1SYc3g?e=oNKRqd
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/ERCC5-uAtZROicoCQz-PzvUBp9_lUQzCg1rBb-GsWvI_7Q?e=2s6dV5


M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k

-2
0

0

02
0

0

4
0

0

6
0

0

8
0

0

10
0

0

12
0

0

14
0

0

16
0

0

18
0

0

2
0

0
0

2
2

0
0

5/
1/

22 5/
4/

22 5/
7/

22 5/
10
/2

2

5/
13
/2

2

5/
16
/2

2

5/
19
/2

2

5/
22
/2

2

5/
25
/2

2

5/
28
/2

2

5/
31
/2

2

6/
3/

22 6/
6/

22 6/
9/

22 6/
12
/2

2

6/
15
/2

2

6/
18
/2

2

6/
21
/2

2

6/
24
/2

2

6/
27
/2

2

6/
30
/2

2 7/
3/

22 7/
6/

22 7/
9/

22 7/
12
/2

2

L
if
e

ti
m
e

 T
o

ta
l L

ik
e

s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
P
a

g
e

 E
n

g
a

g
e
d

 U
se

rs

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
T
o

ta
l R
e
a
c

h

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
O

rg
a

n
ic

 R
e
a
c

h

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
V

ir
a

l R
e
a
c

h

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
T
o

ta
l I

m
p

re
ss

io
n

s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
O

rg
a

n
ic

 im
p

re
ss

io
n

s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
V

ir
a

l i
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s

W
e
e

k
ly

 L
o

g
g
e
d

-i
n

 P
a

g
e

 V
ie

w
s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
R
e
a
c

h
 O
f 
P
a

g
e

 P
o

st
s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
O

rg
a

n
ic

 R
e
a
c

h
 o
f 
P
a

g
e

p
o

st
s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
V

ir
a

l R
e
a
c

h
 O
f 
P
a

g
e

P
o

st
s

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
T
o

ta
l I

m
p

re
ss

io
n

s 
o
f…

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
O

rg
a

n
ic

 im
p

re
ss

io
n

s 
o
…

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
V

ir
a

l I
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s 
O
f…

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
T
o

ta
l C

o
n

su
m
e

rs

2
8

 D
a
y
s 
P
a

g
e

 C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
s

F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k
 P
a

g
e

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
Q

2



M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

5
0

4
5

4
0

3
5

3
0

2
5

2
0

15 10 5 0

1/
13
/

2
0

2
2

1/
2

7
/

2
0

2
2

2
/

10
/

2
0

2
2

2
/

2
4
/

2
0

2
2

3
/

10
/

2
0

2
2

3
/

2
4
/

2
0

2
2

R
e
a
d
e

rs
h

ip
 f

o
r 
Q

1

J
a

n
. 1

3
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
a

n
. 2

7
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

F
e
b

. 1
0
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

F
e
b

. 2
4
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

M
a

rc
h

 1
0
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

M
a

rc
h

 2
4
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

https://conta.cc/3relVpJ
https://conta.cc/3o0X2xe
https://conta.cc/3LpBBjm
https://conta.cc/3LZXdmu
https://conta.cc/3CEmuP1
https://conta.cc/36IPx8m


M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

5
5

5
0

4
5

4
0

3
5

3
0

2
5

2
0

15 10 5 0

4
/

7
/

2
0

2
2

4
/

2
1/

2
0

2
2

5
/

5
/

2
0

2
2

5
/

19
/

2
0

2
2

6
/

2
/

2
0

2
2

6
/

16
/

2
0

2
2

6
/

3
0
/

2
0

2
2

R
e
a
d
e

rs
h

ip
 f

o
r 
Q

2

A
p

ri
l 

7
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

A
p

ri
l 

2
1,

 2
0

2
2

 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

M
a

y
 5
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

M
a

y
 1

9
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
u

n
e

 2
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
u

n
e

 1
6
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
u

n
e

 3
0
, 2

0
2

2
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

https://conta.cc/3JjfB7m
https://conta.cc/38dF71e
https://conta.cc/3M3Ohwp
https://conta.cc/3FYoMtY
https://conta.cc/3GKsAzt
https://conta.cc/3MS3mjX
https://conta.cc/3btAoKe


S
a

le
s

 T
a

x
 D
a

ta



S
a

le
s

 T
a

x
 D
a

ta



S
a

le
s

 T
a

x
 D
a

ta



F
in
a

n
c

ia
ls

6
/

3
0
/

2
0

2
2

 L
L
C
E
D
C

 F
in
a

n
c

ia
ls

S
c

o
re
c
a

rd

https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/EcxYjT_hT9RDswXLH_iKi-MBE__GqQYWrAABgPKoPlW0hg?e=v6sdSo


W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 D
a

ta

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
U

p
d
a

te

M
a

rk
 H

o
b

lit
z
e

ll
, R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
B

u
s
in
e

s
s
 S
e

rv
ic
e

s
 C

o
o

rd
in
a

to
r,

 

C
o

lo
ra
d

o
 D
e

p
a

rt
m
e

n
t 

o
f 
L
a
b

o
r 
a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m
e

n
t 

- 
v

ie
w

 u
p
d
a

te
 

h
e

re

https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/EYH2tlaW2HtEvEb3IMeuiwUBT7NIUwSXrHwLevtCs6B1_w?e=K0fZOr


T
h
a

n
k

 y
o

u
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt
!

N
a

n
c

y
 B
a

ile
y

 -
 D

ir
e
c

to
r@

la
k
e
c

o
u

n
ty
e
d
c

.c
o

m

M
e

ry
l 
A

u
n
e

 -
 A
d

m
in
@

la
k
e
c

o
u

n
ty
e
d
c

.c
o

m

W
e
b

s
it
e

 -
 l
a

k
e
c

o
u

n
ty
e
d
c

.c
o

m

F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k
 -

 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 L
a

k
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

mailto:Director@lakecountyedc.com
mailto:admin@lakecountyedc.com
https://www.lakecountyedc.com/
https://www.facebook.com/LLCEDC/


L
e
a
d

v
il

le
 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
L
M
S
P

)
2

0
2

2
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 U
p
d
a

te

J
u

ly
, 2

0
2

2

M
is

s
io

n
 &

 V
is

io
n

B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs
/

 
A
d

m
in

is
tr
a

ti
o

n
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
/
P

ro
je
c

ts
F

in
a

n
c

ia
ls

E
v
e

n
ts

 R
e
c
a

p
M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

https://www.lakecountyedc.com/
https://cityofleadville.colorado.gov/
https://www.mainstreet.org/home
https://cdola.colorado.gov/main-street
https://cdola.colorado.gov/
https://www.mainstreet.org/home


O
u

r 
M

is
s

io
n

 
S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
n

n
e
c

ti
o

n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 h

is
to

ri
c

 p
re

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
, b
e
a

u
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 a
c

ti
v
a

ti
o

n
 o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 s

p
a
c
e

s
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

.

O
u

r 
V

is
io

n
A

 t
h

ri
v

in
g

 d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
n
e
c

te
d

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 g
re
a

t 
liv

in
g

 

a
t 

10
,2

0
0

 f
e
e

t.

M
is

s
io

n
 &

 V
is

io
n



2
0

2
2

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs

E
ri

n
 D

u
g

g
in

- 
B

o
a

rd
 P

re
s
id
e

n
t

A
m

y
 H
a

ll
- 
V

ic
e

 P
re

s
id
e

n
t

K
a

ti
e

 S
c

o
tt

- 
T

re
a

s
u

re
r

T
a

m
m

y
 T
a
b
e

r-
 B

o
a

rd
 M
e

m
b
e

r

A
lic

ia
 F
e

tt
e

rs
- 
B

o
a

rd
 M
e

m
b
e

r

M
a

ry
 S
c

h
ro
e
d
e

r-
 B

o
a

rd
 M
e

m
b
e

r

V
a
c
a

n
t-

 B
o
a

rd
 M
e

m
b
e

r



2
0

2
2

 B
o
a

rd
 o
f 
D

ir
e
c

to
rs
/

 A
d

m
in

is
tr
a

ti
o

n

N
a

n
c

y
 B
a

ile
y

 a
n
d

 A
m

y
 H
a

ll
 a

tt
e

n
d
e
d

 t
h
e

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
N
O
W

 c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

 o
n

 

M
a

y
 1

6
-1
8

 2
0

2
2

 a
n
d

 s
u
b

m
it

te
d

 a
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 D
O
L
A
/
C
O
M
S

 f
o

r 
re

im
b

u
rs
e

m
e

n
t.


M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
N
O
W

 C
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

C
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 t
o

 e
v

o
lv
e

. W
e

 n
o

w
 h
a

v
e

 a
 M
S

 b
u

s
in
e

s
s
 l

is
t,

 b
u

ild
in

g
 in

v
e

n
to

ry
, 

a
n
d

 s
e

g
re

g
a

te
d

 s
p
e
c

if
ic

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 
M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt
e

rs
.


G

ro
w

th
zo

n
e
/

 C
h
a

m
b
e

r 
M
a

s
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a

re

  A
d

m
in

is
tr
a

ti
v
e

 U
p
d
a

te
s


L
M
S
P

 Q
1 
U

p
d
a

te

A
ld

y
r 
F
a

ri
a

 h
a

s
 r
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 L
M
S
P
, l
e
a

v
in

g
 a

n
 o

p
e

n
 p

o
s
it

io
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 

B
o
a

rd
. 


L
M
S
P

 B
o
a

rd
 V
a
c
a

n
c

y

https://prezi.com/i/view/8oYkisboJGj2WtDS2nIO


2
0

2
2

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

Ja
n

F
e
b

M
a

rc
h

A
p

r
M
a

y
J
u

n
e

O
c

t
N

o
v

D
e
c

J
u

ly
A

u
g

S
e

p
t

Q
1

B
o
a

rd
 "
B

o
o

tc
a

m
p

" 
tr
a

in
in

g

B
o
a

rd
 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

A
n

n
u
a

l 
W

o
rk

p
la

n

B
y

 -
 L
a

w
s
 R
e

v
is

io
n

s

W
e
b

s
it
e
/

 N
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r/
 S

o
c

ia
l

P
a

rk
le

t/
 R
e

s
tr

o
o

m

Q
2

Q
4

Q
3

A
n

n
u
a

l 
F

u
n
d

ra
is
e

r/

L
iv
e

 A
u
c

ti
o

n

T
ri
c

k
 o

r 
T

re
a

t 
S

t.
 P
a

rt
n
e

r

S
h

o
p

 S
m
a

ll
 S
a

tu
rd
a

y
/

 

S
h

o
p

 L
o
c
a

l

P
a

ra
d
e

 o
f 
L

ig
h

ts
 P
a

rt
n
e

r 

W
e
b

s
it
e
/
N
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r/
S

o
c

ia
l

2
0

2
3

 B
u
d

g
e

t

S
u

m
m
e

r 
N

ig
h

ts
 A

t 
Z
a

it
z

T
ri
c

k
 o

r 
T

re
a

t 
S

t.
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
iv
e

 A
u
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 I
n

 B
lo

o
m

 (
P

la
n

te
r 

B
o

x
 P

ro
g

ra
m

) 

4
th

 o
f 
J
u

ly
 P
a

ra
d
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

r 

W
e
b

s
it
e
/
N
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r/
S

o
c

ia
l

P
a

rk
le

t/
R
e

s
tr

o
o

m
-C

o
m

p
le

te

T
ri
c

k
 o

r 
T

re
a

t 
S

t.
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
iv
e

 A
u
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 C
le
a

n
 U

p

M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
M
a

tt
e

rs

L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 I
n

 B
lo

o
m

 (
P

la
n

te
r 

B
o

x
 P

ro
g

ra
m

)

W
e
b

s
it
e
/

 N
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r/
 S

o
c

ia
l

P
a

rk
le

t/
R
e

s
tr

o
o

m



P
ro

je
c

ts

M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
P
a

rk
le

t 
&

 R
e

s
tr

o
o

m

T
h
e

 P
a

rk
le

t 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 

fo
rw
a

rd
. L
a

s
t 

m
o

n
th
, t

h
e

 t
e
a

m
 w
a

s
 

b
u

s
y

 w
it

h
 b
a

rr
ic
a
d
e

 f
e

n
c

in
g

 a
n
d

 o
th
e

r 

p
re

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. W

e
 h

o
p
e

 t
o

 

h
a

v
e

 b
a

n
n
e

rs
 u

p
 n
e

x
t 

w
e
e

k
, a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

rk
le

t 
in

 A
u

g
u

s
t.

Ce
le

br
at

in
g 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

In
 M
a

y
, o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 D
O
L
A

 

C
o

lo
ra
d

o
 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
in

it
ia

te
d

 t
h
e

 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti

n
g

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

ts
 C
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 in
 

a
n

 e
ff

o
rt

 t
o

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h
e

 s
p
a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 

p
la
c
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 u

n
iq

u
e

 t
o

 C
o

lo
ra
d

o
. 

S
u

rv
e

y
 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

ts
 

a
c

ro
s
s
 C

o
lo

ra
d

o
 a

re
 b
e

in
g

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 

a
n
d

 f
in
a

liz
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 p
u

t 
o

n
 a

 C
o

lo
ra
d

o
 

M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
S

it
e

 M
a

p
.

L
e
a
d

v
il

le
 I

n
 B

lo
o

m

F
o

rm
e

rl
y

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
te

r 
B

o
x
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
, w

e
 l
a

u
n
c

h
e
d

 o
u

r 
fi

rs
t 

L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 in
 B

lo
o

m
 in

 J
u

n
e

 t
h

is
 y
e
a

r.
 

W
e

 e
x
p
a

n
d
e
d

 t
h
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 6

6
 

p
la

n
te

rs
 in
c

lu
d

in
g

 h
a

n
g

in
g
, r
e

g
u

la
r,

 

a
n
d

 l
a

rg
e

 p
la

n
te

rs
, a

n
d

 w
e

'r
e

 h
a

p
p

y
 t

o
 

s
a

y
 w
e

 a
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

ly
 s

o
ld

 o
u

t!
 

F
lo

w
e

rs
 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 p

u
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 

A
v
e

n
u
e
, a

n
d

 a
re

 b
e
a

u
ti
fy

in
g

 H
a

rr
is

o
n

 

A
v
e

n
u
e

. 

Za
itz

 P
ar

k
Z
a

it
z
 P
a

rk
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b
e

 o
u

r 
fo
c

u
s
 

fo
r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 s
p
a
c
e

 a
c

ti
v
a

ti
o

n
. 

L
M
S
P

 h
a

s
 h
e

ld
 o

u
r 
fi

rs
t 

"S
u

m
m
e

r 

N
ig

h
ts

 a
t 
Z
a

it
z
" 
e

v
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 p
a

rk
, a

n
d

 

in
te

n
d

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 o
th
e

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 

fe
s
ti

v
it

ie
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

rk
's

 g
ro

u
n
d

s
. 

R
e

s
id
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
 f

re
q

u
e

n
t 
Z
a

it
z
 

p
a

rk
 a

s
 w
e

ll
, m

a
k

in
g

 it
 a

 p
o

p
u

la
r 
a

re
a

 

to
 c

o
n

g
re

g
a

te
.  

 



Q
2

 E
v
e

n
ts

 R
e
c
a

p

Le
ad

vi
lle

 L
ak

e 
Co

un
ty

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Cl

ea
n 

U
p

LM
SP

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
he

ld
 

Le
ad

vi
lle

 &
 L

ak
e 

Co
un

ty
's

 
An

nu
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

Cl
ea

n 
- 

U
p,

 w
ith

 o
ve

r 2
00

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

. S
ee

 a
tt

ac
he

d 
fly

er

Su
m

m
er

 N
ig

ht
s 

at
 Z

ai
tz

 -
 

Ev
en

t 1
 o

f 3
LM

SP
 a

nd
 L

ea
dv

ill
ai

n 
M

us
ic

 h
os

te
d 

th
e 

fir
st

 
m

us
ic

 e
ve

nt
 o

f 3
 fo

r t
he

 
Su

m
m

er
, a

nd
 h

ad
 o

ve
r 

10
0 

at
te

nd
ee

s 
an

d 
ra

is
ed

 
m

on
ey

 fo
r o

ur
 p

ro
gr

am
. 

Se
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 fl
ye

r

https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/EZndm8kJBTxFpjy0NPxo75UB5MnH04VxhuFkcN1DS2duTg?e=G96Uif
https://leadvilleedc-my.sharepoint.com/:i:/g/personal/director_lakecountyedc_com/ESm7pPkZrTNAoJHy4oi58YkB_4k0EVKZazBmrzdKv-6qlQ?e=g8jeh8


M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic
a

ti
o

n
s

T
h
e

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
b

o
a

rd
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

  
th
e

 

u
se

 o
f 

o
u

r 
D
O
L
A
/
C
O
M
S

 m
in

i g
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 a
 c

o
n

tr
a
c

to
r 

to
 b

u
ild

 

o
u

r 
fi

rs
t 

- 
e

v
e

r 
w
e
b

si
te

. T
h
e

 d
o

m
a

in
 

le
a
d

v
ill
e

m
a

in
st

re
e

t.
o

rg
 w
a

s 
se
c

u
re
d

 

th
is

 q
u
a

rt
e

r.
 H
a

v
in

g
 a

 d
o

m
a

in
 a

n
d

 

o
ff

ic
ia

l 
w
e
b

si
te

 is
 r
e

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 s
a

ti
sf

y
 t

h
e

 

D
e

si
g

n
a

te
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
in

 t
h
e

 D
O
L
A
/
C
O
M
S

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
.  
E

x
p
e
c

te
d

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
2

3
.

W
e
b

s
it
e

In
 2

0
2

2
, t

h
e

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
e

n
g
a

g
e
d

a
 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

su
lt
a

n
t 
fo

r 
a

ss
is

ta
n
c
e

w
it

h
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic
a

ti
o

n
s,

p
re

ss
 r
e

le
a

se
s,

 m
o

n
th

ly
 n
e

w
sp
a

p
e

r

a
rt

ic
le

s,
 a

n
d

 s
o
c

ia
l 

m
e
d

ia
.

T
h
e

 L
e
a
d

v
ill
e

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
p
a

g
e

 h
a

s 

2
13

0
 f

o
ll

o
w
e

rs
 a

n
d

  
a

 r
e
a
c

h
  
o
f 

19
3

0
 

a
s 

o
f 
J
u

ly
, g

iv
in

g
 a

n
 in
c

re
a

se
 o
f 

2
0

%
 in

 

fo
ll

o
w

s 
a

n
d

 a
n

 in
c

re
a

se
 o
f 

6
5

%
 in

 

re
a
c

h
 s

in
c
e

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
2

2
. 

M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
N
e

w
sl
e

tt
e

r 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s

to
 im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n
d

 e
v

o
lv
e

 in
to

 a
 

re
so

u
rc
e
fu

l 
to

o
l 
fo

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
to

 s
ta

y
 

e
n

g
a

g
e
d

 a
n
d

 in
fo

rm
e
d

. O
p
e

n
 r
a

te
s 

h
a

v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e
d

 a
ro

u
n
d

 4
5

%
 w

it
h

 a
 5

%
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 in
c

re
a

se
 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 a

n
d

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

2
2

.

N
e

w
le

tt
e

r

S
o
c

ia
l

https://www.leadvillemainstreet.org/
https://www.lakecountyedc.com/leadvillemainstreet
https://conta.cc/3ITZq0b
https://www.facebook.com/LeadvilleMainSt


M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic
a

ti
o

n
s

-2
00

0

020
00

40
00

60
00

80
00

10
00

0

12
00

0

14
00

0

16
00

0 4/2
/2

2 4/4
/2

2 4/6
/2

2 4/8
/2

2

4/1
0/2

2

4/1
2/2

2

4/1
4/2

2

4/1
6/2

2

4/1
8/2

2

4/2
0/2

2

4/2
2/2

2

4/2
4/2

2

4/2
6/2

2

4/2
8/2

2

4/3
0/2

2 5/2
/2

2 5/4
/2

2 5/6
/2

2 5/8
/2

2

5/1
0/2

2

5/1
2/2

2

5/1
4/2

2

5/1
6/2

2

5/1
8/2

2

5/2
0/2

2

5/2
2/2

2

5/2
4/2

2

5/2
6/2

2

5/2
8/2

2

5/3
0/2

2 6/1
/2

2 6/3
/2

2 6/5
/2

2 6/7
/2

2 6/9
/2

2

6/1
1/2

2

6/1
3/2

2

6/1
5/2

2

6/1
7/2

2

6/1
9/2

2

6/2
1/2

2

6/2
3/2

2

6/2
5/2

2

6/2
7/2

2

6/2
9/2

2 7/1
/2

2 7/3
/2

2 7/5
/2

2 7/7
/2

2 7/9
/2

2

7/1
1/2

2

7/1
3/2

2

Li
fe

tim
e 

To
ta

l L
ik

es
28

 D
ay

s 
Pa

ge
 E

ng
ag

ed
 U

se
rs

28
 D

ay
s 

To
ta

l R
ea

ch
28

 D
ay

s 
To

ta
l I

m
pr

es
si

on
s

28
 D

ay
s 

Or
ga

ni
c 

im
pr

es
si

on
s

28
 D

ay
s 

Re
ac

h 
Of

 P
ag

e 
Po

st
s

28
 D

ay
s 

To
ta

l I
m

pr
es

si
on

s 
of

 y
ou

r p
os

ts
28

 D
ay

s 
To

ta
l C

on
su

m
er

s

28
 D

ay
s 

Pa
ge

 C
on

su
m

pt
io

ns
28

 D
ay

s 
To

ta
l V

id
eo

 V
ie

w
s

28
 D

ay
s 

Vi
de

o 
Re

pe
at

s

F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k
 S

ta
ti

s
ti
c

s
 4
/

1/
2

0
2

2
 -

 7
/

13
/

2
0

2
2



M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic
a

ti
o

n
s

50 45 40 35 30 25 20 15 10 5 0
4/

14
4/

28
5/

12
5/

26
6/

9
6/

23
7/

7

N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r 
R
e
a
d
e

rs
h

ip
 f

o
r 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

A
p

ri
l 

14
th

 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

A
p

ri
l 

2
8

th
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

M
a

y
 1

2
th

 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

M
a

y
 2

6
th

 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
u

n
e

 9
th

 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
u

n
e

 2
3

rd
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

J
u

ly
 7

th
 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

r

Q
u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 N
e

w
s

le
tt
e

rs

https://conta.cc/3uFOJdI
https://conta.cc/3rXaiVE
https://conta.cc/3MgQRPK
https://conta.cc/3LXl0mc
https://conta.cc/3xlMRH5
https://conta.cc/3nbzrZL
https://conta.cc/3yNPt2s


F
in
a

n
c

ia
ls

2
0

2
2

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 
E

x
p
e

n
s
e

s

S
ta
ff

 6
6

.7
9

%

A
u
c

ti
o

n
 4

.7
7

%

L
IB

 1
5

.1
0

%

D
O
L
A

 4
.7

7
%

W
e
b

s
it
e

 0
.9

5
%

O
ffi
c
e

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 1

.9
1%

S
e

m
in
a

rs
 1

.9
1%

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 3

.8
1%

S
ta
ff

A
u
c

ti
o

n
L
IB

D
O
L
A

W
e
b

si
te

O
ff

ic
e

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

S
e

m
in
a

rs
M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g



T
h
a

n
k

 y
o

u
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt
!

N
a

n
c

y
 B
a

il
e

y
 -

 D
ir
e
c

to
r@

la
k
e
c

o
u

n
ty
e
d
c

.c
o

m

M
e

ry
l 
A

u
n
e

 -
 A
d

m
in
@

la
k
e
c

o
u

n
ty
e
d
c

.c
0

m

W
e
b

s
it
e

 -
 l
a

k
e
c

o
u

n
ty
e
d
c

.c
o

m

F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k
 -

 L
e
a
d

v
il

le
 M
a

in
 S

tr
e
e

t 

https://www.lakecountyedc.com/leadvillemainstreet
https://www.facebook.com/LeadvilleMainSt
https://www.lakecountyedc.com/
https://cityofleadville.colorado.gov/
https://www.mainstreet.org/home
https://cdola.colorado.gov/main-street
https://cdola.colorado.gov/
https://www.mainstreet.org/home


Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA ITEM #8.A 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapters 
15.04, 15.08 and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by Reference 
the 2018 International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 
2018 International Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 
2018 International Fuel Gas Code, the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 
2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 International Fire Code; Making Specific 
Amendments Thereto; and Providing Penalties for Violations Thereof  
(Second Reading) 

PRESENTED BY:  Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 

__X__ORDINANCE 
_____RESOLUTION 
_____MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before City Council on first reading is Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022 (“Ordinance”), which will
adopt, by reference the following codes, with amendments:

(a) The 2018 International Building Code;

(b) The 2018 International Residential Code;

(c) The 2018 International Mechanical Code;

(d) The 2018 International Plumbing Code;

(e) The 2018 International Fuel Gas Code;

(f) The 2018 International Existing Building Code;

(g) The 2020 National Electrical Code; and

(h) The 2018 International Fire Code.

CityClerk
Highlight



Page 2 of 3 
 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

In 2017, the City adopted the following building and fire codes: 

(a) The 2012 International Building Code; 

(b) The 2012 International Residential Code; 

(c) The 2012 International Mechanical Code; 

(d) The 2012 International Plumbing Code; 

(e) The 2012 International Fuel Gas Code; 

(f) The 2012 International Existing Building Code; and 

(h) The 2012 International Fire Code. 

All building, mechanical, and plumbing permits for construction within the City are applied for at 
the Lake County Building and Land Use Department. Additionally, Lake County then conducts or 
oversees all inspections for those permits.  

Lake County recently adopted the following codes: 

(a) The 2018 International Building Code; 

(b) The 2018 International Residential Code; 

(c) The 2018 International Mechanical Code; 

(d) The 2018 International Plumbing Code; 

(e) The 2018 International Fuel Gas Code; 

(f) The 2018 International Existing Building Code; 

(g) The 2020 National Electrical Code1; and 

(h) The 2018 International Fire Code 
1 A change in state law requires the City to adopt the same National Electrical Code that is adopted by the State, which is the 2020 

National Electrical Code. 

As a result, Lake County has requested that the City adopt the 2018 versions of the International 
Codes and the 2020 version of the National Electrical Code so that the City is using the same 
codes as Lake County, ensuring efficiency in approving permits and conducting inspections. 

The major changes in the 2018 Codes (compared to the 2012 versions) are included as an 
attachment to this council communication form. 

The Ordinance also repeals the City’s building code board of appeals chapter (15.16) and replaces 
it with language stating that appeals of interpretations or decisions concerning the building code 
will be heard and decided on by the Lake County Board of Review. 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   
 

There must be a public hearing on this ordinance prior to its adoption on second and final reading. 
In addition, state law requires that notice of the public hearing on this ordinance be published twice 



Page 3 of 3 
 

in the newspaper prior to the hearing. Notice of the hearing on this ordinance was published in the 
Herald Democrat on July 14, 2022 and July 21, 2022.  
 

VI. RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that City Council adopt Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022 on second reading 
following a public hearing on the Ordinance.  

VII. PROPOSED MOTIONS:  

City Council Recommended Motion:  

“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022, An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting 
Chapters 15.04, 15.08 and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by Reference the 
2018 International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, the 
2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 
International Fire Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; and Providing Penalties for 
Violations Thereof on second reading.” 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022 
Redline of Ordinance No. 7 (showing changes since first reading) 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 7 

SERIES OF 2022 

 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REENACTING CHAPTERS 15.04, 15.08 
AND 15.16 OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT BY 
REFERENCE THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL EXISTING 
BUILDING CODE, THE 2020 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE, AND THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE; MAKING SPECIFIC AMENDMENTS THERETO; 
AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 
authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens of Leadville; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-16-201 et seq., the City may adopt any code by 
reference provided that the municipality provides proper notice and holds a public hearing prior to 
such adoption by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted by reference the following codes: the 2012 
International Building Code, the 2012 International Residential Code, the 2012 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2012 International Plumbing Code, the 2012 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2012 International Existing Building Code, and the 2012 International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, periodically it is necessary for the City to update those building and fire codes 
which are adopted by reference in order to remain technically current; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 12-115-107, the City is required to adopt the most 
recently adopted version of the National Electrical Code, which is currently the 2020 National 
Electrical Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt by reference the following codes: the 2018 
International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 
International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City held a public hearing on August 2, 2022, with proper notice 
provided, to consider adoption of such codes as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, copies of all codes adopted herein, will be available for inspection at the 
office of the Deputy City Clerk located at 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461; and 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 2 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds this ordinance and adoption of these codes by 
reference to be necessary in furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein by reference 
and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

Section 2. Chapter 15.04 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.04 entitled, 
“Technical Building Codes” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.04 

TECHNICAL BUILDING CODES 

Sec. 15.04.010. Codes Adopted. 

(a) The International Building Code (IBC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 35 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Code as if fully set out in this section 
with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.020. 

(b) The International Residential Code (IRC), 2018 Edition as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 44 inclusive and Appendix Chapters E, 
F and G, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville Residential 
Building Code (“IRC”) as if fully set out in this section with the additions, 
deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.030. 

(c) The International Mechanical Code (IMC), 20128 Edition as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 15 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Mechanical Code as if fully set out in this section 
with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.040. 

(d) The International Plumbing Code (IPC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, and as amended by the State of Colorado Plumbing Board 
and/or its successors, Chapters 1 through 14 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Plumbing Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.050. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 3 

(e) The International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 8 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Fuel Gas Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.060. 

(f) The International Existing Building Code (IEBC), 2018 Edition, as published by 
the International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 3516 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Existing Building Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.070. 

(g) The National Electrical Code (NEC), published by the National Fire Protection 
Association, One Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02269, the specific edition as 
promulgated, adopted, and amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board 
and/or its successors, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Electrical Code as if fully set out in this section. 

Sec. 15.04.020. Amendment to 2018 International Building Code. 

The 2018 IBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the City of Leadville, 
hereinafter referred to as “the IBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.2 entitled, “Permits” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.2. Permits. 

This Code shall apply to all permits applied for after the effective date of the 
Ordinance adopting by reference the 2018 IBC. 

(3) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.3 entitled, “Preemption” to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 4 

Sec. 101.2.3. Preemption. 

Whenever State law or State regulation imposes higher standards than are required 
by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher standard shall 
govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than the standards 
imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any governmental body, the 
standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IBC Section 101.4.3 (Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.3. Plumbing. 

The provisions of the International Plumbing Code shall apply to the installation, 
alteration, repair, and replacement of plumbing systems, including equipment, 
appliances, fixtures, fittings, appurtenances, and where connected to a water or 
sewer system and all aspects of a medical gas systems. 

(5) IBC Section 101.4.4 (Property Maintenance) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IBC Section 101.4 (Referenced Codes) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Section 101.4.8 entitled “Electrical” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.8. Electrical. 

The provisions of the National Electrical Code, the specific addition as adopted and 
amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board, and or its successor(s), shall 
apply to the installation of electrical systems, including alterations, repairs, 
replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings, and appurtenances thereto. 

(7) IBC Section 102.6 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.6. Existing Structure. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as otherwise specifically 
provided in this code, the International Existing Code or the International Fire 
Code. 

(8) IBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and its corresponding 
subsections are hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(9) IBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(10) IBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 5 

(11) IBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of the following: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning Department to ensure 
compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise exempted by 
this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required 
for the building if such work would normally require permits.  Exemption from the 
permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any 
work to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this code or any 
other laws or ordinances of this jurisdiction. 

The area of an exempt building in 105.2 of this section, shall be changed to two 
hundred (200) square feet to conform to that allowed under Section Rl05.2 of the 
International Residential Code. 

The following work will not require a permit: 

1) Drywall installation under two hundred (200) square feet. 
2) Window replacement not requiring change of headers or structural 

members. 
3) Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 

feet. 
4) Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 

existing structures. 

(12) IBC Section 107.1 (General) is hereby amended with a new subsection 107.1.1 
entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications” to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 107.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

In accordance with Section 107.1 (General), the Building Official shall require 
plans, computations, and specifications to be prepared, designed, and stamped by 
an engineer or architect licensed in the State of Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations that are not addressed within the IBC. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 6 

2) Roof framing or wall framing is "other than standard" construction 
not conforming to the requirements of Chapters 16 and 23. 

3) All Buildings classified in Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-
4, and S occupancies. 

4) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted 
which are severely lacking in information showing compliance with 
the code, must be designed, and resubmitted by a professional 
draftsperson.   

(13) IBC Section 107.2.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

Sec. 107.2.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be dimensioned and drawn on suitable material. 
Electronic media documents are permitted to be submitted where approved by the 
Building Official. Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate 
the location, nature, and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will 
conform to the provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, as determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall provide the name of the person who prepared 
such plans and/or specifications. 

(14) IBC Section 107.3.3 (Phased Approval) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 107.3.3. Phased Approval. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a permit for the construction of 
foundations or any other part of a building or structure before the construction 
documents for the whole building or structure have been filed complying with 
pertinent requirements of this code. The holder of such permit for the foundation or 
other parts of a building or structure shall proceed at the holder’s own risk with the 
building operation and without assurance that a permit for the entire structure will 
be granted. 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the first permit was issued, if the remaining permits are issued within one 
year of the adoption of the new code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 7 

(15) IBC Section 108.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.3. Temporary Power. 

The Building Official is authorized to give permission to temporarily supply and 
use power in part of an electric installation before such installation has been fully 
completed and the final certificate of completion has been issued. The part covered 
by the temporary certificate shall comply with the requirements specified for 
temporary lighting, heat or power in the National Electrical Code or its successor 
as may be adopted by the State of Colorado Electrical Board. 

(16) IBC Section 109.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby repealed in its entirety and 
replaced to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix A. 

(17) IBC Section 109.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be no less than twice the normal permit 
fee for the work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections. 

(18) IBC Section 109.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official is authorized to establish a refund policy. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than eighty percent 
(80%) of the permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in 
accordance with this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing 
within one hundred eighty (180) days of the original fee payment. If a plan review 
was charged and appropriate plan review performed, no portion of this part of fee 
is refundable. 

(19) IBC Section 110.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 8 

Sec. 110.1. General. 

Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain visible and able 
to be accessed for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an 
inspection shall not be constructed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions 
of this code or of other ordinances of the City. Inspections presuming to give 
authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this code or other ordinances of the 
city shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of the owner or the owner’s authorized 
agent to cause the work to remain visible and able to be accessed for inspection 
purposes. Neither the Building Official nor the city shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix D. 

(20) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.3. Required Inspections. 

The Building Official, upon notification, shall make the inspections set forth in 
Sections 110.3.1 through 110.3.12. 

(21) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended with the addition of a 
new subsection 110.3.12. entitled, “Reinspection” to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.3.12. Reinspection. 

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected and required work that has been requested by the Building Official is not 
complete or requires an additional inspection. 

(22) IBC Section 111.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 111.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. The temporary certificate of occupancy 
is valid for sixty (60) days, with one (1) renewal of sixty (60) days permitted at the 
discretion of the Building Official. 

(23) IBC Section 113 (Board of Appeals), and its subsections, are amended by replacing 
“Board of Appeals” with the “Board of Review.” 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 9 

(24) IBC Section 502.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 502.1. Address Identification. 

New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address identification. 
Each character shall be not less than five (5) inches in height and not less than one 
half inch (1/2 inch) in width. 

(25) IBC Section 901.5 (Acceptance Tests) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new subsection 901.5.1 entitled “Special Inspector” to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.5.1. Special Inspector. 

All fire protection systems required by this chapter shall be inspected and approved 
by a special inspector. The inspector shall be an employee of the fire department 
having jurisdiction or another qualified individual with prior approval of the 
Building Official. Inspections and approvals shall be documented and submitted as 
per Chapter 17 of this code. 

(26) IBC Section 1301.1.1 (Criteria) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1301.1.1. Criteria. 

Buildings shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

(27) IBC Section 1505.1 (General), Table 105.1 (Minimum Roof Covering 
Classification for Types of Construction) is hereby amended by the deletion of 
superscript “a.” 

(28) IBC Section 1608 (Snow Loads) shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1608. Snow Loads. 

Snow load calculations shall be based on values provided for in Appendix E. 

(29) IBC Chapter 27 (Electrical) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(30) IBC Section 2901.1 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 2901.1. Scope. 

The provisions of this chapter and the International Plumbing Code shall govern 
the design, construction, erection, and installation of plumbing components, 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 10 

appliances, equipment, and systems used in buildings and structures covered by this 
code. Toilet and bathing rooms shall be constructed in accordance with Section 
1209. The International Fire Code, the International Property Maintenance Code 
and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the use and maintenance of 
plumbing components, appliance, equipment, and systems. The International 
Existing Building Code and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the 
alteration, repair, relocation, replacement, and addition of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems. 

Sec. 15.04.030. Amendment to 2018 International Residential Code. 

The 2018 IRC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IRC Section R101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.1. Title. 

These provisions shall be known as the Residential Code for One and Two-Family 
Dwellings of the City of Leadville, and shall be cited as such and will be referred 
to herein as “the IRC” and “this code.” 

(2) IRC Section R101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.2. Scope. 

The provisions of this code shall be apply to the construction, alteration, movement, 
enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, removal 
and demolition of detached one and two-family dwellings and townhouses not more 
than three (3) stories above grade plan in height with a separate means of egress 
and their accessory structures not more than three (3) stories above grade plane in 
height. 

Exemptions:  

1. Existing building permits prior to the effective date of this code, along with 
all approved extensions, shall remain in effect and shall be subject to the 
International Residential Code, 2012 edition. 

2. Existing buildings undergoing repair, alterations or additions, and change 
of occupancy shall be permitted to comply with the International 
Residential Code, 2012 Edition, if the work was originally permitted under 
this code within one year of the adoption of the 2018 code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 11 

(3) IRC Section R101.2.2 (Other Laws) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R101.2.2. Other Laws. 

The provision of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, 
state, or federal law. Whenever a State law or regulation imposes higher standards 
than are required by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher 
standard shall govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than 
the standards imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any 
governmental body, the standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IRC Section R102.7 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R102.7. Existing Structures. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as is specifically covered in 
this code, or the International Fire Code, or as is deemed necessary by the Building 
Official for the general safety and welfare of the occupants and the public.  

(5) IRC Section R103 (Department of Building Safety) is hereby amended to change 
the title to Department of Building. 

(6) IRC Section R104.8 (Liability) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R104.8. Liability. 

The Building Official, member of the board of appeals or employee charged with 
the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction in good faith and 
without malice in the discharge of the duties required by this code or other pertinent 
law or ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered civilly or criminally liable 
personally and is hereby relieved from personal liability for any damage accruing 
to persons or property as a result of any act or by reason of an act or omission in 
the discharge of official duties. 

The issuance of a permit based on plans, specifications and other data shall not 
prevent the Building Official from thereafter requiring the correction of errors on 
said plans, specifications, and other data, or from preventing building operations 
being carried on thereunder, when in violation of this code, or any other Ordinance, 
or from collecting additional fees as appropriate. Nothing in this code is intended 
to authorize any person or agency with development review authority, other than 
the Building Official, to deny the issuance of a building permit hereunder. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 12 

The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all of the 
provisions of this code; however, a guarantee that all building(s) and all structures 
have been constructed in accordance with all of the provisions of this code is neither 
intended nor implied. 

(7) IRC Section R105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby as follows with 
deletions shown in strikethrough text and additions shown in underlined text: 

Sec. R105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Building: 

* * * 

2. Fences not over 7 feet (2134 mm) high. Fences six (6) feet or less in 
height. 

* * * 

11. Drywall installation in buildings under two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

12. Window replacement whereby installing code compliant windows 
that do not require a change of headers or structural members. 

13. Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

14. Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 
existing structures. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning Department to ensure 
compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise exempted by 
this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required 
for the building if such work would normally require permits. 

(8) IRC Section R106.1.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is amended as 
follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 13 

Sec. R106.1.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be drawn upon suitable material. Electronic media 
documents are permitted to be submitted where approved to the Building Official. 
Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature, 
and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the 
provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, as 
determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall give the name of the person who prepared such 
plans and specifications. 

(9) IRC Section R106.3.2 (Previous Approvals) is hereby amended to add a new 
paragraph as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.2. Previous Approvals. 

*     *     * 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the immediately preceding permit was issued, if the remaining permits are 
issued within one year of the adoption of the new code. 

(10) IRC Section R106.3 (Examination of Documents) is hereby amended with the 
addition of a new subsection R106.3.4 entitled “Responsibility for Preparation of 
Plans and Specifications” to read as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.4. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications to be 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed in the State of 
Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations that are not addressed within the International Residential 
Code. 

2) Wall or roof framing is "other than standard" construction not conforming 
to the requirements of Chapters 6 and 8, 

3) Foundations are located in designated dipping bedrock areas and per 
Sections R403.1.8; 

4) Metal buildings and structures are constructed; or 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 14 

5) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted which are 
severely lacking in information showing compliance with the code, must be 
designed and resubmitted by a professional draftsperson. 

(11) IRC Section R107.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended by the replacement of 
reference to the “NFPA 70” with “the National Electrical Code as may be revised 
by the State of Colorado Electrical Board.” 

(12) IRC Section R108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. R108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

Permit fees shall be as determined by Appendix A. 

(13) IRC Section R108.5 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.5. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance with 
this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing within 180 days of 
the original fee payment. If a plan review fee was charged and appropriate plan 
review performed, no portion of this part of the fee is subject to refund. 

(14) IRC Section R108.6 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.6. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be twice the normal permit fee for the 
work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections necessary. 

(15) IRC Section R109 (Inspections) and all of its subsections are hereby repealed in its 
entirety and replaced as follows: 

R109.1. General  

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix D. 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 15 

R109.2 Reinspection.   

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected, and required work that has been requested by the Building Official, is 
not complete and requires an additional inspection. 

R109.3 Sanitation.   

At the time of construction start-up, approved sanitary facilities are required at all 
construction jobs.  The number of toilets shall be adequate for the number of 
construction workers, but no less than the number deemed necessary by the 
Building Official, or as called for in the adopted plumbing code. If a construction 
site becomes inactive for a period of time, the portable toilet may be removed 
during this period of inactivity. Temporary toilets or use of a neighboring facility 
may be used if approved by the Building Official. 

R109.4 Dumpsters.   

Dumpsters or equivalent containers of adequate size to handle trash and unwanted 
materials from the permitted project shall be provided. 

(16) IRC Section R110.4 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R110.4 Temporary occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit provided the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

1. One bathroom with lavatory, water closet, tub or shower, and 
flooring has been completed. 

2. A food preparation area, with sink, hot and cold water, and flooring 
has been completed. 

3. Electrical system is complete for areas that are to be finished, or 
blanked off in unfinished areas. 

4. Egress windows where required by this code are installed. 

5. A heating system is operational as required by Section R303.9, 
Required Heating. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 16 

6. The exterior is complete and watertight with siding, trim, flashing 
and a roof. 

7. Handrails and guardrails are in place. 

8.  All life-safety systems as determined necessary by the Building 
Official are in place. 

(17) IRC Section R112 (Board of Appeals), and all subsections thereof, is hereby 
amended with the replacement of “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.”  

(18) IRC Section R202 (Definitions) is hereby amended with the addition of the 
following definition of “bedroom” to appear in alphabetical order with the existing 
definitions: 

Sec. R202. Definitions. 

* * * 

BEDROOM. A room, which is designed as a sleeping room, in Group R 
occupancies or a room, or area that can be used as a sleeping room and contains a 
closet. 

* * * 

(19) IRC Section R301.2 (Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria) is hereby amended 
with the repeal and replacement of Table R301.2 to read as follows: 

 

(20) IRC Section R301.2.3 (Snow Loads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 17 

Sec. R301.2.3. Snow Loads. 

Snow load values shall be determined by the data in Appendix E. 

(21) IRC Section R301.5 (Live Load), Table R301.5, is hereby amended by the deletion 
of the data in rows “Balconies (exterior) and decks” and “Fire Escapes”, the 
addition of a footnote (i) in such rows, and the addition of a footnote (i) to read as 
follows: 

(j) The minimum uniformly distributed live loads for exterior balconies, decks 
and fire escapes shall be as required for roof snow loads with pitches 
between 0 and 3:12 at the elevation listed in Appendix E, when such 
structures are exposed to snow loading. Otherwise, a live load of 60 psf shall 
be used.  For decks subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the 
design load shall be determined from the formula in Section 7.9, ASCE 7-
02, published by the American Society of Civil Engineers. 

(22) IRC Section R302.5.1 (Opening Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.5.1. Opening Protection. 

Openings from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping purposes 
shall not be permitted. Other openings between the garage and residence shall be 
equipped with a solid wood door not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) in thickness or 
solid or honeycomb-core steel doors not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) thick, 
equipped with a self-closing or automatic-closing device. 

(23) IRC Section R302.7 (Under-Stair Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.7. Under-Stair Protection. 

Enclosed space under stairs that is accessed by a door or access panel shall have 
walls, under-stair surface and any soffits protected on the enclosed side with 5/8-
inch Type X gypsum board. 

(24) IRC Section R303.1(Habitable Rooms) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Exception # 4 to read as follows: 

Sec. R303.1. Habitable Rooms. 

* * * 

4. Where a room is designed specifically for a home theater, the 
provisions of this section need not be required provided the conditions of 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 18 

Exceptions 1. and 2. above are met.  A separate means of egress is not 
required for these rooms, regardless of whether they are located in a 
basement or elsewhere, unless the seating capacity exceeds ten (10) persons. 

(25) IRC Section 303.7 (Interior Stairway Illumination) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. R303.7. Interior Stairway Illumination. 

Interior stairways shall be provided with an artificial light source to illuminate the 
landings and treads. The light source shall be capable of illuminating treads and 
landings of not less than one (1) footcandle (11 lux) as measured at the center of 
treads and landings. There shall be a wall switch at each floor level to control the 
light switch where the stairway has six or more risers, as required by the current 
NEC. 

Exception: A switch is not required where remote, central, or automatic control of 
lighting is provided. 

(26) IRC Section R309.5 (Fire Sprinklers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R309.5. Fire Sprinklers. 

Private garages may be protected by fire sprinklers where the garage wall has been 
designed based on Table R302.1(2). Note a. Sprinklers in garages shall be 
connected to an automatic sprinklers system that complies with Section P2094. 
Garage sprinklers shall be residential sprinklers or quick-response sprinklers, 
designed to provide a density of 0.05 gpm/ft. Garage doors shall not be considered 
obstructions with respect to sprinkler placement. If such sprinklers are installed, 
they must meet the standards of this code. 

(27) IRC Section R311.7.5.1 (Risers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.1. Risers. 

The maximum riser height shall be eight (8) inches. The riser height shall be 
measured vertically between leading edges of the adjacent treads. The greatest riser 
height within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). Risers shall be vertical or sloped from the underside of the nosing of the 
tread above at any angle not more than thirty (30) degrees (0.51 rad) from the 
vertical. At open risers, openings located more than thirty (30) inches (762 mm), as 
measured vertically, to the floor or grade below shall not permit the passage of 4-
inch diameter (102 mm) sphere. Exterior open risers are permitted provided the 
opening between treads does not permit the passage of a 6-inch diameter sphere. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 19 

Exceptions: 

1. The openings between adjacent treads is not limited on spiral stairways. 

2. The riser height of spiral stairways shall be in accordance with Section 
R311.7.10.1. 

(28) IRC Section R311.7.5.2 (Treads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.2. Treads. 

The minimum tread depth shall be nine (9) inches. The tread depth shall be 
measured horizontally between the vertical planes of the foremost projection of 
adjacent treads and at a right angle to the tread’s leading edge. The greatest tread 
depth within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). 

(29) IRC Section R312.1.3 (Opening Limitations), Exception 1 is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Sec. R312.1.3. Opening Limitations. 

* * * 

Exceptions: 

1. Required guards on open sides of exterior stairways, raised floor areas, 
balconies, and porches shall have immediate rails or ornamental closures, 
which do not allow passage of a sphere of six (6) inches or more in diameter. 

(30) IRC Section R313.1 (Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.1. Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in townhomes. If such sprinkler 
systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 

(31) IRC Section R313.2 (One-and two-family dwellings automatic sprinkler systems) 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 20 

Sec. R313.2. One – and Two- Family Dwellings Automatic Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in one- or two-family dwellings. If 
such sprinkler systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 

(32) IRC Section 315.2.2 (Alterations, repairs and additions) is amended to delete 
exception 2 in its entirety. 

(33) IRC Section R319.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R319.1. Address Identification. 

All new buildings shall have address characters identifying the property address, 
displayed and plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the 
property.   Address characters shall be affixed to the side of the building facing the 
street on which the property is addressed or affixed to a sign or post located adjacent 
to the street on which the property is addressed.  Address numbers shall be of a 
color and/or material that contrast with the background on which they are mounted. 

Address characters affixed to the building or to a sign or post shall be at least 5 
inches in height.  For buildings located more than 150 feet from the shoulder or 
curb of the street, there shall be, address characters affixed to a sign or post. This 
sign or post shall be located 25 feet or less from the shoulder or curb of the street 
and shall have address characters at least five inches in height. 

The Building Official may approve alternate building address signage. 

(34) IRC Section R404.1.3 (Concrete Foundation Walls) is hereby amended with the 
addition of the following paragraph: 

Sec. R404.1.3. Concrete Foundation Walls. 

* * * 

Minimum reinforcing for concrete foundation walls that are not specified by a 
Professional Engineer or not designed according to the tables listed in this section 
shall have grade 40, #4 bars on 24-inch centers both horizontally and vertically. 

(35) IRC Section R905.2.7 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.2.7. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 21 

polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(36) IRC Section R905.3.3 (Underlayment) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.3.3. Underlayment. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(37) IRC Section R905.4.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.4.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(38) IRC Section R905.5.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.5.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(39) IRC Section 905.6.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 22 

 

Sec. R905.6.3.1 Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(40) IRC Section R905.7.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.7.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(41) IRC Section R905.8.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905..3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(42) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), Table 
N1002.1.2, Row 7 and 8 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

CLIMATE 
ZONE 

FENESTRATION 
U-FACTOR 

SKYLIGHT 
U-FACTOR 

GLAZED 
FENESTRATION 

SHGC 

CEILING 
R-VALUE 

WOOD 
FRAME 

WALL R-
VALUE 

MASS 
WALL R-
VALUE 

FLOOR 
R- 
VALUE 

BASEMENT 
WALL 
R-VALUE 

SLAB 
R-VALUE 
& DEPTH 

7 and 8 0.30 [j] 0.55 NR 49 20 + 5[h] or 
13 + 10 

19/21 38[g] 15/19 10, 4 ft 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 23 

 
(43) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), Table 

N1002.1.2, is hereby amended with the addition of a new footnote (j) to read as 
follows: 
 
(j) A maximum U-factor of 0.32 shall apply in climate Zones 3 through 8 to 
vertical fenestration products installed in buildings located either: 

1.   Above 4,000 feet in elevation, or 
2.   In windborne debris regions where protection of openings is 

required by Section R301.2.1.2 

(44) IRC Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) (Testing) is amended to add the following 
sentence to the initial paragraph:  

Mitigation of testing results are specified in the Lake County Building Department 
blower door testing policy. 

(45) IRC Section M1307.5 (Electrical Appliances) is hereby amended with a new title, 
“Appliances”. M1307.5 (Appliances) is further amended with the addition of two 
new subsections to read as follows: 

Sec. M1307.5.1 Electrical appliances. 

 Electrical appliances shall be installed in accordance with Chapters 14, 15, 19, 20, 
and 34 through 43 of this code. 

Sec. M1307.5.2 LPG appliances.   

LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, upon 
approval of the Building Official. 

(46) Chapter 14 (Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances) is hereby amended 
with the addition of a new section M1416 entitled, “Unvented Room Heaters” to 
read as follows: 

Sec. M1416. Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwellings and 
townhouses. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 24 

(47) IRC Section 1502.4.4 (Dryer Exhaust Duct Power Ventilators) is hereby amended 
with the addition of a new subsection 1502.4.4.1 entitled, “Specified Length” to 
read as follows: 

Sec. 1502.4.4.1. Specified Length. 

The code official shall be provided with a copy of installation instructions for the 
make and model of dryer. 

(48) IRC Section G2406.2 (303.3) (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by deletion 
of Exceptions 3 and 4 and by the addition of a new Exception 7 to read as follows: 

Sec. G206.2 (303.3). Prohibited Locations. 

7. LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, 
upon approval of the Building Official. 

(49)  IRC Section G2417.4.1 (406.4.1) (Test Pressure) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. G2417.4.1 (406.4.1). Test Pressure. 

The test pressure to be used shall not be less than one and one half time the proposed 
maximum working pressure but not less than 15 psig, irrespective of design 
pressure.  Where the test pressure exceeds 125 psig, the test pressure shall not 
exceed a value that produces a hoop stress in the piping greater than fifty percent 
(50%) of the specified minimum yield strength of the pipe. 

(50) IRC Section G2445 (General) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. G2445  General. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwelling units and 
townhouses. 

(51) IRC Section P2503.5.1 (Rough Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. P2503.5.1. Rough Plumbing. 

DWV systems shall be tested on completion of the rough piping installation by 
water or by air, without evidence of leakage. Either test shall be applied to the 
drainage system in its entirety or in sections after rough-in piping has been installed, 
as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 25 

1. Water Test. Each section shall be filled with water to a point not less than 
five (5) feet (1524 mm) above the highest fitting connection in that section, 
or to the highest point in the competed system. Water shall be held in the 
section under test for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. The system shall 
prove leak free by visual inspection. 

2. Air test. The portion under test shall be maintained at a gauge pressure of 
five (5) pounds per square inch (psi) (34 kPa) or ten (10) inches of mercury 
column (34 kPa). This pressure shall be held without introduction of 
additional air for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. 

(52) IRC Section P2603.5.1 (Sewer Depth) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. P2603.5.1. Sewer Depth. 

Building sewers that connect to private sewer disposal systems shall be installed 
deep enough to protect from physical damage and the slope must be adequate to 
eliminate the possibilities of freezing. 

(53) IRC Section E3401 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection E3401.5 entitled, “Meter Protection” to read as follows: 

Sec. E3401.5. Meter Protection. 

The Building Official may require a utility-owned electric meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(54) IRC Section E3703 (Required Branch Circuits) is hereby amended with the addition 
of a new subsection E3703.5 entitled, “Electric Vehicle Charging Branch Circuit” 
to read as follows: 

Sec. E3703.5. Electric Vehicle Charging Branch Circuit. 

All single-family homes shall be made EV-ready for charging by preinstalling 
conduit or conductors during construction of the house.  Designate enough space 
and capacity on the main electrical panel or a garage subpanel for at least 40 amp, 
240V dedicated branch circuit.  Install conduit or conductors linking the electrical 
panel to the future location of the EV charger, near where cars will be parked in the 
garage or driveway. The Building Official may grant an exception in unique 
situations if a significant hardship is determined in acquiring the level of service 
necessary to meet this requirement. 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 26 

Sec. 15.04.040. Amendment to 2018 International Mechanical Code. 

The 2018 IMC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IMC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Mechanical Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IMC” or as “this code.” 

(2) IMC Section 106.5.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IMC Section 106.5.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(4) IMC Section 109 (Means of Appeal) and all of its subsections are amended by 
replacing the phrase “Board of Appeal” to “Board of Review.” 

(5) IMC Section 301.2 (Energy Utilization) is amended to read:  

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 27 

Sec. 301.2  Energy Utilization.  

Heating, ventilating and air-conditioning systems of all structures shall be 
designated and installed for efficient utilization of energy in accordance with the 
International Energy Conservation Code, 2018 edition. 

(6) IMC Section 1204.2 (Required Thickness) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1204.2. Required Thickness. 

Hydronic piping shall be insulated to the thickness required by the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

Sec. 15.04.050. Amendment to 2018 International Plumbing Code. 

The 2018 IPC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Plumbing Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IPC” or “this code.” 

(2) IPC Section 106.6.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IPC Section 312.1 (Required Tests) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 312.1. Required Tests. 

The permit holder shall make the appliable tests prescribed in Sections 312.2 
through 312.10 to determine compliance with the provisions of this code. The 
permit holder shall give reasonable advance notice to the code official when the 
plumbing work is ready for tests. The equipment, material, power and labor 
necessary for the inspection and test shall be furnished by the permit holder and he 
or she shall be responsible for determining that the work will withstand the test 
pressure prescribed in the following tests. Plumbing system piping shall be tested 
with either water or by air. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 28 

(4) IPC Section 312.3 (Drainage and Vent Air Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.3. Drainage and Vent Air Test. 

An air test shall be made by forcing air into the system until there is a uniform 
gauge pressure of 5 psi (34.6 kPA) or sufficient to balance a 10-inch (254 mm) 
column of mercury. This pressure shall be held for a test period of note less than 15 
minutes. Any adjustments to the test pressure required because of changes in 
ambient temperatures or the seating of gaskets shall be made prior to the beginning 
of the test periods. 

(5) IPC Section 312.4 (Drainage and Vent Final Test) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IPC Section 312.5 (Water Supply System Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.5. Water Supply System Test. 

Upon completion of a section of or the entire water supply system, the system, or 
portion completed, shall be tested and proved tight under a water pressure not less 
than the working pressure of the system or by an air test of not less than 50 psi (344 
kPA). This pressure shall be held for not less than 15 minutes. The water utilized 
for tests shall be obtained from a potable source of supply. The required tests shall 
be performed in accordance with this section and Section 107. 

(7) IPC Section 903.1 (Roof Extension) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 903.1. Roof Extension. 

Open vent pipes that extend through a roof shall be terminated not less than 18 
inches above the roof, or six inches above the anticipated snow accumulation, 
except that where a roof is to be used for any purpose other than weather protection, 
the vent extensions shall terminate not less than 7 feet (2134 mm) above the roof. 

Sec. 15.04.060. Amendment to 2018 International Fuel Gas Code. 

The 2018 IFGC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IFGC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 29 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Fuel Gas Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IFGC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFGC Section 102 (Applicability) is hereby amended with a new subsection 102.12 
entitled, “Utility-Owned Gas Meters” to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.12. Utility-Owned Gas Meters. 

The Building Official may require that a utility-owned gas meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(3) IFGC Section 103 (Department of Inspection) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IFGC Section 104.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 104.1. General. 

The Leadville Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce the 
provisions of this code. 

(5) IFGC Section 106.6.2 (Fee schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be provided for as in Appendix B. 

(6) IFGC Section 106.6.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 30 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(7) IFGC Section 109 (Means of Appeal), and all subsections thereto, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with Board of Review.” 

(8) IFGC Section 201.3 (Terms Defined in Other Codes) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 201.3. Terms Defined in Other Codes. 

Where terms are not defined in this code and are defined in the National Electrical 
Code, International Building Code, International Fire Code, International 
Mechanical Code, or International Plumbing Code, such terms shall have meanings 
ascribed to them as in those codes. 

(9) IFGC Section 303.3 (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by deleting 
Exceptions 3 and 4. 

Sec. 15.04.070. Amendment to 2018 International Existing Building Code. 

The 2018 IEBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IEBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Existing Building Code of City of 
Leadville, Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IEBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IEBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and all of its subsections are 
hereby deleted. 

(3) IEBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IEBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(5) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of new paragraph to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 31 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for the proposed work does not 
preclude any required approval from the City to insure compliance with zoning, 
use, and property setbacks.  Unless otherwise exempted by this Code, separate 
plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required for the building if 
such work would normally require permits.  Exemption from the permit 
requirements of this Code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any work 
to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this Code or any other 
laws, ordinances or resolutions of this jurisdiction. 

(6) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended further by 
adding to the Building section for projects that do not require a work permit to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

Building. 

* * * 

7. Door and door frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
8. Window replacement whereby replacing with code compliant windows and 

window frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
9. Insulation installation less than 200 square feet in existing structures. 
10. Removal and replacement of exterior siding materials less than 200 square 

feet. 

(7) IEBC Section 106.1 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection 106.1.1 entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and 
Specifications” to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed to practice in 
the State of Colorado when, but not limited to the following structure designs: 

1. Foundations are constructed on caissons or any other method other than 
spread footings. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 32 

2. Roof framing or wall framing is other than conventional light-frame 
construction in accordance with AP&PA Wood Frame Construction 
Manual (WFCM). 

3. Buildings in which confirmation is required of beam sizes and spans, 
loading, or any structural element affecting the integrity of the building 
unless otherwise demonstrated to the Building Official’s satisfaction. 

4. Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted by a 
professional draftsperson. 

(8) IEBC Section 108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

On buildings, gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees provided for in Appendices A and B. 

(9) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to an investigation fee as established by Section 108.4.1. 

(10) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby further 
amended with the addition of a new subsection 108.4.1. entitled, “Investigation 
Fee” to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4.1. Investigation Fee. 

An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be collected whether or not 
a permit is then or subsequently issued.  The investigation fee shall be equal to the 
amount of the permit fee required by this code and per the Schedule of Fees as set 
forth in the Appendices to this Chapter 15.04 of the Municipal Code.  The minimum 
investigation fee shall be the same as the minimum fee set forth in the Schedule of 
Fees as provided for in Appendices A and B.  The payment of such investigation 
fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of this 
code nor from any penalty prescribed by law. 

(11) IEBC Section 108.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 33 

Sec. 108.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of any fee paid hereunder which 
was erroneously paid or collected if an audit of the project has been performed and 
the audit shows that the fees were paid incorrectly.  If an owner or owner's 
representative feels that a fee is erroneously paid or collected, an audit may be 
required by the Building Official.  The audit shall be performed by an auditor 
selected by the City.  The project owner or owner's representative shall pay the cost 
of the audit. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance 
with this code. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for which a plan review fee 
has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan reviewing is done. 

The Building Official shall not authorize refunding of any fee paid except on 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the 
date of fee payment. 

(12) IEBC Section 109.6 (Approval Required) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
109.6.1 entitled, “Inspection Record Card” to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.6.1. Inspection Record Card. 

An inspection record card shall be issued to the holder of a building permit or an 
agent of the permit holder to allow the Building Official to readily make entries 
thereon regarding the inspection approval of work.  The building permit holder shall 
keep this inspection record card available to the Building Official on the project site 
until final building inspection approval has been granted by the Building Official. 

(13) IEBC Section 110.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. 

(14) IEBC Section 112 (Board of Appeals) and its accompanying subsections, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.” 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 34 

(15) IEBC Section 112.1 (General) is hereby amended to reads as follows: 

Sec. 112.1. General. 

Appeals from the decision of the Building Official shall be filed with the Board of 
Review by filing a written appeal within sixty (60) days after the date of the 
Building Official’s decision. 

(16) IEBC Section 1301.3.2 (Compliance with Other Codes) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 1301.3.2. Compliance with Other Codes. 

Buildings that are evaluated in accordance with this section shall comply with the 
International Fire Code. 

(17) IEBC Section 1401.2 (Conformance) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1401.2. Conformance. 

The building shall be safe for human occupancy as determined by the International 
Fire Code. Any repair, alteration, or change of occupancy undertaken within the 
moved structure shall comply with the requirements of this code applicable to the 
work being performed. Any field-fabricated elements shall comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Code or the International Residential 
Code as applicable.  

(18) IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding American Society of 
Mechanical Engineers (“ASME”) referenced standards is amended to read as 
follows: 

 

ASME 

Standard 
reference 
number Title 

Referenced 
in code 

section number 
ASME/A17.1 
2019/CSA B44-07 

Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators – with A17.1a/CSA B44a-
08 Addenda 

 

410.8.2, 705.1.2, 902.1.2  

 

A17.3—2005 as 

 

Safety Code for Existing Elevators 
 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 35 

implemented in 7 
CCR1101 – 8, 
Section 2-6-2 

and Escalators 902.1.2 

 

A18.1--2017 

 

Safety Standard for Platform Lifts 
and Stairway Lifts 410.8.3, 705.1.3 

(19) IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding International Code Council, 
Inc., is amended with the deletion of any reference to the International Property 
Management Code. 

Sec. 15.04.080. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the Codes adopted in this Chapter.  In addition to 
other sanctions set forth in the adopted Codes, a person or entity who violates the provisions 
of any such Code shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in Section 1.20.010 of this 
Code.  Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall immediately 
cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property, or to 
the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state the conditions 
under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 
shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any person who 
shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop work order, 
except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 
condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

 

Sec. 15.04.090. Appendices. 

 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 36 

Appendix A 

BUILDING PERMIT FEE CALCULATION 

Cost per square foot figures taken from the ICC’s  publication, Building 
Valuation Data & will be updated annually 

Type of Space Area per square foot Cost per square 
foot 

Value 

Living (Wood 
Frame) 

    X   $150.87   

Living (IRC 
Modular) 

    X   $75.44   

Unfinished 
Basement 

    X   $23.20   

Garage / 
Storage 

    X   $60.43   

Deck / Porch / 
Carport 

    X   $60.43   

Remodel 
(Materials) 

    X   2 (for labor)   

          
Total Value   

  

__________ + (_______________ X ________________)      =   _____________________ 

Initial Fee         cost per additional    # of additional      BASE PERMIT FEE 

______________+    0.65   x ___________________     =  _____________________ 

Base Permit Fee       PLAN REVIEW FEE 

             

     TOTAL FEE   _________________ 

         Driveway    _ _______________ 

             GRAND TOTAL _________________ 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 37 

Other Fees: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

1   
2 Reinspection fee $50.00/Hr. 
3 Consultation fee $$50Hr. 
4 Additional plan review required by changes, additions or 

revisions 
$62.50 base fee 

+ $62.50 per 
half hour of 

review 
5 Outside consultant for plan review and/or inspections Cost + 20% 
6 Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) $150.00 for 90 

days 
7 Solar Permit – Residential $150.00 
8 Solar Permit - Commercial $300.00 
9 Appeals $50.00 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 38 

APPENDIX B 

Schedule of Permit Fees for Work Done Under: 

a) International Fuel Gas Code 

b) International Mechanical Code 

c) International Plumbing Code 

d) Roofing Permit 

 
 Table 1-A Building Permit Fees 

Total Valuation Fees Based on  2018 IRC Appendix L 

$1.00 to $500.00 $24.00  

$501.00 to 
$2,000.00 

$24.00 for the first $500.00 plus $3.00 for each additional 
$100.00 or fraction of, to and including the $2,000.00 

$2,001.00 to 
$40,000.00 

$69.00 for the first $2,000.00 plus $11.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$40,000.00 

$40,001.00 to 
$100,00.00 

$487.00 for the first $40,000.00 plus $9.10 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$100,000.00 

$100,001.00 to 
$500,000.00 

$1,027.00 for the first $100,000.00 plus $7.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$500,000.00 

$500,001.00 to 
$1,000,000.00 

$3,827.00 for the first $500,000.00 plus $5.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$1,000,000.00 

$1,000,001.00 to 
$5,000,000.00 

$6,327.00 for the first $1,000,000.00 plus $3.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$5,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 and 
up 

$18,327.00 for the first $5,000,000.00 plus $1.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 39 

  Valuation of Work          Permit Fee  

 

Base Permit Fee................................................................$50.00 

More than $2,000, but not more than $50,000 ..............$16.00 for each $1,000 valuation 
or fraction thereof 

More than $50,000, but not more than $500,000...........$250.00 plus $13.00 for each 
$1,000 valuation or fraction thereof  

More than $500,000.........................................................$1,500 plus $11.00 for 
each $1,000 valuation or fraction thereof 

These are the fees in effect as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance. The fee 
schedule may be updated annually. 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

Reserved 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 40 

APPENDIX D 

Schedule of Inspections for work done under either the International Building Code or the 
International Residential Code 

General. Construction of work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain accessible and exposed 
for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be 
construed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions of this Code or of other 
ordinances or the jurisdiction. Inspections presuming to give authority to violate or cancel 
the provisions of this Code or of other ordinances shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of 
the permit applicant to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for inspection 
purposes.  Neither the Building Official nor the jurisdiction shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspection Record Card.  Work requiring a building permit shall not be commenced until 
the permit holder or his agent shall have posted an inspection card in a conspicuous place 
on the premises and in a position as to allow the Building Official to make the required 
entries conveniently thereon regarding inspection of the work. 

Required Inspections.  The Building Official, upon 24-hour notification, shall make the 
inspections set forth below as well as other inspections as needed. 

Concrete Slab or Under-Floor Inspection.   To be made after in-slab or under-floor 
reinforcing steel and building service equipment, conduit, piping accessories and other 
ancillary equipment items are in place, but before any concrete is placed or floor sheathing 
installed, including the subfloor. 

Damp proofing Inspection.  A damp proofing inspection may be required prior to back-
fill unless otherwise approved by the Building Official. Damp proofing may be required 
by Section R406. A perimeter drain inspection may be made at this time if such drain is 
required by this code. 

Final Inspection. The final inspection shall be made after all work required by the building 
permit is completed. 

Fire Resistant Penetrations.   Protection of joints and penetrations in fire-resistant-rated 
assemblies shall not be concealed from view until inspected and approved. 

Footing Inspections.  To be made after trenches are excavated, forms erected and 
reinforcing steel, if any, is placed and before footings are poured.  A survey of the lot(s) 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 41 

may be required at this time to verify that the structure is located in accordance with, and 
the elevation matches, the approved plans. 

Foundation Wall Inspections.   Shall be made after the footings or piers have been poured.  
The foundation walls shall be formed and reinforcing steel and void material in place per 
accepted plan. 

Air/Water Resistive Barrier Inspection. Shall be made after the air/water barrier has 
been properly installed, fastened, and taped. 

Frame Inspection.   Framing inspections shall be made after the roof deck or sheathing, 
all framing, fire blocking is complete, and bracing is in place and pipes, chimneys and vents 
to be concealed are complete and the rough electrical, plumbing, heating, wire, pipe and 
duct inspections are approved. 

Insulation Inspection.  Shall be made after all insulation and vapor barriers are in place, 
and before any wall covering material is installed. 

Lath or Gypsum Board Inspection.   Shall be made after lathing and gypsum board, 
interior and exterior, is in place, but before any plastering is applied or before gypsum 
board joints and fasteners are taped and finished. 

Roofing Inspection, Final.  Shall be conducted after the roof has been completed.  

Roofing Inspection, Mid-Roof.  Shall be made after the underlayment has been installed. 

Utility Inspection. Prior to back-fill, and unless otherwise approved by the Building 
Official, underground gas, water, sewer and electric lines must be inspected from the utility 
tap to the structure. 

 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 42 

APPENDIX E 

Snow Load Tables 

City of Leadville Snow Load Requirements (Based on Elevation) 

(This table for reference only showing a relationship between pitch and degrees) 

 

Pitch  0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

Degrees  0 14..0 18.4 22.6 26.6  30.3 33.7 36.9 39.8 42.5 45 47.3 49.4 51.3 53.l 

Reduced Design Snow Load Based on Roof Pitch in Pounds per Square Foot 

Elevation Snow 

 

0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

9000 65 65 65 65 60 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9300 70 70 70 70 65 60 55 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9500 75 75 75 75 70 65 60 55 50 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 
9700 80 80 80 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 
9900 85 85 85 85 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10100 90 90 90 90 85 80 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10300 95 95 95 95 90 85 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 
10500 100 100 100 100 95 85 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 
10600 105 105 105 105 100 90 85 75 70 65 55 50 45 45 40 40 

10800 110 110 110 110 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 55 so 45 40 40 

11000 115 115 115 115 110 100 90 80 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 40 
11200 120 120 120 120 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 40 
11300 125 125 125 125 120 110 100 90 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 

11500 130 130 130 130 125 110 100 90 85 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 

11700 135 135 135 135 125 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 55 50 45 40 
11800 140 140 140 140 130 120 110 100 90 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 
12000 145 145 145 145 135 125 115 100 90 85 75 65 60 55 45 40 

 

Table based on the formula Rs = S/40 – ½ where 

Rs = Snow load reduction in psf per degree of slope over 20 degrees.  

S  =  Design Snow Load in pounds per square foot (psf) 

Minimum Snow Load is 40 psf 

For lower roofs subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the design load shall be 
determined from the formula in ASCE 7-16, Section 7.9, published by the American Society of 
Civil Engineers. 

 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 43 

 

APPENDIX F 

CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

1. Contractor registration shall be defined as the registration of construction 
contractors which means a person, firm, or corporation that, in the pursuit of an 
independent business, offers to undertake, undertakes, or submits a bid to construct, alter, 
repair, add to, subtract from, improve, move, wreck, or demolish, for another, a building, 
or other structure, project, development, or improvement attached to real estate, including 
carpentry, electrical, plumbing, and roofing work, solar installation, elevator and boiler 
installation, window and door installation, and many other types of work. In order to do 
work similar to that described in the preceding paragraph, upon the construction 
contractor's property, the contractor employs members of more than one trade on a single 
job or under a single building permit issued through the City of Leadville, except as 
otherwise provided.  For the purpose of this definition, subcontractor has the same meaning 
as contractor. 
 
2. It shall be unlawful for any Contractor to perform work within the City of Leadville 
without first having registered with Lake County. Any Contractor who fails to register 
annually prior to conducting any construction work during that calendar year shall be 
subject to a fine of $50.00. 
 
3. Applicants shall submit a written application with the information as required on 
the Contractor Registration application form located in Appendix F of this ordinance to 
the Building Official. 
 
4. Each application shall include a non-refundable fee as identified on the Contractor 
Registration application form located in Appendix F. 

 

Contractor Registration Form 

The Lake County Building Department requires all contractors that perform work within the 
County to be registered with the Lake County Building Department.  All contractors will be put 
on a list that will be available to the public.  All registrations will expire at the end of each 
calendar year, and will be required to be renewed by January 31st of each year or before any 
work is performed. All contractors will be required to carry a minimum of one (1) million dollar 
($1,000,000) liability insurance coverage. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 44 

* PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL CONTRACTORS WILL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE 
PROOF OF PASSING APPROPRIATE ICC CONTRACTOR TESTING OR A  
LICENSE FROM A JURISDICTION THAT REQUIRES APPROPRIATE TESTING, 
AND A COPY OF THEIR CURRENT INSURANCE CERTIFICATE TO KEEP ON FILE 
WITH THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT. * 

Application for Contractor’s Registration 

*ALL BLANKS MUST BE FILLED IN AND ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE 
REQUIRED * 

Date: ____________________  

 

Insurance Provider: ____________________________ 

      

Owner’s Name: ______________________________    

 

Contractor’s Phone Number: ______________________   

   

Company Name: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email/Website: 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Contractor’s Mailing Address: 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:  

______________________________________________________________________ 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 45 

Please check the following box(es) to indicate which contractor license(s) you are registering 
for: 

 

� Excavators= $50.00 
� Drywall Contractors= $50.00 
� General Contractors Residential C= $50.00 
� General Contractors Commercial B=$50.00  
� Mechanical Contractor= $50.00 
� Roofing Contractor= $50.00  
� Plumbing Contractor= $50.00 
� Insulation Contractor= $50.00  
� Fire Sprinkler Installers= $50.00 
� Solar Installer= $50.00 
� Water Well Const. & Pump Installer 

 

Please make checks payable to the Lake County Treasurer 

Contractor’s Registration Number: ____________________ (Office Use Only) 

 
 
General contractors doing work on residential buildings shall provide proof of testing to the 
*ICC National Standard Residential Building Contractor  “C” test. 

General contractors doing work on commercial buildings shall provide proof of testing to 
the *ICC National Standard  General Building Contractor “B” test. 

*If you hold a license from another jurisdiction or institution, the Code Official shall determine   
exception eligibility from the ICC requirement.   

 

Section 3. Chapter 15.08 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.08 entitled, “Fire 
Code” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.08 

FIRE CODE 

Sec. 15.08.010. Adoption of the 2018 International Fire Code. 
Pursuant to title 31, article 16, part 2, C.R.S., for the purpose of prescribing regulations 
governing conditions hazardous to life and property from fire and explosion, certain code 
known as the International Fire Code (hereafter "International Code" or "International Fire 

https://www2.municode.com/library/co/leadville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT16SURE


City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 46 

 
 
 

Code" or "the code") promulgated by the International Code Council, 4051 West 
Flossmoor Road, County Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, including appendices chapters A, B, 
C, D, and F, being particularly the 2018 Edition thereof and whole thereof, save and except 
such portions as are hereinafter deleted, modified, or amended by sections of this 
ordinance. Said code, of not less than one copy, certified to be a true copy, shall be filed in 
the office of the City Clerk of the City of Leadville, and may be inspected by any interested 
person between the hours of nine a.m. and four p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays 
excepted. The code as finally adopted shall be available for inspection and sale to the public 
at cost through the Leadville/Lake County Fire Rescue (herein also referred to as the fire 
department), the Office of Lake County Community Services, and the office of the City 
Clerk of Leadville. After the date on which this chapter takes effect, the provisions thereof 
shall be controlling within the City of Leadville, Colorado. 

Sec. 15.08.020. Amendments, Deletions, and Modifications. 

Additions, deletions, amendments, and changes to the International Fire Code (IFC), 2018 
Edition, are hereby adopted as follows: 

(1) IFC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title.  

These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of City of Leadville, Colorado, 
hereinafter referred to as the “IFC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFC Section 901.4.3 (Fire Areas) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.4.3. Fire Areas. 

Where buildings, or portions thereof, constructed under the International Building 
Code, are divided into fire areas so as not to exceed the limits established for 
requiring a fire protection system in accordance with this chapter, such fire areas 
shall be separated by fire walls constructed in accordance with the International 
Building Code or horizontal assemblies constructed in accordance with the 
International Building Code, or both, having a fire-resistance rating of not less than 
that determined in accordance with the International Building Code.    

(3) IFC Section 907.2.1. (Groups A) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1. Group A. 

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group A 
occupancies having an occupant load of 49 or more and /or more than 5,000 square 
feet.  Group A occupancies not separated from one another in accordance with 
Section 707.3.9 of the International Building Code shall be considered as a single 
occupancy for the purposes of applying this section.  Portions of Group E 
occupancies occupied for assembly purposes shall be provided with a fire alarm 
system as required for the Group E occupancy. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 47 

 
 
 

(4) IFC Section 907.2.1.1 (System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupant 
load of 1,000 or more) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1.1. System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupancy 
load of 49 or more. 

Activation of the fire alarm in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 49 or 
more shall initiate a signal using an emergency voice/alarm communications 
system in accordance with Section 907.5.2.2. 

Exception: Where approved, the prerecorded announcement is allowed to be 
manually deactivated for a period of time, not to exceed 3 minutes, for the sole 
purpose of allowing a live voice announcement from an approved, constantly 
attended location. 

(5) IFC Section 907.2.2 (Group B) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.2 Group B.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group B 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. The combined Group B occupant load of all floors is 49 or more 
and/or more than 5,000 square feet. 

2. The Group B occupant load is more than 49 persons above or below 
the lowest level of exit discharge. 

3. The fire area contains an ambulatory care facility. 

(6) IFC Section 907.2.4 (Group F) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.4 Group F.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system that activates the occupant 
notification system in accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group F 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exist: 

1. The Group F occupancy is one or more stories in height; and 
2. The Group F occupancy has a combined occupant load of 49 or 

more above or below the lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group F occupancy is more than 5,000 square feet. 
 

(7) IFC Section 907.2.5 (Group H) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.5  Group H. 

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system in accordance with Section 907.2 
shall be installed in all Group H occupancies and in occupancies used for the 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 48 

 
 
 

manufacture of organic coatings. An automatic smoke detection system shall be 
installed for highly toxic gases, organic peroxides and oxidizers in accordance with 
Chapters 60, 62 and 63, respectively. 

(8) IFC Section 907.2.7 (Group M) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.7 Group M.   

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed through-out in Group 
M occupancies in accordance with Section 907.5 where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

1. The combined Group M occupant load of all floors is 49 or more persons. 
2. The Group M occupant load is more than 20 persons above or below the 

lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group M total square footage is 5,000 square feet or more. 

Sec. 15.08.030. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the Codes adopted in this Chapter.  In addition to 
other sanctions set forth in the adopted Codes, a person or entity who violates the provisions 
of any such  Code shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in Section 1.20.010 of this 
Code.  Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall immediately 
cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property, or to 
the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state the conditions 
under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 
shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any person who 
shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop work order, 
except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 
condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

Section 4. Chapter 15.16 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.16 titled, “Building 
Codes Board of Appeals” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.16 

BUILDING CODES APPEALS 

 

Sec. 15.16.010. Appeals.  

All appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official relative to the 
application and interpretation of any of the city's building and technical codes adopted pursuant to 
this title shall be heard by the Lake County Board of Review.  

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 49 

 
 
 

Section 5. Remaining Provisions.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all other 
provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 6. Codification Amendments.  The codifier of Leadville’s Municipal Code is 
hereby authorized to make such numerical, technical and formatting changes as may be necessary 
to incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance within the Leadville Municipal Code. 

Section 7. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 
Ordinance be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various 
sections and provisions are severable. 

Section 8. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and 
this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done 
or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of 
this Ordinance. 

Section 9. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares 
that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it 
is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary 
for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  
The City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper 
legislative object sought to be attained. 

Section 10. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after 
publication following final passage. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on 

first reading this 19th day July, 2022. 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
______________________________________ 

     Greg Labbe, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Leadville, Colorado, on the 21st day of July, 2022. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 50 

 
 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 

with any amendments, this 2nd day of August, 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper 
of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ 
day of _______________, 2022. 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 7 

SERIES OF 2022 

 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REENACTING CHAPTERS 15.04, 15.08 
AND 15.16 OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT BY 
REFERENCE THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL EXISTING 
BUILDING CODE, THE 2020 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE, AND THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE; MAKING SPECIFIC AMENDMENTS THERETO; 
AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 
authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens of Leadville; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-16-201 et seq., the City may adopt any code by 
reference provided that the municipality provides proper notice and holds a public hearing prior to 
such adoption by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted by reference the following codes: the 2012 
International Building Code, the 2012 International Residential Code, the 2012 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2012 International Plumbing Code, the 2012 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2012 International Existing Building Code, and the 2012 International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, periodically it is necessary for the City to update those building and fire codes 
which are adopted by reference in order to remain technically current; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 12-115-107, the City is required to adopt the most 
recently adopted version of the National Electrical Code, which is currently the 2020 National 
Electrical Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt by reference the following codes: the 2018 
International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 
International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City held a public hearing on August 2, 2022, with proper notice 
provided, to consider adoption of such codes as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, copies of all codes adopted herein, will be available for inspection at the 
office of the Deputy City Clerk located at 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461; and 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 2 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds this ordinance and adoption of these codes by 
reference to be necessary in furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein by reference 
and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

Section 2. Chapter 15.04 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.04 entitled, 
“Technical Building Codes” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.04 

TECHNICAL BUILDING CODES 

Sec. 15.04.010. Codes Adopted. 

(a) The International Building Code (IBC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 35 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Code as if fully set out in this section 
with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.020. 

(b) The International Residential Code (IRC), 2018 Edition as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 44 inclusive and Appendix Chapters E, 
F and G, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville Residential 
Building Code (“IRC”) as if fully set out in this section with the additions, 
deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.030. 

(c) The International Mechanical Code (IMC), 20128 Edition as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 15 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Mechanical Code as if fully set out in this section 
with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.040. 

(d) The International Plumbing Code (IPC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, and as amended by the State of Colorado Plumbing Board 
and/or its successors, Chapters 1 through 14 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Plumbing Code as if fully set out in this 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 3 

section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.050. 

(e) The International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 8 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Fuel Gas Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.060. 

(f) The International Existing Building Code (IEBC), 2018 Edition, as published by 
the International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 3516 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Existing Building Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.070. 

(g) The National Electrical Code (NEC), published by the National Fire Protection 
Association, One Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02269, the specific edition as 
promulgated, adopted, and amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board 
and/or its successors, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Electrical Code as if fully set out in this section. 

Sec. 15.04.020. Amendment to 2018 International Building Code. 

The 2018 IBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the City of Leadville, 
hereinafter referred to as “the IBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.2 entitled, “Permits” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.2. Permits. 

This Code shall apply to all permits applied for after the effective date of the 
Ordinance adopting by reference the 2018 IBC. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 4 

(3) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.3 entitled, “Preemption” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.3. Preemption. 

Whenever State law or State regulation imposes higher standards than are required 
by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher standard shall 
govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than the standards 
imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any governmental body, the 
standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IBC Section 101.4.3 (Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.3. Plumbing. 

The provisions of the International Plumbing Code shall apply to the installation, 
alteration, repair, and replacement of plumbing systems, including equipment, 
appliances, fixtures, fittings, appurtenances, and where connected to a water or 
sewer system and all aspects of a medical gas systems. 

(5) IBC Section 101.4.4 (Property Maintenance) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IBC Section 101.4.5 (Fire Prevention) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(7)(6) IBC Section 101.4 (Referenced Codes) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Section 101.4.8 entitled “Electrical” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.8. Electrical. 

The provisions of the National Electrical Code, the specific addition as adopted and 
amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board, and or its successor(s), shall 
apply to the installation of electrical systems, including alterations, repairs, 
replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings, and appurtenances thereto. 

(8)(7) IBC Section 102.6 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.6. Existing Structure. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as otherwise specifically 
provided in this code, the International Existing Code or the International Fire 
Code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 5 

(9)(8) IBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and its corresponding 
subsections are hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(10)(9) IBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(11)(10) IBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its 
entirety. 

(12)(11) IBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of the following: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning and Zoning Department 
to ensure compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise 
exempted by this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may 
be required for the building if such work would normally require permits.  
Exemption from the permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant 
authorization for any work to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions 
of this code or any other laws or oOrdinances of this jurisdiction. 

The area of an exempt building in 105.2 of this section, shall be changed to two 
hundred (200) square feet to conform to that allowed under Section Rl05.2 of the 
International Residential Code. 

The following work will not require a permit: 

1) Drywall installation under two hundred (200) square feet. 
2) Window replacement not requiring change of headers or structural 

members. 
3) Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 

feet. 
4) Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 

existing structures. 

(13)(12) IBC Section 107.1 (General) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
107.1.1 entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications” to 
read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 6 

 

Sec. 107.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

In accordance with Section 107.1 (General), the Building Official shall require 
plans, computations, and specifications to be prepared, designed, and stamped by 
an engineer or architect licensed in the State of Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations are constructed on caissons or any other method other 
than spread footingsthat are not addressed within the IBC. 

2) Roof framing or wall framing is "other than standard" construction 
not conforming to the requirements of Chapters 16 and 23. 

3) All Buildings classified in Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-
4, and S occupancies. 

4) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted 
which are severely lacking in information showing compliance with 
the code, must be designed, and resubmitted by a professional 
draftsperson.   

(14)(13) IBC Section 107.2.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 107.2.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be dimensioned and drawn on suitable material. 
Electronic media documents are permitted to be submitted where approved by the 
Building Official. Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate 
the location, nature, and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will 
conform to the provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, as determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall provide the name of the person who prepared 
such plans and/or specifications. 

(15)(14) IBC Section 107.3.3 (Phased Approval) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 107.3.3. Phased Approval. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 7 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a permit for the construction of 
foundations or any other part of a building or structure before the construction 
documents for the whole building or structure have been filed complying with 
pertinent requirements of this code. The holder of such permit for the foundation or 
other parts of a building or structure shall proceed at the holder’s own risk with the 
building operation and without assurance that a permit for the entire structure will 
be granted. 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the first permit was issued, if the remaining permits are issued within one 
year of the adoption of the new code. 

(16)(15) IBC Section 108.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 108.3. Temporary Power. 

The Building Official is authorized to give permission to temporarily supply and 
use power in part of an electric installation before such installation has been fully 
completed and the final certificate of completion has been issued. The part covered 
by the temporary certificate shall comply with the requirements specified for 
temporary lighting, heat or power in the National Electrical Code or its successor 
as may be adopted by the State of Colorado Electrical Board. 

(17)(16) IBC Section 109.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and replaced to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix A. 

(18)(17) IBC Section 109.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be no less than twice the normal permit 
fee for the work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 8 

(19)(18) IBC Section 109.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 109.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official is authorized to establish a refund policy. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than eighty percent 
(80%) of the permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in 
accordance with this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing 
within one hundred eighty (180) days of the original fee payment. If a plan review 
was charged and appropriate plan review performed, no portion of this part of fee 
is refundable. 

(20)(19) IBC Section 110.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.1. General. 

Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain visible and able 
to be accessed for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an 
inspection shall not be constructed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions 
of this code or of other ordinances of the City. Inspections presuming to give 
authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this code or other ordinances of the 
city shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of the owner or the owner’s authorized 
agent to cause the work to remain visible and able to be accessed for inspection 
purposes. Neither the Building Official nor the city shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix D. 

(21)(20) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 110.3. Required Inspections. 

The Building Official, upon notification, shall make the inspections set forth in 
Sections 110.3.1 through 110.3.12. 

(22)(21) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended with the 
addition of a new subsection 110.3.12. entitled, “Reinspection” to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 9 

Sec. 110.3.12. Reinspection. 

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected and required work that has been requested by the Building Official is not 
complete or requires an additional inspection. 

(23)(22) IBC Section 111.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 111.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. The temporary certificate of occupancy 
is valid for ninety (90) dayssixty (60) days, with one (1) renewal of sixty (60) days 
permitted, at the discretion of the Building Official. 

(24)(23) IBC Section 113 (Board of Appeals), and its subsections, are amended by 
replacing “Board of Appeals” with the “Board of Review.” 

(25)(24) IBC Section 502.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 502.1. Address Identification. 

New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address identification. 
Each character shall be not less than five (5) inches in height and not less than one 
half inch (1/2 inch) in width. 

(26)(25) IBC Section 901.5 (Acceptance Tests) is hereby amended with the addition 
of a new subsection 901.5.1 entitled “Special Inspector” to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.5.1. Special Inspector. 

All fire protection systems required by this chapter shall be inspected and approved 
by a special inspector. The inspector shall be an employee of the fire department 
having jurisdiction or another qualified individual with prior approval of the 
Building Official. Inspections and approvals shall be documented and submitted as 
per Chapter 17 of this code. 

(27)(26) IBC Section 1301.1.1 (Criteria) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1301.1.1. Criteria. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 10 

Buildings shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

(28)(27) IBC Section 1505.1 (General), Table 105.1 (Minimum Roof Covering 
Classification for Types of Construction) is hereby amended by the deletion of 
superscript “a.” 

(29)(28) IBC Section 1608 (Snow Loads) shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1608. Snow Loads. 

Snow load calculations shall be based on values provided for in Appendix E. 

(30)(29) IBC Chapter 27 (Electrical) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(31)(30) IBC Section 2901.1 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 2901.1. Scope. 

The provisions of this chapter and the International Plumbing Code shall govern 
the design, construction, erection, and installation of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems used in buildings and structures covered by this 
code. Toilet and bathing rooms shall be constructed in accordance with Section 
1209. The International Fire Code, the International Property Maintenance Code 
and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the use and maintenance of 
plumbing components, appliance, equipment, and systems. The International 
Existing Building Code and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the 
alteration, repair, relocation, replacement, and addition of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems. 

Sec. 15.04.030. Amendment to 2018 International Residential Code. 

The 2018 IRC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IRC Section R101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.1. Title. 

These provisions shall be known as the Residential Code for One and Two-Family 
Dwellings of the City of Leadville, and shall be cited as such and will be referred 
to herein as “the IRC” and “this code.” 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 11 

(2) IRC Section R101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.2. Scope. 

The provisions of this code shall be apply to the construction, alteration, movement, 
enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, removal 
and demolition of detached one and two-family dwellings and townhouses not more 
than three (3) stories above grade plan in height with a separate means of egress 
and their accessory structures not more than three (3) stories above grade plane in 
height. 

ExceptionExemptions:  

1. Existing building permits prior to the effective date of this code, along with 
all approved extensions, shall remain in effect and shall be subject to the 
International Residential Code, 2012 edition. 

1.2.Existing buildings undergoing repair, alterations or additions, and change 
of occupancy shall be permitted to comply with the International 
Residential Code, 2012 Edition, if the work was originally permitted under 
this code within one year of the adoption of the 2018 code. 

(3) IRC Section R101.2.2 (Other Laws) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R101.2.2. Other Laws. 

The provision of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, 
state, or federal law. Whenever a State law or regulation imposes higher standards 
than are required by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher 
standard shall govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than 
the standards imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any 
governmental body, the standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IRC Section R102.7 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R102.7. Existing Structures. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as is specifically covered in 
this code, or the International Fire Code, or as is deemed necessary by the Building 
Official for the general safety and welfare of the occupants and the public.  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 12 

(5) IRC Section R103 (Department of Building Safety) is hereby deleted in its 
entirety.amended to change the title to Department of Building. 

(6) IRC Section R104.8 (Liability) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 

Sec. R104.8. Liability. 

The Building Official, member of the board of appeals or employee charged with 
the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction in good faith and 
without malice in the discharge of the duties required by this code or other pertinent 
law or ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered civilly or criminally liable 
personally and is hereby relieved from personal liability for any damage accruing 
to persons or property as a result of any act or by reason of an act or omission in 
the discharge of official duties. 

The issuance of a permit based on plans, specifications and other data shall not 
prevent the Building Official from thereafter requiring the correction of errors on 
said plans, specifications, and other data, or from preventing building operations 
being carried on thereunder, when in violation of this code, or any other Ordinance, 
or from collecting additional fees as appropriate. Nothing in this code is intended 
to authorize any person or agency with development review authority, other than 
the Building Official, to deny the issuance of a building permit hereunder. 

The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all of the 
provisions of this code; however, a guarantee that all building(s) and all structures 
have been constructed in accordance with all of the provisions of this code is neither 
intended nor implied. 

(7) IRC Section R105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby as follows with 
deletions shown in strikethrough text and additions shown in underlined text: 

Sec. R105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Building: 

* * * 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 13 

2. Fences not over 7 feet (2134 mm) high. Fences six (6) feet or less in 
height. 

* * * 

11. Drywall installation in buildings under two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

12. Window replacement whereby installing code compliantce 
windows that do not require a change of headers or structural 
members. 

13. Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

14. Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 
existing structures. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning and ZoningDepartment 
to ensure compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise 
exempted by this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may 
be required for the building if such work would normally require permits. 

(8) IRC Section R106.1.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is amended as 
follows: 

Sec. R106.1.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be drawn upon suitable material. Electronic media 
documents are permitted to be submitted where approved to the Building Official. 
Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature, 
and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the 
provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, as 
determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall give the name of the person who prepared such 
plans and specifications. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 14 

(9) IRC Section R106.3.23 (Phased Previous Approvals) is hereby amended to read 
add a new paragraph as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.23. Phased Previous Approvals. 

*     *     * 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the immediately preceding permit was issued, if the remaining permits are 
issued within one year of the adoption of the new code. 

(10) IRC Section R106.3 (Examination of Documents) is hereby amended with the 
addition of a new subsection R106.3.4 entitled “Responsibility for Preparation of 
Plans and Specifications” to read as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.4. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications to be 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed in the State of 
Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations that are not addressed within the International Residential 
Code. 

2) Wall or roof framing is "other than standard" construction not conforming 
to the requirements of Chapters 6 and 8, 

3) Foundations are located in designated dipping bedrock areas and per 
Sections R403.1.8; 

4) Metal buildings and structures are constructed; or 
5) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted which are 

severely lacking in information showing compliance with the code, must be 
designed and resubmitted by a professional draftsperson. 

(11) IRC Section R107.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended by the replacement of 
reference to the “NFPA 70” with “the National Electrical Code as may be revised 
by the State of Colorado Electrical Board.” 

(12) IRC Section R108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. R108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 15 

Permit fees shall be as determined by Appendix A. 

(13) IRC Section R108.5 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.5. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance with 
this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing within 180 days of 
the original fee payment. If a plan review fee was charged and appropriate plan 
review performed, no portion of this part of the fee is subject to refund. 

(14) IRC Section R108.6 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.6. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be twice the normal permit fee for the 
work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections necessary. 

(15) IRC Section R109 (Inspections) and all of its subsections are hereby repealed in its 
entirety and replaced as follows: 

R109.1. General  

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix AD. 

R109.2 Reinspection.   

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected, and required work that has been requested by the Building Official, is 
not complete and requires an additional inspection. 

R109.3 Sanitation.   

At the time of construction start-up, approved sanitary facilities are required at all 
construction jobs.  The number of toilets shall be adequate for the number of 
construction workers, but no less than the number deemed necessary by the 
Building Official, or as called for in the adopted plumbing code. If a construction 
site becomes inactive for a period of time, the portable toilet may be removed 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 16 

during this period of inactivity. Temporary toilets or use of a neighboring facility 
may be used if approved by the Building Official. 

R109.4 Dumpsters.   

Dumpsters or equivalent containers of adequate size to handle trash and unwanted 
materials from the permitted project shall be provided. 

(16) IRC Section R110.4 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby repealed and 
reenactedamended to read as follows: 

R110.4 Temporary occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit provided the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

1. One bathroom with lavatory, water closet, tub or shower, and 
flooring has been completed. 

2. A food preparation area, with sink, hot and cold water, and flooring 
has been completed. 

3. Electrical system is complete for areas that are to be finished, or 
blanked off in unfinished areas. 

4. Egress windows where required by this code are installed. 

5. A heating system is operational as required by Section R303.9, 
Required Heating. 

6. The exterior is complete and watertight with siding, trim, flashing 
and a roof. 

7. Handrails and guardrails are in place. 

8.  All life-safety systems as determined necessary by the Building 
Official are in place. 

(17) IRC Section R112 (Board of Appeals), and all subsections thereof, is hereby 
amended with the replacement of “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.”  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 17 

(18) IRC Section R202 (Definitions) is hereby amended with the addition of the 
following definition of “bedroom” to appear in alphabetical order with the existing 
definitions: 

Sec. R202. Definitions. 

* * * 

BEDROOM. A room, which is designed as a sleeping room, in Group R 
occupancies or a room, or area that can be used as a sleeping room and contains a 
closet. 

* * * 

(19) IRC Section R301.2 (Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria) is hereby amended 
with the repeal and replacement of Table R301.2 to read as follows: 

 

(20) IRC Section R301.2.3 (Snow Loads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R301.2.3. Snow Loads. 

Snow load values shall be determined by the data in Appendix E. 

(21) IRC Section R301.5 (Live Load), Table R301.5, is hereby amended by the deletion 
of the data in rows “Balconies (exterior) and decks” and “Fire Escapes”, the 
addition of a footnote (ij) in such rows, and the addition of a footnote (ij) to read as 
follows: 

(j) The minimum uniformly distributed live loads for exterior balconies, decks 
and fire escapes shall be as required for roof snow loads with pitches 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 18 

between 0 and 3:12 at the elevation listed in Appendix E, when such 
structures are exposed to snow loading. Otherwise, a live load of 60 psf shall 
be used.  For decks subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the 
design load shall be determined from the formula in Section 7.9, ASCE 7-
02, published by the American Society of Civil Engineers. 

(22) IRC Section R302.5.1 (Opening Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.5.1. Opening Protection. 

Openings from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping purposes 
shall not be permitted. Other openings between the garage and residence shall be 
equipped with a solid wood door not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) in thickness or 
solid or honeycomb-core steel doors not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) thick, 
equipped with a . Doors shall be self-latching and equipped with self-closing or 
automatic-closing devices. 

(23) IRC Section R302.7 (Under-Stair Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.7. Under-Stair Protection. 

Enclosed space under stairs that is accessed by a door or access panel shall have 
walls, under-stair surface and any soffits protected on the enclosed side with 5/8-
inch Type X gypsum board. 

(24) IRC Section R303.1(Habitable Rooms) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Exception # 4 to read as follows: 

Sec. R303.1. Habitable Rooms. 

* * * 

4. Where a room is designed specifically for a home theater, the 
provisions of this section need not be required provided the conditions of 
Exceptions 1. and 2. above are met.  A separate means of egress is not 
required for these rooms, regardless of whether they are located in a 
basement or elsewhere, unless the seating capacity exceeds ten (10) persons. 

(25) IRC Section 303.4 (Mechanical Ventilation) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(26)(25) IRC Section 303.7 (Interior Stairway Illumination) is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 19 

Sec. R303.7. Interior Stairway Illumination. 

Interior stairways shall be provided with an artificial light source to illuminate the 
landings and treads. The light source shall be capable of illuminating treads and 
landings of not less than one (1) footcandle (11 lux) as measured at the center of 
treads and landings. There shall be a wall switch at each floor level to control the 
light switch where the stairway has six or more risers, as required by the current 
NEC. 

Exception: A switch is not required where remote, central, or automatic control of 
lighting is provided. 

(27)(26) IRC Section R309.5 (Fire Sprinklers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R309.5. Fire Sprinklers. 

Private garages may be protected by fire sprinklers where the garage wall has been 
designed based on Table R302.1(2). Note a. Sprinklers in garages shall be 
connected to an automatic sprinklers system that complies with Section P2094. 
Garage sprinklers shall be residential sprinklers or quick-response sprinklers, 
designed to provide a density of 0.05 gpm/ft. Garage doors shall not be considered 
obstructions with respect to sprinkler placement. If such sprinklers are installed, 
they must meet the standards of this code. 

(28)(27) IRC Section R311.7.5.1 (Risers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.1. Risers. 

The maximum riser height shall be eight (8) inches. The riser height shall be 
measured vertically between leading edges of the adjacent treads. The greatest riser 
height within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). Risers shall be vertical or sloped from the underside of the nosing of the 
tread above at any angle not more than thirty (30) degrees (0.51 rad) from the 
vertical. At open risers, openings located more than thirty (30) inches (762 mm), as 
measured vertically, to the floor or grade below shall not permit the passage of 4-
inch diameter (102 mm) sphere. Exterior open risers are permitted provided the 
opening between treads does not permit the passage of a 6-inch diameter sphere. 

Exceptions: 

1. The openings between adjacent treads is not limited on spiral stairways. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 20 

2. The riser height of spiral stairways shall be in accordance with Section 
R311.7.10.1. 

(29)(28) IRC Section R311.7.5.2 (Treads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.2. Treads. 

The minimum tread depth shall be nine (9) inches. The tread depth shall be 
measured horizontally between the vertical planes of the foremost projection of 
adjacent treads and at a right angle to the tread’s leading edge. The greatest tread 
depth within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). 

(30)(29) IRC Section R312.1.3 (Opening Limitations), Exception 1 is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R312.1.3. Opening Limitations. 

* * * 

Exceptions: 

1. Required guards on open sides of exterior stairways, raised floor areas, 
balconies, and porches shall have immediate rails or ornamental closures, 
which do not allow passage of a sphere of six (6) inches or more in diameter. 

(31)(30) IRC Section R313.1 (Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems) is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.1. Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in townhomes. If such sprinkler 
systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 

(32)(31) IRC Section R313.2 (One-and two-family dwellings automatic sprinkler 
systems) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.2. One – and Two- Family Dwellings Automatic Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in one- or two-family dwellings. If 
such sprinkler systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 21 

(32) IRC Section 315.2.2 (Alterations, repairs and additions) is amended to delete 
exception 2 in its entirety. 

(33) IRC Section R319.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R319.1. Address Identification. 

All new buildings shall have address characters identifying the property address, 
displayed and plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the 
property.   Address characters shall be affixed to the side of the building facing the 
street on which the property is addressed or affixed to a sign or post located adjacent 
to the street on which the property is addressed.  Address numbers shall be of a 
color and/or material that contrast with the background on which they are mounted. 

Address characters affixed to the building or to a sign or post shall be at least 5 
inches in height.  For buildings located more than 150 feet from the shoulder or 
curb of the street, there shall be, address characters affixed to a sign or post. This 
sign or post shall be located 25 feet or less from the shoulder or curb of the street 
and shall have address characters at least five inches in height. 

The Building Official may approve alternate building address signage. 

(34) IRC Section R404.1.32 (Design of MasonryConcrete Foundation Walls) is hereby 
amended with the addition of the following paragraph: 

Sec. R404.1.23. Design of MasonryConcrete Foundation Walls. 

* * * 

Minimum reinforcing for concrete foundation walls that are not specified by a 
Professional Engineer or not designed according to the tables listed in this section 
shall have grade 40, #4 bars on 24-inch centers both horizontally and vertically. 

(35) IRC Section R905.2.7 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.2.7. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 22 

extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(36) IRC Section R905.3.3 (Underlayment) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.3.3. Underlayment. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(37) IRC Section R905.4.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.4.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(38) IRC Section R905.5.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.5.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(39) IRC Section 905.6.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 23 

Sec. R905.6.3.1 Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(39)(40) IRC Section R905.7.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.7.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(40)(41) IRC Section R905.8.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.7.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(41)(42) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), 
Table N1002.1.2, Row 7 and 8 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

CLIMATE 
ZONE 

FENESTRATION 
U-FACTOR 

SKYLIGHT 
U-FACTOR 

GLAZED 
FENESTRATION 

SHGC 

CEILING 
R-VALUE 

WOOD 
FRAME 

WALL R-
VALUE 

MASS 
WALL R-
VALUE 

FLOOR 
R- 
VALUE 

BASEMENT 
WALL 
R-VALUE 

SLAB 
R-VALUE 
& DEPTH 

7 and 8 0.30 [j] 0.55 NR 49 20 + 5[h] or 
13 + 10 

19/21 38[g] 15/19 10, 4 ft 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 24 

(42)(43) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), 
Table N1002.1.2, is hereby amended with the addition of a new footnote (j) to 
read as follows: 
 
(j) A maximum U-factor of 0.32 shall apply in climate Zones 3 through 8 to 
vertical fenestration products installed in buildings located either: 

1.   Above 4,000 feet in elevation, or 
2.   In windborne debris regions where protection of openings is 

required by Section R301.2.1.2 

(44) IRC Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) (Testing) is amended to add the following 
sentence to the initial paragraph:  

Mitigation of testing results are specified in the Lake County Building Department 
blower door testing policy. 

(43)(45) IRC Section M1307.5 (Electrical Appliances) is hereby amended with a 
new title, “Appliances” and amended with the deletion of the sentence. M1307.5 
(Appliances) is further amended with the addition of two new subsections to read 
as follows: 

Sec. M1307.5.1 Electrical appliances. 

 Electrical appliances shall be installed in accordance with Chapters 14, 15, 19, 20, 
and 34 through 43 of this code. 

 

Sec. M1307.5.2 LPG appliances.   

LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, upon 
approval of the Building Official. 

(44)(46) Chapter 14 (Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances) is hereby 
amended with the addition of a new section M1416 entitled, “Unvented Room 
Heaters” to read as follows: 

Sec. M1416. Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwellings and 
townhouses. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 25 

(45)(47) IRC Section 1502.4.4 (Dryer Exhaust Duct Power Ventilators) is hereby 
amended with the addition of a new subsection 1502.4.4.1 entitled, “Duct Specified 
Length” to read as follows: 

Sec. 1502.4.4.1. Duct Specified Length. 

The code official shall be provided with a copy of installation instructions for the 
make and model of dryer. 

(46)(48) IRC Section G2406.2 (303.3) (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by 
deletion of Exceptions 3 &and 4 and by the addition of a new Exception 7 to read 
as follows: 

Sec. G206.2 (303.3). Prohibited Locations. 

7. LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, 
upon approval of the Building Official. 

(47)(49)  IRC Section G2417.4.1 (406.4.1) (Test Pressure) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. G2417.4.1 (406.4.1). Test Pressure. 

The test pressure to be used shall not be Jess less than one and one half time the 
proposed maximum working pressure but not less than 15 psig, irrespective of 
design pressure.  Where the test pressure exceeds 125 psig, the test pressure shall 
not exceed a value that produces a hoop stress in the piping greater than fifty percent 
(50%) of the specified minimum yield strength of the pipe. 

(50) IRC Section G2445 (General) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. G2445  General. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwelling units and 
townhouses. 

(48)(51) IRC Section P2503.5.1 (Rough Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. P2503.5.1. Rough Plumbing. 

DWV systems shall be tested on completion of the rough piping installation by 
water, or, for piping systems, by air, without evidence of leakage. Either test shall 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 26 

be applied to the drainage system in its entirety or in sections after rough-in piping 
has been installed, as follows: 

1. Water Test. Each section shall be filled with water to a point not less than 
five (5) feet (1524 mm) above the highest fitting connection in that section, 
or to the highest point in the competed system. Water shall be held in the 
section under test for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. The system shall 
prove leak free by visual inspection. 

2. Air test. The portion under test shall be maintained at a gauge pressure of 
five (5) pounds per square inch (psi) (34 kPa) or ten (10) inches of mercury 
column (34 kPa). This pressure shall be held without introduction of 
additional air for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. 

(49)(52) IRC Section P2603.5.1 (Sewer Depth) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. P2603.5.1. Sewer Depth. 

Building sewers that connect to private sewer disposal systems shall be installed 
deep enough to protect from physical damage and the slope must be adequate to 
eliminate the possibilities of freezing. 

(50)(53) IRC Section E3401 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection E3401.5 entitled, “Meter Protection” to read as follows: 

Sec. E3401.5. Meter Protection. 

The Building Official may require a utility-owned electric meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(51)(54) IRC Section E3703 (Required Branch Circuits) is hereby amended with the 
addition of a new subsection E3703.5 entitled, “Electric Vehicle Charging Branch 
Circuit” to read as follows: 

Sec. E3703.5. Electric Vehicle Charging Branch Circuit. 

All single-family homes shall be made EV-ready for charging by preinstalling 
conduit or conductors during construction of the house.  Designate enough space 
and capacity on the main electrical panel or a garage subpanel for at least 40 amp, 
240V dedicated branch circuit.  Install conduit or conductors linking the electrical 
panel to the future location of the EV charger, near where cars will be parked in the 
garage or driveway. The Building Official may grant an exception in unique 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 27 

situations if a significant hardship is determined in acquiring the level of service 
necessary to meet this requirement. 

Sec. 15.04.040. Amendment to 2018 International Mechanical Code. 

The 2018 IMC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IMC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Mechanical Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IMC” or as “this code.” 

(2) IMC Section 106.5.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IMC Section 106.5.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(4) IMC Section 109 (Means of Appeal) and all of its subsections are amended by 
replacing the phrase “Board of Appeal” to “Board of Review.” 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 28 

(5) IMC Section 301.2 (Energy Utilization) is amended to read:  

Sec. 301.2  Energy Utilization.  

Heating, ventilating and air-conditioning systems of all structures shall be 
designated and installed for efficient utilization of energy in accordance with the 
International Energy Conservation Code, 2018 edition. 

(5)(6) IMC Section 1204.2 (Required Thickness) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1204.2. Required Thickness. 

Hydronic piping shall be insulated to the thickness required by the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

Sec. 15.04.050. Amendment to 2018 International Plumbing Code. 

The 2018 IPC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Plumbing Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IPC” or “this code.” 

(2) IPC Section 106.6.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IPC Section 312.1 (Required Tests) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 312.1. Required Tests. 

The permit holder shall make the appliable tests prescribed in Sections 312.2 
through 312.10 to determine compliance with the provisions of this code. The 
permit holder shall give reasonable advance notice to the code official when the 
plumbing work is ready for tests. The equipment, material, power and labor 
necessary for the inspection and test shall be furnished by the permit holder and he 
or she shall be responsible for determining that the work will withstand the test 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 29 

pressure prescribed in the following tests. Plumbing system piping shall be tested 
with either water or by air. 

(4) IPC Section 312.3 (Drainage and Vent Air Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.3. Drainage and Vent Air Test. 

An air test shall be made by forcing air into the system until there is a uniform 
gauge pressure of 5 psi (34.6 kPA) or sufficient to balance a 10-inch (254 mm) 
column of mercury. This pressure shall be held for a test period of note less than 15 
minutes. Any adjustments to the test pressure required because of changes in 
ambient temperatures or the seating of gaskets shall be made prior to the beginning 
of the test periods. 

(5) IPC Section 312.4 (Drainage and Vent Final Test) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IPC Section 312.5 (Water Supply System Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.5. Water Supply System Test. 

Upon completion of a section of or the entire water supply system, the system, or 
portion completed, shall be tested and proved tight under a water pressure not less 
than the working pressure of the system or, by an air test of not less than 50 psi 
(344 kPA). This pressure shall be held for not less than 15 minutes. The water 
utilized for tests shall be obtained from a potable source of supply. The required 
tests shall be performed in accordance with this section and Section 107. 

(7) IPC Section 903.1 (Roof Extension) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 903.1. Roof Extension. 

Open vent pipes that extend through a roof shall be terminated not less than 18 
inches above the roof, or six inches above the anticipated snow accumulation, 
except that where a roof is to be used for any purpose other than weather protection, 
the vent extensions shall terminate not less than 7 feet (2134 mm) above the roof. 

Sec. 15.04.060. Amendment to 2018 International Fuel Gas Code. 

The 2018 IFGC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 30 

(1) IFGC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Fuel Gas Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IFGC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFGCS Section 102 (Applicability) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
102.12 entitled, “Utility-Owned Gas Meters” to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.12. Utility-Owned Gas Meters. 

The Building Official may require that a utility-owned gas meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(3) IFGC Section 103 (Department of Inspection) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IFGC Section 104.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 104.1. General. 

The Leadville Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce the 
provisions of this code. 

(5) IFGSC Section 106.6.2 (Fee schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be provided for as in Appendix B. 

(6) IFGSC Section 106.6.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 31 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(7) IFGCS Section 109 (Means of Appeal), and all subsections thereto, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with Board of Review.” 

(8) IFGC Section 201.3 (Terms Defined in Other Codes) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 201.3. Terms Defined in Other Codes. 

Where terms are not defined in this code and are defined in the National Electrical 
Code, International Building Code, International Fire Code, International 
Mechanical Code, or International Plumbing Code, such terms shall have meanings 
ascribed to them as in those codes. 

(9) IFGCS Section 303.3 (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by deleting 
Exceptions 3 and& 4. 

Sec. 15.04.070. Amendment to 2018 International Existing Building Code. 

The 2018 IEBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IEBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Existing Building Code of City of 
Leadville, Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IEBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IEBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and all of its subsections are 
hereby deleted. 

(3) IEBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IEBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 32 

(5) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of new paragraph to read as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for the proposed work does not 
preclude any required approval from the City to insure compliance with zoning, 
use, and property setbacks.  Unless otherwise exempted by this Code, separate 
plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required for the building if 
such work would normally require permits.  Exemption from the permit 
requirements of this Code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any work 
to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this Code or any other 
laws, ordinances or resolutions of this jurisdiction. 

(6) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended further by 
adding to the Building section for projects that do not require a work permit to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

Building. 

* * * 

7. Door and door frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
8. Window replacement whereby replacing with code compliant windows and 

window frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
9. Remodeling, interior or exterior, not involving any structural change, not 

altering existing fire-resistance rated construction assemblies, and not 
altering point of use plumbing or existing fuel-gas piping, mechanical, or 
electrical systems. 

10.9. Insulation installation less than 200 square feet in existing 
structures. 

11.10. Removal and replacement of exterior siding materials less than 200 
square feet. 

(7) IEBC Section 106.1 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection 106.1.1 entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and 
Specifications” to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 33 

Sec. 106.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed to practice in 
the State of Colorado when, but not limited to the following structure designs: 

1. Foundations are constructed on caissons or any other method other than 
spread footings. 

2. Roof framing or wall framing is other than conventional light-frame 
construction in accordance with AP&PA Wood Frame Construction 
Manual (WFCM). 

3. Buildings in which confirmation is required of beam sizes and spans, 
loading, or any structural element affecting the integrity of the building 
unless otherwise demonstrated to the Building Official’s satisfaction. 

4. Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted by a 
professional draftsperson. 

(8) IEBC Section 108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

On buildings, gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees provided for in Appendices A and B. 

(9) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to an investigation fee as established by Section 108.4.1. 

(10) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby further 
amended with the addition of a new subsection 108.4.1. entitled, “Investigation 
Fee” to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4.1. Investigation Fee. 

An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be collected whether or not 
a permit is then or subsequently issued.  The investigation fee shall be equal to the 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 34 

amount of the permit fee required by this code and per the Schedule of Fees as set 
forth in the Appendices to this Chapter 15.04 of the Municipal Code.  The minimum 
investigation fee shall be the same as the minimum fee set forth in the Schedule of 
Fees as provided for in Appendices A and B.  The payment of such investigation 
fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of this 
code nor from any penalty prescribed by law. 

(11) IEBC Section 108.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of any fee paid hereunder which 
was erroneously paid or collected if an audit of the project has been performed and 
the audit shows that the fees were paid incorrectly.  If an owner or owner's 
representative feels that a fee is erroneously paid or collected, an audit may be 
required by the Building Official.  The audit shall be performed by an auditor 
selected by the City.  The project owner or owner's representative shall pay the cost 
of the audit. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance 
with this code. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for which a plan review fee 
has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan reviewing is done. 

The Building Official shall not authorize refunding of any fee paid except on 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the 
date of fee payment. 

(12) IEBC Section 109.6 (Approval Required) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
109.6.1 entitled, “Inspection Record Card” to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.6.1. Inspection Record Card. 

An inspection record card shall be issued to the holder of a building permit or an 
agent of the permit holder to allow the Building Official to readily make entries 
thereon regarding the inspection approval of work.  The building permit holder shall 
keep this inspection record card available to the Building Official on the project site 
until final building inspection approval has been granted by the Building Official. 

(13) IEBC Section 110.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 35 

 

Sec. 110.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. 

(14)  IEBC Section 112 (Board of Appeals) and its accompanying subsections, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.” 

(15) IEBC Section 112.1 (General) is hereby amended to reads as follows: 

Sec. 112.1. General. 

Appeals from the decision of the Building Official shall be filed with the Board of 
Review by filing a written appeal within sixty (60) days after the date of the 
Building Official’s decision. 

(16) IEBC Section 1301.3.2 (Compliance with Other Codes) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 1301.3.2. Compliance with Other Codes. 

Buildings that are evaluated in accordance with this section shall comply with the 
International Fire Code. 

(17) IEBC Section 1401.2 (Conformance) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1401.2. Conformance. 

The building shall be safe for human occupancy as determined by the International 
Fire Code. Any repair, alteration, or change of occupancy undertaken within the 
moved structure shall comply with the requirements of this code applicable to the 
work being performed. Any field-fabricated elements shall comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Code or the International Residential 
Code as applicable.  

(18) IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding American Society of 
Mechanical Engineers (“ASME”) referenced standards is amended to read as 
follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 36 

 

ASME 

Standard 
reference 
number Title 

Referenced 
in code 

section number 

ASME/A17.1 
2019/CSA B44-07 

Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators – with A17.1a/CSA B44a-
08 Addenda 

 

410.8.2, 705.1.2, 902.1.2  

 

A17.3—2005 as 
implemented in 7 
CCR1101 – 8, 
Section 2-6-2 

 

Safety Code for Existing Elevators 
and Escalators 

 

902.1.2 

 

A18.1--2017 

 

Safety Standard for Platform Lifts 
and Stairway Lifts 410.8.3, 705.1.3 

(19)  IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding International Code Council, 
Inc., is amended with the deletion of any reference to the International Property 
Management Code. 

Sec. 15.04.080. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the Codes adopted in this Chapter.  In addition to 
other sanctions set forth in the adopted Codes, a person or entity who violates the provisions 
of any such Code shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in Section 1.20.010 of this 
Code.  Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall immediately 
cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property, or to 
the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state the conditions 
under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 
shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any person who 
shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop work order, 
except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 
condition, shall be in violation of this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 37 

 

Sec. 15.04.090. Appendices. 

 

Appendix A 

BUILDING PERMIT FEE CALCULATION 

Cost per square foot figures taken from the ICC’s  publication, Building 
Valuation Data & will be updated annually 

Type of Space Area per square foot Cost per square 
foot 

Value 

Living (Wood 
Frame) 

    X   $150.87   

Living (IRC 
Modular) 

    X   $75.44   

Unfinished 
Basement 

    X   $23.20   

Garage / 
Storage 

    X   $60.43   

Deck / Porch / 
Carport 

    X   $60.43   

Remodel 
(Materials) 

    X   2 (for labor)   

          
Total Value   

  

__________ + (_______________ X ________________)      =   _____________________ 

Initial Fee         cost per additional    # of additional      BASE PERMIT FEE 

______________+    0.65   x ___________________     =  _____________________ 

Base Permit Fee       PLAN REVIEW FEE 

             

     TOTAL FEE   _________________ 

         Driveway    _ _______________ 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 38 

             GRAND TOTAL _________________ 

Other Fees: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

1   
2 Reinspection fee $50.00/Hr. 
3 Consultation fee $$50Hr. 
4 Additional plan review required by changes, additions or 

revisions 
$62.50 base fee 

+ $62.50 per 
half hour of 

review 
5 Outside consultant for plan review and/or inspections Cost + 20% 
6 Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) $150.00 for 90 

days 
7 Solar Permit – Residential $150.00 
8 Solar Permit - Commercial $300.00 
9 Appeals $50.00 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 39 

APPENDIX B 

Schedule of Permit Fees for Work Done Under: 

a) International Fuel Gas Code 

b) International Mechanical Code 

c) International Plumbing Code 

d) Roofing Permit 

 
 Table 1-A Building Permit Fees 

Total Valuation Fees Based on  2018 IRC Appendix L 

$1.00 to $500.00 $24.00  

$501.00 to 
$2,000.00 

$24.00 for the first $500.00 plus $3.00 for each additional 
$100.00 or fraction of, to and including the $2,000.00 

$2,001.00 to 
$40,000.00 

$69.00 for the first $2,000.00 plus $11.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$40,000.00 

$40,001.00 to 
$100,00.00 

$487.00 for the first $40,000.00 plus $9.10 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$100,000.00 

$100,001.00 to 
$500,000.00 

$1,027.00 for the first $100,000.00 plus $7.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$500,000.00 

$500,001.00 to 
$1,000,000.00 

$3,827.00 for the first $500,000.00 plus $5.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$1,000,000.00 

$1,000,001.00 to 
$5,000,000.00 

$6,327.00 for the first $1,000,000.00 plus $3.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$5,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 and 
up 

$18,327.00 for the first $5,000,000.00 plus $1.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 40 

  Valuation of Work          Permit Fee  

 

Base Permit Fee................................................................$50.00 

More than $2,000, but not more than $50,000 ..............$16.00 for each $1,000 valuation 
or fraction thereof 

More than $50,000, but not more than $500,000...........$250.00 plus $13.00 for each 
$1,000 valuation or fraction thereof  

More than $500,000.........................................................$1,500 plus $11.00 for 
each $1,000 valuation or fraction thereof 

These are the fees in effect as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance. The fee 
schedule may be updated annually. 

APPENDIX C 

Reserved 

APPENDIX D 

Schedule of Inspections for work done under either the International Building Code or the 
International Residential Code 

General. Construction of work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain accessible and exposed 
for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be 
construed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions of this Code or of other 
ordinances or the jurisdiction. Inspections presuming to give authority to violate or cancel 
the provisions of this Code or of other ordinances shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of 
the permit applicant to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for inspection 
purposes.  Neither the Building Official nor the jurisdiction shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspection Record Card.  Work requiring a building permit shall not be commenced until 
the permit holder or his agent shall have posted an inspection card in a conspicuous place 
on the premises and in a position as to allow the Building Official to make the required 
entries conveniently thereon regarding inspection of the work. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 41 

Required Inspections.  The Building Official, upon 24-hour notification, shall make the 
inspections set forth below as well as other inspections as needed. 

Concrete Slab or Under-Floor Inspection.   To be made after in-slab or under-floor 
reinforcing steel and building service equipment, conduit, piping accessories and other 
ancillary equipment items are in place, but before any concrete is placed or floor sheathing 
installed, including the subfloor. 

Damp proofing Inspection.  A damp proofing inspection may be required prior to back-
fill unless otherwise approved by the Building Official. Damp proofing may be required 
by Section R406. A perimeter drain inspection may be made at this time if such drain is 
required by this code. 

Final Inspection. The final inspection shall be made after all work required by the building 
permit is completed. 

Fire Resistant Penetrations.   Protection of joints and penetrations in fire-resistant-rated 
assemblies shall not be concealed from view until inspected and approved. 

Footing Inspections.  To be made after trenches are excavated, forms erected and 
reinforcing steel, if any, is placed and before footings are poured.  A survey of the lot(s) 
may be required at this time to verify that the structure is located in accordance with, and 
the elevation matches, the approved plans. 

Foundation Wall Inspections.   Shall be made after the footings or piers have been poured.  
The foundation walls shall be formed and reinforcing steel and void material in place per 
accepted plan. 

Air/Water Resistive Barrier Inspection. Shall be made after the air/water barrier has 
been properly installed, fastened, and taped. 

Frame Inspection.   Framing inspections shall be made after the roof deck or sheathing, 
all framing, fire blocking is complete, and bracing is in place and pipes, chimneys and vents 
to be concealed are complete and the rough electrical, plumbing, heating, wire, pipe and 
duct inspections are approved. 

Insulation Inspection.  Shall be made after all insulation and vapor barriers are in place, 
and before any wall covering material is installed. 

Lath or Gypsum Board Inspection.   Shall be made after lathing and gypsum board, 
interior and exterior, is in place, but before any plastering is applied or before gypsum 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 42 

board joints and fasteners are taped and finished. 

Roofing Inspection, Final.  Shall be conducted after the roof has been completed.  

Roofing Inspection, Mid-Roof.  Shall be made after the underlayment has been installed. 

Utility Inspection. Prior to back-fill, and unless otherwise approved by the Building 
Official, underground gas, water, sewer and electric lines must be inspected from the utility 
tap to the structure. 

 

APPENDIX E 

Snow Load Tables 

City of Leadville Snow Load Requirements (Based on Elevation) 

(This table for reference only showing a relationship between pitch and degrees) 

 

Pitch  0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

Degrees  0 14..0 18.4 22.6 26.6  30.3 33.7 36.9 39.8 42.5 45 47.3 49.4 51.3 53.l 

Reduced Design Snow Load Based on Roof Pitch in Pounds per Square Foot 

Elevation Snow 0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

9000 65 65 65 65 60 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9300 70 70 70 70 65 60 55 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9500 75 75 75 75 70 65 60 55 50 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 
9700 80 80 80 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 
9900 85 85 85 85 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10100 90 90 90 90 85 80 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10300 95 95 95 95 90 85 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 

10500 100 100 100 100 95 85 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 

10600 105 105 105 105 100 90 85 75 70 65 55 50 45 45 40 40 

10800 110 110 110 110 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 55 so 45 40 40 

11000 115 115 115 115 110 100 90 80 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 40 

11200 120 120 120 120 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 40 

11300 125 125 125 125 120 110 100 90 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 

11500 130 130 130 130 125 110 100 90 85 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 

11700 135 135 135 135 125 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 55 50 45 40 

11800 140 140 140 140 130 120 110 100 90 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 

12000 145 145 145 145 135 125 115 100 90 85 75 65 60 55 45 40 

 

Table based on the formula Rs = S/40 – ½ where 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 43 

Rs = Snow load reduction in psf per degree of slope over 20 degrees.  

S  =  Design Snow Load in pounds per square foot (psf) 

Minimum Snow Load is 40 psf 

For lower roofs subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the design load shall be 
determined from the formula in ASCE 7-16, Section 7.9, published by the American Society of 
Civil Engineers. 

 

 

 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 44 

APPENDIX F 

CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

1. Contractor registration shall be defined as the registration of construction 
contractors which means a person, firm, or corporation that, in the pursuit of an 
independent business, offers to undertake, undertakes, or submits a bid to construct, alter, 
repair, add to, subtract from, improve, move, wreck, or demolish, for another, a building, 
or other structure, project, development, or improvement attached to real estate, including 
carpentry, electrical, plumbing, and roofing work, solar installation, elevator and boiler 
installation, window and door installation, and many other types of work. In order to do 
work similar to that described in the preceding paragraph, upon the construction 
contractor's property, the contractor employs members of more than one trade on a single 
job or under a single building permit issued through the City of Leadville, except as 
otherwise provided.  For the purpose of this definition, subcontractor has the same meaning 
as contractor. 
 
2. It shall be unlawful for any Contractor to perform work within the City of Leadville 
without first having registered with the CityLake County. Any Contractor who fails to 
register annually prior to conducting any construction work during that calendar year shall 
be subject to a fine of $50.00. 
 
3. Applicants shall submit a written application with the information as required on 
the Contractor Registration application form located in Appendix F of this ordinance to 
the Building Official. 
 
4. Each application shall include a non-refundable fee as identified on the Contractor 
Registration application form located in Appendix F. 

 

Contractor Registration Form 

The Lake County Building Department requires all contractors that perform work within the 
County to be registered with the Lake County Building Department.  All contractors will be put 
on a list that will be available to the public.  All registrations will expire at the end of each 
calendar year, and will be required to be renewed by January 31st of each year or before any 
work is performed. All contractors will be required to carry a minimum of one (1) million dollar 
($1,000,000) liability insurance coverage. 

* PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL CONTRACTORS WILL BE REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE PROOF OF PASSING APPROPRIATE ICC CONTRACTOR 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 45 

TESTING OR A  LICENSE FROM A JURISDICTION THAT REQUIRES 
APPROPRIATE TESTING, AND A COPY OF THEIR CURRENT INSURANCE 
CERTIFICATE TO KEEP ON FILE WITH THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT. * 

Application for Contractor’s Registration 

*ALL BLANKS MUST BE FILLED IN AND ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE 
REQUIRED * 

Date: ____________________  

 

Insurance Provider: ____________________________ 

      

Owner’s Name: ______________________________    

 

Contractor’s Phone Number: ______________________   

   

Company Name: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email/Website: 
______________________________________________________________________________
_ 

 

Contractor’s Mailing Address: 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:  

______________________________________________________________________ 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 46 

Please check the following box(es) to indicate which contractor license(s) you are registering 
for: 

 

 Excavators= $50.00 
 Drywall Contractors= $50.00 
 General Contractors Residential C= $50.00 
 General Contractors Commercial B=$50.00  
 Mechanical Contractor= $50.00 
 Roofing Contractor= $50.00  
 Plumbing Contractor= $50.00 
 Insulation Contractor= $50.00  
 Fire Sprinkler Installers= $50.00 
 Solar Installer= $50.00 
 Water Well Const. & Pump Installer 

 

Please make checks payable to the Lake County Treasurer 

Contractor’s Registration Number: ____________________ (Office Use Only) 

 
 
General contractors doing work on residential buildings shall provide proof of testing to the 
*ICC National Standard Residential Building Contractor  “C” test. 

General contractors doing work on commercial buildings shall provide proof of testing to 
the *ICC National Standard  General Building Contractor “B” test. 

*If you hold a license from another jurisdiction or institution, the Code Official shall determine   
exception eligibility from the ICC requirement.   

Section 3. Chapter 15.08 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.08 entitled, “Fire 
Code” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.08 

FIRE CODE 

Sec. 15.08.010. Adoption of the 2018 International Fire Code. 

Pursuant to title 31, article 16, part 2, C.R.S., for the purpose of prescribing regulations 
governing conditions hazardous to life and property from fire and explosion, certain code 
known as the International Fire Code (hereafter "International Code" or "International Fire 
Code" or "the code") promulgated by the International Code Council, 4051 West 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 47 

 
 
 

Flossmoor Road, County Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, including appendices chapters A, B, 
C, D, and F, being particularly the 2018 Edition thereof and whole thereof, save and except 
such portions as are hereinafter deleted, modified, or amended by sections of this 
ordinance. Said code, of not less than one copy, certified to be a true copy, shall be filed in 
the office of the City Clerk of the City of Leadville, and may be inspected by any interested 
person between the hours of nine a.m. and four p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays 
excepted. The code as finally adopted shall be available for inspection and sale to the public 
at cost through the Leadville/Lake County Fire Rescue (herein also referred to as the fire 
department), the Office of Lake County Community Services, and the office of the City 
Clerk of Leadville. After the date on which this chapter takes effect, the provisions thereof 
shall be controlling within the City of Leadville, Colorado. 

Sec. 15.08.020. Amendments, Deletions, and Modifications. 

Additions, deletions, amendments, and changes to the International Fire Code (IFC), 2018 
Edition, are hereby adopted as follows: 

(1) IFC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title.  

These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of City of Leadville, Colorado, 
hereinafter referred to as the “IFC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFC Section 901.4.3 (Fire Areas) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.4.3. Fire Areas. 
 

Where buildings, or portions thereof, constructed under the International Building 
Code, are divided into fire areas so as not to exceed the limits established for 
requiring a fire protection system in accordance with this chapter, such fire areas 
shall be separated by fire walls constructed in accordance with the International 
Building Code or horizontal assemblies constructed in accordance with the 
International Building Code, or both, having a fire-resistance rating of not less than 
that determined in accordance with the International Building Code.    

(3) IFC Section 907.2.1. (Groups A) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1. Group A. 

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group A 
occupancies having an occupant load of 49 or more and /or more than 5,000 square 
feet.  Group A occupancies not separated from one another in accordance with 
Section 707.3.9 of the International Building Code shall be considered as a single 
occupancy for the purposes of applying this section.  Portions of Group E 
occupancies occupied for assembly purposes shall be provided with a fire alarm 
system as required for the Group E occupancy. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 48 

 
 
 

(4) IFC Section 907.2.1.1 (System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupant 
load of 1,000 or more) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1.1. System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupancy 
load of 491,000 or more. 

Activation of the fire alarm in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 1,000 
or more shall initiate a signal using an emergency voice/alarm communications 
system in accordance with Section 907.5.2.2. 

Activation of the fire alarm in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 49 or 
more shall initiate a signal using an emergency voice/alarm communications 
system in accordance with Section 907.5.2.2. 

Exception: Where approved, the prerecorded announcement is allowed to be 
manually deactivated for a period of time, not to exceed 3 minutes, for the sole 
purpose of allowing a live voice announcement from an approved, constantly 
attended location. 

(5) IFC Section 907.2.2 (Group B) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.2 Group B.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group B 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. The combined Group B occupant load of all floors is 49 or more 
and/or more than 5,000 square feet. 

2. The Group B occupant load is more than 49 persons above or below 
the lowest level of exit discharge. 

3. The fire area contains an ambulatory care facility. 

(6) IFC Section 907.2.4 (Group F) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.4 Group F.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system that activates the occupant 
notification system in accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group F 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exist: 

1. The Group F occupancy is one or more stories in height; and 
2. The Group F occupancy has a combined occupant load of 49 or 

more above or below the lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group F occupancy is more than 5,000 square feet. 
 

(7) IFC Section 907.2.5 (Group H) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 49 

 
 
 

907.2.5  Group H. 

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system in accordance with Section 907.2 
shall be installed in all Group H occupancies and in occupancies used for the 
manufacture of organic coatings. An automatic smoke detection system shall be 
installed for highly toxic gases, organic peroxides and oxidizers in accordance with 
Chapters 60, 62 and 63, respectively. 

(8) IFC Section 907.2.7 (Group M) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.7 Group M.   

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed through-out in Group 
M occupancies in accordance with Section 907.5 where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

 

1. The combined Group M occupant load of all floors is 49 or more persons. 
2. The Group M occupant load is more than 20 persons above or below the 

lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group M total square footage is 5,000 square feet or more. 

Sec. 15.08.030. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the Codes adopted in this Chapter.  In addition to 
other sanctions set forth in the adopted Codes, a person or entity who violates the provisions 
of any such  Code shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in Section 1.20.010 of this 
Code.  Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall immediately 
cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property, or to 
the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state the conditions 
under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 
shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any person who 
shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop work order, 
except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 
condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

Section 4. Chapter 15.16 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.16 titled, “Building 
Codes Board of Appeals” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.16 

BUILDING CODES APPEALS 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 50 

 
 
 

 

Sec. 15.16.010. Appeals.  

All appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official relative to the 
application and interpretation of any of the city's building and technical codes adopted pursuant to 
this title shall be heard by the Lake County Board of Review.  

 

Section 5. Remaining Provisions.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all other 
provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 6. Codification Amendments.  The codifier of Leadville’s Municipal Code is 
hereby authorized to make such numerical, technical and formatting changes as may be necessary 
to incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance within the Leadville Municipal Code. 

Section 7. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 
Ordinance be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various 
sections and provisions are severable. 

Section 8. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and 
this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done 
or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of 
this Ordinance. 

Section 9. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares 
that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it 
is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary 
for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  
The City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper 
legislative object sought to be attained. 

Section 10. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after 
publication following final passage. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on 

first reading this 19th day July, 2022. 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 

______________________________________ 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 51 

 
 
 

     Greg Labbe, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Leadville, Colorado, on the  21st____ day of July________________, 2022. 
 

 
  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 52 

 
 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 

with any amendments, this 2nd_____ day of August_______________, 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper 
of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ 
day of _______________, 2022. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 8.B 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

 
MEETING DATE: August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 8, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Approving a Third Amendment to the 
Railyard at Leadville Phase 1 Planned Unit Development (Second Reading – Public Hearing) 

PRESENTED BY: Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 
 

 

     X     ORDINANCE 
   RESOLUTION 
 MOTION 
 INFORMATION 

 

 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council is Ordinance No. 8, Series of 2022, (the “Ordinance”), which approves an 
amendment to the Railyard Phase 1 PUD to permit the development of workforce housing units on a 
parcel of land owned by the Leadville Urban Renewal Authority (“LURA”). 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

City Council passed the Ordinance on first reading at its July 19, 2022 regular meeting. Leadville’s 
Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on and considered the Ordinance at its July 27, 
2022 meeting. The Planning Commission found that the Ordinance is consistent with the efficient 
development and preservation of the Leadville Railyard Phase 1 PUD, that it does not adversely affect 
either the Phase 1 PUD as it currently exists or neighboring residents, and that it is consistent with the 
purpose, intent and other provisions of Leadville’s Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Commission 
recommends that City Council adopt the Ordinance without amendment.  

The LURA owns a parcel of land within the Phase 1 area of the Railyard Leadville development. The 
parcel consists of approximately 0.59 acres. It is located at 1416 Silver Vault Street and is legally 
described as Lot 1, Block 6, Leadville Railyard, Filing. No. 1, Lake County, Colorado (“LURA Parcel”) (see 
Illustration 1 below). LURA intends to have workforce housing units developed on the LURA Parcel. 

The zoning and development standards of the Phase 1 area of the Railyard development are governed 
by the Railyard at Leadville Planned Unit Development Phase 1 (“Phase 1 PUD”). Under the current 
Phase 1 PUD, the LURA Parcel is zoned as a Civic/Community Building Lot Type. This lot type does not 
permit any type of residential uses on the LURA Parcel. Therefore, to build workforce housing units on 
the LURA Parcel, the Phase 1 PUD must be amended to permit residential uses for that lot type.  

 

CityClerk
Highlight



Page 2 of 3 
 

The Ordinance amends the Phase 1 PUD to make the Civic/Community Building Lot Type have 
development standards and uses similar to that of the Phase 1 PUD’s Apartment Building Lot Type and 
provide more flexibility for development. The changes to the Civic/Community Building Lot Type in the 
Ordinance are summarized as follows in the table below and have been reviewed by Chaffee Housing 
Trust, the entity that will develop the workforce housing units on the LURA Parcel: 

 

 
 CURRENT PROPOSED REVISION: 
Lot Name Civic/Community Building Lot No change 
Lot Dimensions No minimum lot size or width No change 
Minimum 
Setbacks 

Front: 4’ to porch  
            8’ to principal building 
Rear:   6’  
Side:    6’ 

Front: 0’  
Rear:  0’  
Side:  5’  

Building Max. building height: 35’ 
Min. total floor area: N/A 
Max. lot coverage: 60% 

Max. building height:   
         38’ - 80% of building footprint 
         45’ – 20% of building footprint 
Min. total floor area: N/A 
Max. lot coverage: 85%  

Allowed Uses Parks, playgrounds, athletic facilities, 
playing fields, public and private 
schools, child care facilities, 
educational institutes, recreation 
centers, community centers, 
museums, commercial greenhouses 
<500 s.f., harboring of chickens, 
roadside outlets for sale of 
agricultural products  

Residential (limited to affordable, 
attainable, community, and workforce 
housing), recreation centers, 
community centers. 
Ground floor only: general retail 
stores, professional and business 
offices, personal service outlets (such 
as beauty salons and barber shops), 
laundromats, travel agencies, 
restaurants, cafes, bars, lounges, 
childcare facilities, educational 
institutes, public or private school 
facilities. 

 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 

City Council must hold a public hearing on the Ordinance before Council adopts the Ordinance on 
second and final reading. Tonight’s public hearing was noticed in the Herald Democrat on July 14, 2022. 
Notice of the public hearing was also mailed to property owners within 200 feet of the LURA Parcel and 
posted on the LURA Parcel in accordance with municipal code requirements.  

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that City Council adopt Ordinance No. 8, Series of 2022 on second reading. 
 

VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:  
Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Ordinance on second reading. 
2. Adopt the Ordinance on second reading with amendments. 
3. Table the Ordinance for further discussion and consideration. 

 

VII. PROPOSED MOTION: 

“I move that, based on the information presented at this hearing, the City Council find that Ordinance 
No. 8, Series of 2022 is consistent with the efficient development and preservation of the Leadville 
Railyard Phase 1 PUD, that it does not adversely affect either the Phase 1 PUD as it currently exists or 
neighboring residents, and that it is consistent with the purpose, intent and other provisions of 
Leadville’s Zoning Ordinance.  

I further move to adopt Ordinance No. 8, Series of 2022, An Ordinance Approving a Third Amendment to 
the Railyard at Leadville Phase 1 Planned Unit Development on second reading.” 
 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance No. 8, Series of 2022  

ILLUSTRATION 1 

LURA Parcel 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 8 

SERIES OF 2022 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE RAILYARD AT 
LEADVILLE PHASE 1 PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the Railyard at Leadville Planned Unit Development Phase 1 (“Phase 1 
PUD”) was approved by Ordinance No. 13, Series 2017 of the City Council establishing the zoning 
for certain property consisting of approximately 15.8 acres, more or less, and located generally 
north and east of the intersection of E. 12th Street and Highway 24 in the City of Leadville, County 
of Lake, State of Colorado, and west of the railroad tracks (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the First Amendment to the Phase 1 PUD was approved by Ordinance No. 
4, Series 2019 of the City Council, after consideration by the City Planning and Zoning 
Commission at a duly noticed public hearing as required by the Leadville Municipal Code 
(“LMC”); and 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2020, the City of Leadville administratively approved a second 
amendment to the Phase 1 PUD to modify the permitted tree lawn dimensions and adjust the 
definition for the measurement of building height; and 

WHEREAS, the Leadville Urban Renewal Authority (“Applicant”) owns a lot within the 
Property, known as 1416 Silver Vault Street, Leadville, Colorado 80461 and legally described as 
Lot 1, Block 6, Leadville Railyard, Filing. No. 1, Lake County, Colorado (“LURA Parcel”); and 

WHEREAS, the LURA Parcel is currently zoned as a Civic/Community Building Lot 
Type that does not permit residential uses, including affordable, attainable, community, or 
workforce housing, for such lot type; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant intends to develop or cause to be developed workforce housing 
units on the LURA Parcel and has submitted an application seeking approval of a third amendment 
to the Phase 1 PUD (“Third Amendment”) to revise the Civic/Community Building Lot Type 
standards and uses to include residential uses that permit and are limited to the development of 
affordable, attainable, community, and workforce housing units on the LURA Parcel; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Leadville Planning and Zoning Commission considered the Third 
Amendment at a duly noticed public hearing and recommended approval of the Third Amendment; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Third Amendment at a public hearing on 
August 2, 2022, and provided the Applicant and the public an opportunity to present testimony 
and evidence regarding the Third Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, notification of the public hearings were completed in accordance with 
Section 17.40.120 of the LMC; and  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 8 

Series of 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 

WHEREAS, the administrative record for this case includes, but is not limited to, the 
LMC, the City of Leadville, Colorado, Comprehensive Plan, and all other applicable ordinances, 
resolutions and regulations, together with all City of Leadville land use application processing 
policies that relate to the subject matter of the public hearing, reports, studies and all other 
submittals of the Applicant, or the Applicant’s designated representative(s), as applicable, any 
evidence or correspondence submitted by members of the public at the public hearing, and the City 
staff files and reports, if applicable, pertaining to the proposed Third Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Leadville City Council has carefully reviewed the Third Amendment and 
has determined that it is consistent with the efficient development and preservation of the Phase 1 
PUD, that it does not adversely affect either the Phase 1 PUD as it currently exists or neighboring 
residents and that it is consistent with the purpose, intent and various provisions of Leadville’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO:  

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein 
by reference and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

 
Section 2. Amendments Approved.  The City Council hereby grants and approves 

the following amendments to the Phase 1 PUD: 
 
1. Amend the “Project and Amendment History” section on Sheet 1 to add the  following 

statement: 
 

2022 (August 2, 2022) – City of Leadville City Council approved the 
Railyard Leadville Phase I PUD Third Amendment (Ordinance No.8, Series 
of 2022). The purpose of the amendment was to amend the 
Civic/Community Building Lot Type standards and uses to permit 
residential uses, including affordable, attainable, community, and 
workforce housing. 

2. Amend the “Civic/Community Building Lot Type” minimum setbacks, on Sheet 9 of 
the Phase 1 PUD, to read as follows: 
 
 
LOT DIMENSIONS: 

Minimum lot size: N/A   Minimum lot width: N/A 

SETBACKS: 

Front setback:                0’ minimum 
Rear setback:                 0’ minimum 
Side setback:                  5’ minimum 
 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 8 

Series of 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 

BUILDING: 

Maximum building height:       
        80% of building footprint:    38’ 
         20% of building footprint:   45’ 
Minimum total floor area: N/A 
Maximum lot coverage: 85% 

ALLOWED USES: 

Residential (limited to affordable, attainable, community, and workforce 
housing), recreation centers, community centers. 
Ground floor only: general retail stores, professional and business offices, 
personal service outlets (such as beauty salons and barber shops), 
laundromats, travel agencies, restaurants, cafes, bars, lounges, child care 
facilities, educational institutes, public or private school facilities. 

 
Section 3. Recordation. City staff is hereby directed to amend the Railyard at 

Leadville Planned Unit Development Phase 1 Second Amendment consistently with the 
amendments approved by this Ordinance and title the revised PUD as: “Railyard Leadville Phase 
1 PUD Third Amendment.” Staff is further directed to record a copy of the Railyard Leadville 
Phase 1 PUD Third Amendment in the records of the Lake County Clerk and Recorder. 

 
Section 4. Adoption on First Reading. Adoption of this Ordinance on first reading is 

intended only to confirm that the City Council desires to comply with Section 2.08.070 of the LMC 
by setting this Ordinance for consideration on second reading. Adoption of this Ordinance on first 
reading does not constitute a representation that the City Council, or any member of the City 
Council, supports, approves, rejects, or denies the proposed amendment. 

 
Section 5. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 

ordinance or enacted hereby be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment 
shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being 
that the various sections and provisions are severable. 

 
Section 6. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and 
this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done 
or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of 
this ordinance. 

 
  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 8 

Series of 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on 
first reading this 19th day July, 2022. 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 

______________________________________ 
     Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Leadville, Colorado, on the 21st day of July, 2022. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 
with any amendments, this 2nd day of August, 2022. 

 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on 
this ___________ day of _______________, 2022. 

 
 
 



 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 8.C 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

 
MEETING DATE: August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 34, Series of 2022: A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental 
Agreement Between the City of Leadville and Lake County Concerning the 
Establishment of a Multijurisdictional Housing Authority 

PRESENTED BY: Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 
 

 

 ORDINANCE 
 X RESOLUTION 
 MOTION 
 INFORMATION 

 

 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council is Resolution No. 34, Series of 2022, (the “Resolution”), which approves an 
intergovernmental agreement (“IGA”)with Lake County for the formation of a multijurisdictional 
housing authority. 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

The IGA before City Council for consideration was prepared following a series of joint meetings of the 
Leadville City Council and the Lake County Board of County Commissioners. The approval of the 
attached IGA will establish the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing Authority (“LLCRHA”). 

A regional housing authority is a separate public entity from the City and County that is governed by the 
IGA. The IGA sets out the powers and duties of the LLCRHA, the membership of its board of directors 
and their terms of service, and provides for the initial funding of the LLCRHA by the City and County.  

Following the formation of the LLCRHA, the Leadville Housing Authority (which serves within the City’s 
boundaries only) will continue to exist and serve its current housing project.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

The Resolution sets the City’s contribution toward the LLCRHA funding at an amount not to exceed 
$240,000.00 for the initial funding term of September 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023, subject to 
annual appropriation, and allows both the City and County to determine their contributions for future 
years after 2023. The IGA incorporates the projected budget of the Authority as Exhibit A to the IGA. 

 

CityClerk
Highlight



IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 

There are a number of revisions to the IGA recommended by the City Attorney, as shown in the attached 
redline version of the IGA. The Resolution authorizes the City Attorney, in consultation with the City 
Administrator, to negotiate changes to the IGA with the County as long as such changes do not increase 
the financial obligations of the City.  

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve Resolution No. 34, Series of 2022. 
 

VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:  
Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Resolution. 
2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments. 
3. Table the Resolution for further discussion and consideration. 

 
VII. PROPOSED MOTION: 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 34, Series of 2022, A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental 
Agreement Between the City of Leadville and Lake County Concerning the Establishment of a 
Multijurisdictional Housing Authority.” 

 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution No. 34, Series of 2022  

• Intergovernmental Agreement (Exhibit 1 to Resolution) 

• Redline of Recommended Revisions to IGA 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
RESOLUTION NO. 34 

SERIES OF 2022 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEADVILLE AND LAKE COUNTY CONCERNING THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A MULTIJURISDICTIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

WHEREAS, the provisions of Section 18 of Article XIV of the Colorado Constitution 
and Section 29-1-203 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”) allow Colorado governments 
to cooperate or to contract with one another to provide any function, service or facility lawfully 
authorized to each local government; and 
 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5 allows Colorado local governments to contract with 
each other to establish a separate governmental entity to be known as a multijurisdictional 
housing authority; and 
 

WHEREAS, Lake County and the City of Leadville have experienced a rapidly growing 
demand and need for attainable, affordable, community, and workforce housing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Lake County and Leadville communities have expressed a desire to 
address the insufficient attainable, affordable, community, and workforce housing in the City and 
County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville recognizes the benefits and 
advantages of working together with Lake County to establish and create a multijurisdictional 
housing authority to provide attainable, affordable, community, and workforce housing projects 
and programs for local residents, families, and employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Lake County received from the Department of Local Affairs 

(“DOLA”) an Affordable Housing Development Incentives Grant to jointly plan the creation of 
qualified strategies for the creation of affordable housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the creation of a multijurisdictional housing authority achieves several of 

DOLA’s qualifying strategies, including allowing for the use of publicly owned property for 
affordable housing, future land banking, and other incentives that encourage the development of 
affordable housing through the development of infrastructure and assisting with development 
fees; and  

 
WHEREAS, City Council therefore finds that it is in the best interests of the public 

health, safety, and welfare to enter into an intergovernmental agreement, in substantially the 
form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 1, with Lake County to establish the Leadville Lake 
County Regional Housing Authority. 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 34 

Series of 2022 
Page 2 

 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS:  
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference as findings 
and determinations of City Council. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby: (a) approves the Intergovernmental Agreement 
Establishing the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing Authority (“Agreement”) in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1; (b) authorizes the City Attorney, in 
consultation with the City Administrator, to negotiate any changes to the Agreement as may be 
necessary that do not increase the obligations of the City; and (c) authorizes the Mayor to 
execute the Agreement on behalf of the City once in final form. 

Section 3. Severability. If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Resolution is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining provisions. 

 Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by the 
City Council. 
 

 

ADOPTED this 2nd day of August 2022 by a vote of   in favor,   against,  
  abstaining, and   absent. 

 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 

  
___________________________________  
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
  



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 34 

Series of 2022 
Page 3 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
 

(see attached document) 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
 ESTABLISHING THE  

LEADVILLE LAKE COUNTY REGIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of 
the Effective Date defined below by and among the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY OF LAKE, COLORADO, whose address is 505 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461; 
the CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO, whose address is 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 
80461 (collectively, the “Parties”). 

A. The provisions of Section 18 or Article XIV of the Colorado Constitution and C.R.S. § 
29-1-203, allow Colorado local governments to cooperate or contract with one another  to provide any 
function, service or facility lawfully authorized to each local government.  

 
B. The provisions of C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5 allow Colorado local governments to contract with 

each other, subject to annual appropriation, to establish a separate governmental entity to be known as a 
multijurisdictional housing authority. 

 
C. A multijurisdictional housing authority established pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5 may 

be used by the contracting local governments to effect the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction or repair, maintenance, management, and operation of housing projects or programs 
pursuant to a multijurisdictional plan to provide: (a) dwelling accommodations at rental prices or purchase 
prices within the means of families, or individuals, of low or moderate income; and (b) affordable housing 
projects or programs for employees of employers located within the jurisdiction of the authority. 

 
D. The Parties recognize the benefits and advantages obtained by working together to 

establish and create a multijurisdictional housing authority to provide affordable housing projects or 
programs for local low or moderate income families and for employees of local employers, and therefore 
desire to participate with one another in the establishment of a multijurisdictional housing authority 
serving the interest of residents of Lake County and the City of Leadville.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and obligations 
herein set forth, the parties hereby mutually agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AUTHORITY  

  
Section 1.1. Establishment and Name of Authority. The Parties hereby establish a 

multijurisdictional housing authority to be known as the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing 
Authority (the “Authority”). 

 
Section 1.2. Purpose. As used in this Agreement, the term “affordable housing” shall include 

but shall not be limited to affordable housing, attainable housing, community housing, and workforce 
housing. This definition shall not be construed to place limits on the powers or duties of the Authority. 
The purpose of the Authority shall be to:  

 
(i) effect the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, reconstruction or repair, maintenance, 

management, and operation of housing projects or programs in Lake County, including the incorporated 
jurisdictions, to provide:  



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

 
(a) dwelling accommodations at rental prices or purchase prices within the means of families, or 

individuals, of low or moderate income;  
 

(b)  affordable housing projects or programs for employees of employers located within the 
jurisdiction of the Authority;  

 
(c)  senior housing facilities;  
 
(d)  administer housing voucher programs funded through the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development or other similar programs; and  
 
(e)  mixed income or mixed use properties that facilitate either of the purposes set forth in Section 

1.2 (a) or (b);  
 
(ii) administer programs such as lotteries and other administrative functions with respect to 

transferring deed restricted properties, with the individual jurisdictions being responsible for planning, 
financing, acquisition, construction, repair, maintenance, management, and operation of new affordable 
housing units in Lake County and the City of Leadville;  

 
(iii) educate current and future residents about deed restrictions and housing opportunities within 

Lake County and the City of Leadville; and  
 
(iv) to administer deed restriction compliance on behalf of the Parties. 
 
Section 1.3. Functions or Services. The Authority shall have any and all powers, duties, rights and 

obligations as such are set forth in C.R.S. Section 29-1-204.5, except as specifically provided herein. The 
functions and services of the Authority include without limitation the following: 

 
(i) Advise local governments of the practical applications of local housing policy and 

infrastructure needs; 

(ii) Review development proposals and participate as appropriate; 

(iii) Facilitate partnerships to create housing; 

(iv) Allocate funds for eligible housing projects; 

(v) Facilitate the establishment of a housing trust; 

(vi) Identify and facilitate the acquisition of vacant land that may be developed for affordable 
housing; 

(vii) Identify financing opportunities; 

(viii) Propose ballot initiatives in support of affordable housing; 

(ix) Acquire existing housing or other real estate to assure retention of or conversion to 
affordable housing stock; 

(x) Acquire land and obtain development approvals and issue requests for proposals for 
private sector and non-profit entities to build affordable housing; 

(xi) Develop new for-sale or rental affordable housing; 

(xii) Rehabilitate existing housing; 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(xiii) Manage affordable housing properties; 

(xiv) Administer housing voucher programs; 

(xv) Construct infrastructure to serve affordable housing. 

 

Section 1.4. Boundaries. The boundaries of the Authority shall be coterminous with the 
boundaries of the separate governmental entities that are party to this Agreement, unless said boundaries 
are modified by the Authority. 

 
Section 1.5. Separate Entity. The Authority shall be a political subdivision of the state, a 

governmental authority separate and apart from the Parties, and shall be a validly created and existing 
political subdivision and public corporation of the state, irrespective of whether a Party to this Agreement 
terminates its participation (whether voluntarily, by operation of law, or otherwise) in the Authority 
subsequent to its creation under circumstances not resulting in the rescission or termination of the 
Agreement establishing the Authority. It shall have the duties and the privileges, immunities, rights, 
liabilities and disabilities of a public body politic and the corporate. The Authority shall operate and exist 
pursuant to the provisions of C.R.S. Section 29-1-204.5, and is hereby explicitly recognized by the Parties 
not to exist under the laws of C.R.S. Section 29-4-201, et seq. The Authority may deposit and invest its 
moneys in the manner provided in this Agreement and in Article 10.5 and 47 of Title 11, Colorado 
Revised Statutes. The bonds, notes and other obligations of the Authority shall not be the debts, liabilities 
or obligations of the Parties. Further, the Parties to this Agreement do not waive or limit their right or 
ability to pursue their own individual affordable housing projects separate and apart from the Authority.  

 
Section 1.6. Term. The term of the Authority shall be continuous until terminated or rescinded in 

the manner set forth in Section 6.1. 
 
Section 1.7. No Waiver.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver by Lake  

County or the City of Leadville of any of their respective or joint planning, zoning, land use or other 
governmental authority or power.  All projects of the Authority shall be subject to the planning, zoning, 
sanitary, and building laws, ordinances, and regulations applicable to the locality in which a project is 
situated. 

 
ARTICLE II 

POWERS 
  

Section 2.1. Powers of Authority. In addition to any other powers provided by applicable law, the 
Authority shall have the following general powers: 

 
(i) To identify the need for affordable housing for the population segments identified by the 

Authority residing, or needing to reside, in either the City of Leadville or Lake County and to plan, 
finance, acquire, construct, reconstruct or repair, maintain, manage, and operate projects and programs 
pursuant to a multijurisdictional or individual jurisdiction plan within the means for families, or 
individuals, of low or moderate income, including without limitation the following programs: 

(a) First time home buyer education, 

(b) Home buyer down payment assistance, 

(c) Energy rehabilitation, 

(d) Mobile home rehabilitation, 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(e) Deed restriction purchase programs, 

(f) Senior housing, 

(g) Homeless and emergency housing services, 

(h) Senior housing rehabilitation program to keep seniors in their homes, and 

(i) Other programs that advance affordable housing efforts within Lake County. 

 
(ii) To plan, finance, acquire, construct, reconstruct or repair, maintain, manage, and operate 

affordable housing projects or programs for employees of employers located within the boundaries of the 
Authority; 

 
(iii) To make and enter into contracts with any person, including, without limitation, contracts 

with local, state or federal agencies, private enterprises, and nonprofit organizations also involved in 
providing such housing projects or programs or the financing for such housing projects or programs, 
irrespective of whether such agencies are parties to the agreement.  

 
(iv) To employ agents and employees, including an executive director, who may employees 

of one of the Parties, and to set the compensation and provide for performance review of the same; 
 
(v) The power, but not the duty or obligation, to develop creative financing and construction 

programs, as well as incentives, in order to encourage the public or private sector to provide affordable 
housing for families and individuals in the City of Leadville and Lake County, and to cooperate with state 
and federal governments in all respects concerning the financing of such housing projects and programs; 

 
(vi) To acquire, hold, lease (as lessor or lessee), sell, or otherwise dispose of any real or 

personal property, commodity, or service; 
 

(vii) To levy, in all of the area within the boundaries of the Authority, a sales or use tax, or 
both, upon every transaction or other incident with respect to which a sales or use tax is levied by the 
state, as more fully described in Section 4 of the Agreement. 

 
(viii) To levy, in all of the area within the boundaries of the Authority, an ad valorem tax, as 

more fully described in Section 4 of the Agreement.  
 
(ix) To incur debts, liabilities, or obligations; 
 
(x) To sue and be sued in its own name; 
 
(xi) To have a corporate seal; 
 
(xii) To fix, maintain, and revise fees, rents, security deposits, and chargers for functions, 

services, or facilities provided by the Authority; 
 
(xiii) To adopt, by resolution, bylaws, regulations, guidelines and policies respecting the 

exercise of its powers and the carrying out of its purposes; 
 
(xiv) To exercise any other powers that are essential to the provision of functions, services, or 

facilities by the Authority and that are specified in this Agreement; 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

 
(xv) To do and perform any acts and things authorized by C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5, as it may be 

amended from time to time, and by any other applicable law, under, though, or by means of an agent or 
by contracts with any person, firm, or corporation; and 

 
(xvi) To establish enterprises for the ownership, planning, financing, acquisition, construction, 

reconstruction or repair, maintenance, management, or operation, or any combination of the foregoing, of 
housing projects or programs authorized by C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5, as in may be amended from time to 
time, and by any other applicable law, on the same terms as and subject to the same conditions provided 
in C.R.S. § 43-4-605, as it may be amended from time to time. 

 
(xvii) To propose a referred measure to the electorate providing that the Authority is authorized 

to collect and spend or reserve all revenues of the Authority from existing property and sales or use taxes, 
non-federal grants and other revenue sources in any given year or in perpetuity to fulfill any of the 
prescribed purposes of the Authority, notwithstanding any limitation set forth in Article X, Section 20 of 
the Colorado Constitution.  

 
(xviii) To hold, administer, enforce, and/or cure deed restrictions on behalf of the Authority 

and/or the Parties. 
 

Section 2.2. Duties of the Authority. The Authority will have the duties set forth in this Section. 
 
(i) Administration:  The Authority shall: 
 

(a) Prepare an annual budget for the Authority pursuant to the terms and provisions of 
the Local Government Budget Law of Colorado, which will identify revenues and 
expenditures required to accomplish the goals and objectives of the Authority as set 
forth in this Agreement, and which shall be approved by the parties to this 
Agreement; 

(b) With respect to accounting, reporting, auditing, and operational procedures, follow 
the provisions and guidelines of the Colorado Local Government Uniform 
Accounting Law and the Colorado Local Government Audit Law;  

(c) Maintain records of all Authority meetings, resolutions, and planning documents and 
make them available in the Authority’s office for public review; and 

(d) Obtain its own legal counsel. Legal assistance for the Authority will be provided by 
outside counsel.  The Secretary shall recommend to the Board when legal services 
are required and how they may be obtained;  

(e) Purchase and maintain at all times an adequate policy of public entity liability 
insurance, which insurance shall at the minimum provide the amount of coverage 
described in C.R.S. 24-10-115(1), including errors and omissions coverage.  The 
Authority may purchase such additional insurance as the Board deems prudent.  The 
Authority’s employees acting within the scope of their employment shall be 
indemnified pursuant to C.R.S. Sec. 24-10-110; and 

(f) Administer community housing guidelines on behalf of the City and County. 

 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(ii) Management and Enforcement: The Authority shall:  
 

(a) Maintain records of existing affordable housing (rental and resale) for deed restricted 
housing occupants designated in this IGA or identified by the Authority, and to 
assure that such housing is used and occupied in accordance with existing City of 
Leadville or Lake County development approvals, deed restrictions, contracts, or 
financing requirements; 

(b) Seek to assure that the owners and/or occupants of all deed restricted housing units 
comply with applicable regulations or resolutions concerning rental or resale of deed 
restricted housing, and to institute uniform administration of all deed-restricted 
housing units within the City of Leadville and Lake County (which does not require 
that all deed restrictions have the same terms); 

(c) Adopt by resolution procedures for investigating apparent violations of the 
Authority’s regulations and resolutions, as well as specific penalties the Authority 
may impose for such violations, and to establish and implement an enforcement 
program therefore, including housing projects in existence prior to the date of this 
IGA regarding which Lake County and/or the City of Leadville have contracted with 
the Authority for enforcement. Variances and exception requests pertaining to deed 
restricted properties will be decided upon by the appropriate body of the governing 
jurisdiction consistent with the guidelines established by the City of Leadville and 
Lake County after being briefed by Authority staff; 

(d) Review and recommend establishment of a computerized deed-restricted housing 
availability record system for use by the City of Leadville and Lake County, the 
population segments designated in this IGA or otherwise identified by the Authority, 
and members of the general public; and 

(e) Establish uniform fees and charges for services provided by the Authority, which fees 
may only be waived by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors of the 
Authority. 

 
(iii) Market Resales and Rental Vacancies and Review Qualifications of Applicants, Owners 

and Residents:  The Authority shall:  
 

(a) Notify the public of the availability of and review qualifications of applicants, owners 
and residents for deed restricted or affordable housing rental units; and  

(b) Notify the public of the availability of and review qualifications of owners and 
applicants for, and arrange for transfer of title to, deed-restricted or affordable 
housing fee ownership housing units. 

 
(iv) Needs Assessment: The Authority shall:  
 

(a) Investigate affordable housing and employment conditions within the jurisdictions of 
the City of Leadville and Lake County and the means and methods for improving 
those conditions; and 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(b) Maintain data indicating affordable housing needs in the City of Leadville and Lake 
County for the population segments designated in this IGA or otherwise identified by 
the Authority. 

 
(v) Authority Recommendations:  The Authority shall report annually to the governing 

bodies of the City of Leadville and Lake County the affordable housing needs within the City of Leadville 
and Lake County for the population segments designated in this IGA or identified by the Authority, as 
well as the qualifications for ownership or rental of such housing units, as required by existing 
agreements, land use regulations, deed restrictions, and, upon request, make recommendations for 
amendments to the development regulations of the City of Leadville and Lake County. 

 
ARTICLE III 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 
 

Section 3.1. Board of Directors. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors, in 
which all legislative power of the Authority shall be vested. 
 

(i) Number and Qualification of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have seven (7) 
members. Each of the Parties shall appoint two members to the Board, at least one of whom shall be an 
elected official of the appointing party. The Board of Directors shall select three (3) additional members 
at large who shall be appointed by majority vote of the Board of Directors. Individuals seeking 
appointment as an at large member of the Board of Directors shall apply by submitting at a minimum a 
letter of interest. All members of the Board of Directors must be residents of Lake County, Colorado, and 
shall have reached the age of 18 years on the effective date of their appointment.  

 
(ii) Term of Office. The term of office of each member of the Board shall be four (4) years, 

except that the initial term of the at large members shall be two (2) years. Each member of the Board shall 
continue to serve until the successor to such member has been appointed and qualified. The term of initial 
members shall be computed from the date of the first meeting of the Board. The term of each member 
other than initial members shall be computed from the date of termination of the preceding term. Any 
member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which such member’s 
predecessor was appointed shall be appointed for the remainder of such term. 

 
(iii) Vacancies. Vacancies in positions appointed by the Parties shall be filled by the entity 

experiencing the vacancy for the unexpired term.  Vacancies in at large positions shall be filled by a 
majority vote of the remaining members of the Board. 

 
(iv) Resignation or Removal. Any Board member may resign at any time, effective upon 

receipt by the Secretary or the President of written notice signed by the person who is resigning. Members 
of the Board who are elected officials serve at the pleasure of their appointing entity. The appointing 
entities may terminate the appointment of their appointees at will as any time without cause. Furthermore, 
unless excused by the Board, if a director fails to attend three regular meetings of the Board in any 
twelve-month period, or otherwise fails to perform any of the duties or obligations as a director, he or she 
may be removed by the Board and their position shall be filled by the Board or, in the case of an elected 
official, the appointing entity shall fill such vacancy within thirty (30) days after such removal. 
Consideration of removal of a director by the Board shall be at a regular or special meeting of the Board, 
reasonable notice of which shall be given to the director to be removed and, in the case of an elected 
official, the entity which appointed him or her.  

 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(v) Compensation of Directors. Directors shall receive no compensation for their services, 
but shall be entitled to reimbursement of necessary expenses, including without limitation travel 
expenses, incurred in the discharge of their duties. 

 
(vi) Action by Board. Each member of the Board shall have one vote on matters brought 

before the Board. A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum and a majority of the quorum shall 
be necessary for any action taken by the Board. Notwithstanding the forgoing, or any other provision 
herein to the contrary, the following actions shall require the approval of seventy-five percent (75%) of 
the full Board of Directors: (i) proposal of ballot initiatives; (iii) the removal of a director under Section 
3.1 (d) herein; and (ii) termination of the Authority. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to 
the public and conducted in accordance with the C.R.S. § 24-6-401 et seq. 

 
(vii) Duties of Board. The directors shall govern the business and affairs of the Authority. The 

directors shall also comply with all provisions of parts 1, 5, and 6 of Article 1 of Title 29 of the Colorado 
Revised Statues, which provisions relate to the obligations of local governments with respect to budgets, 
accounting, and audits, as such provisions may be amended from time to time.  

 

Section 3.2. Officers. The officers of the Authority shall be President, a Vice-President, a 
Secretary, and a Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. Such other officers 
and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. 
Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.  

 
(i) Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Authority shall be elected annually by 

the Board. Each officer shall hold the office until his/her successor shall have been duly elected and shall 
have been qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign or shall have been removed in 
the manner hereinafter provided.   

 
(ii) Resignation or Removal. Any officer may resign from office at any time, effective upon 

receipt by the Secretary or the President of written notice signed by the person who is resigning. Any 
officer may be removed from office by the Board whenever in the Board’s judgement the best interest of 
the Authority will be served thereby.  

 
(iii) Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, 

disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of the unexpired portion of the term.  
 
(iv) Duties. 
 

(a) President: The President, when present, shall preside at all meetings of the Board of 
Directors. He or she may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the 
Authority deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board 
of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and 
execution thereof is expressly delegated by the Board of Directors to some other 
officer or agent of the Authority, or is required by law to be otherwise signed or 
executed; and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of President 
and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to 
time.  

 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(b) Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of the President’s 
death, inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the 
President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the 
restrictions upon the President. The Vice President shall perform such other duties as 
from time to time may be assigned to the Vice President by the President or by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
(c) Secretary: The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Board 

of Directors; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions 
of the C.R.S. 24-6-401 et seq. and this Agreement or as otherwise provided by law;  
c) attest to documents signed by the President, Vice President, or other authorized 
member or agent of the Board of Directors; (d) in general perform all duties incident 
to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned 
to the Secretary by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

 
(d) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the financial officer for the Authority and shall: (a) 

coordinate with the department of revenue regarding the collection of sales and use 
tax authorized pursuant to paragraph (f.1) of subsection (3) of C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5; 
(b) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds of the Authority; (c) 
receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Authority from any 
source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Authority in such 
banks, trust companies or other depositaries as designated by the Board of Directors; 
and (d) in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such 
other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Treasurer by the President or 
by the Board of Directors. All checks written from an Authority bank account over 
ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) shall require the signature of the Treasurer and a 
single member of the Board of Directors or the signature of two members of the 
Board of Directors. 

Section 3.3. Executive Director. The Executive Director shall be the chief executive officer of the 
Authority, shall supervise the activities of the Authority, shall see that all policies, directions and orders 
of the Board are carried out and shall, under the supervision of the Board, have such other authority, 
powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board. The Executive Director shall be appointed by a 
majority vote of the Board, shall report to the Board of Directors, and shall have his or her salary and 
compensation set by the Board. The Executive Director shall have the authority to hire additional staff 
members pursuant to the budget adopted by the Board and shall also have firing authority over those staff 
members. 

 
Section 3.4. Committees. The Board of Directors may create such committees as it deems 

necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the affairs of the Authority, which shall include the 
following:  

(i) Grievance Committee, which will have as members three (3) Board Members 
comprised of one elected official from each government entity and one at large member, with the 
following responsibilities:   

(a) Appeals or grievances of community guidelines, 

(b) Meetings scheduled as needed, 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(c) May request engagement of an attorney for legal advice, and 

(d) The executive director will submit staff reports and serves as staff for the committee. 

 
(ii) Development Committee, which will have as members the executive director, one 

Board member who has land use and/or property development experience (which may not include a 
Board member elected to or serving on the Lake County or City of Leadville planning commissions), and 
three committee members who do not serve on the Board. All recommendations, development plans, and 
expenditures of this committee must be approved by the Board.  

(a) The Development Committee is responsible for advancing development of affordable 
housing in Lake County by: 

o Preparing RFQs for development, 
o Working and advancing public private partnerships, and 
o Leveraging land assets of the Authority for the development of affordable 

housing; 
(b) The Development Committee will serve as a referral agency with the Executive 

Director for reviewing land use applications in both the City of Leadville and Lake 
County that have affordable housing components; 

(c)  Meeting scheduled as needed with the Executive Director; and 

(d) Attendance by two (2) or more members plus the Executive Director will constitute a 
quorum. 

 
Section 3.5. Conflicts of Interest. No member of the Board nor any immediate member of the 

family of any such member shall acquire or have any interest, direct or indirect, in (a) any property or 
project acquired, held, leased or sold by the Authority; or (b) any entity with whom the Authority has 
contracted with to plan, finance, construct, reconstruct, repair, maintain, manage or operate any property, 
project or program related to the Authority. If any Board member has such an interest, whether direct or 
indirect, he or she shall immediately disclose the same in writing to the Board of Directors, and such 
disclosure shall be entered upon the minutes of the Board. Upon such disclosure, such Board member 
shall not participate in any action by the Board affecting the project, property, or contract unless the 
Board determines that, in light of such personal interest, the participation of such member in any such act 
would not be contrary to the public interest. 

 
Section 3.6. Insurance. The Authority shall purchase and maintain at all times an adequate policy 

of public entity liability insurance, which insurance shall at the minimum provide the amount of coverage 
described in C.R.S. § 24-10-115(1), including errors and omissions coverage. The Authority may 
purchase such additional insurance as the Board deems prudent. The Authority's employees acting within 
the scope of their employment shall be indemnified pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-10-110. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

SOURCES OF REVENUE 
  

Section 4.1. Sources of Revenue. The expected sources of revenue for the Authority may include, 
but are not limited to the following: 

(i) Federal, state, local and private grants or donations; 

(ii) Property management fees; 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(iii) Rents or other lease income; 

(iv) Interest on interest bearing accounts 

(v) Proprietary revenue of the Parties in accordance with the Agreement; 

(vi) Sales and/or use taxes levied in accordance with this Agreement and other applicable 
law; 

(vii) Ad valorem taxes levied in accordance with this Agreement and other applicable law; 

(viii) Revenue or general obligation bonds issued in accordance with applicable law; and 

(ix) Development Impact Fees of not more than two dollars ($2.00) per square foot. 

 
Section 4.2. Prerequisites for All Tax Levies. The Authority shall not establish or increase any tax 

unless first submitted to a vote of the registered electors of the Authority in which the tax is proposed to 
be collected. Moreover, prior to levying any tax within the boundaries of the Authority, the Board of 
Directors shall: 

(i) Adopt a resolution determining that the levying of such taxes or fees will fairly distribute 
the costs of the Authority's activities among the persons and businesses benefited thereby and will not 
impose an undue burden on any particular group of persons or businesses; and 

(ii) Obtain the prior written consent of the governing party or parties having jurisdiction over 
the property on which the taxes or fees are proposed to be levied or imposed. 

Section 4.3. Sales and Use Tax. Any sales or use tax imposed or levied by the Authority on any 
transactions within the boundaries of the Authority shall not exceed the rate of one percent. A super 
majority vote (75%) of the entire board Board is required to advance a ballot initiative for a sales or use 
tax, including consent of all four (4) appointed members from the local governments and at least one (1) 
at large member.  Prior to levying any voter approved sales or use tax, the Authority shall designate a 
financial officer who shall coordinate with the Colorado Department of Revenue regarding the collection, 
administration, and enforcement of any sales and use tax to be levied in the manner established by C.R.S. 
§ 29-1-204.5, as it may be amended from time to time, and by other applicable law. The Authority shall 
apply the proceeds of all sales or use taxes solely towards the purposes, functions, or services authorized 
by this Agreement. 
 
 Section 4.4. Ad Valorem Taxes. The Authority may levy an ad valorem tax on all properties 
within the Authority's boundaries at a rate not to exceed one (1) mill on each dollar of valuation for 
assessment of the taxable property within such boundaries. To levy an ad valorem tax, the Board shall 
certify to the Lake County Board of County Commissioners the levy of ad valorem property taxes in 
accordance with the schedule prescribed by C.R.S. § 39-5-128, as it may be amended from time to time. 
Thereafter, Lake County shall levy and collect the ad valorem taxes in the manner prescribed by law. All 
taxes levied under this Section 4.4, together with interest thereon and penalties for default in payment 
thereof, and all costs of collecting them shall constitute, until paid, a perpetual lien on and against the 
property taxed, and such lien shall be on a parity with the tax lien of other general taxes. 
 
 Section 4.5. Other Sources of Revenue. The parties shall provide, at a minimum, funding for the 
Authority beginning on September 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023 (“Initial Funding Term”) in the 
amounts set forth in subsection (i) of this Section 4.5. Funding by the parties for the Initial Funding Term 
shall be consistent with the initial projected budget for the Authority (“Projected Budget”), which is 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. The parties may agree to provide additional funding for future 
years after the Initial Funding Term. The parties acknowledge that such funding may not be adequate to 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

completely fund the Authority for such years. Funding from each party shall be subject to annual 
availability and appropriation by the governing body of each jurisdiction. 
 

(i) Proportional Shares of Funding. The Parties agree that the responsibility for funding 
during the Initial Funding Term set forth in Section 4.5 herein should be shared by the Parties in the 
following amounts: 

 
Lake County  $326,000.00 
City of Leadville $240,000.00 

 
(ii) Payment Dates. The Parties shall pay their respective sums due to the Authority no later 

than January 30th of each year. In addition to the foregoing, the Parties may, from time to time, pay the 
Authority with proprietary revenues or other public funds for services rendered or facilities provided by 
the Authority, as contributions to defray the cost of any purpose set forth in this Agreement, and/or as 
advances for any purpose subject to repayment by the Authority. 

 
ARTICLE V 

AUTHORITY PROPERTY 
 
In the event of termination or dissolution of the Authority, all right, title and interest of the Authority in 
General Assets (as hereinafter defined) shall be conveyed to the jurisdictions that are parties to this 
Agreement at the time of termination, as tenants-in-common subject to any outstanding liens, mortgages, 
or other pledges of such General Assets. The interest in the General Assets of the Authority conveyed to 
each party shall be that proportion which the total dollar amount paid or contributed by such jurisdiction 
to the Authority for all purposes during the life of the Authority bears to the total dollar amount of all 
such payments and contributions made to the Authority by all such jurisdictions during the life of the 
Authority. The term "General Assets" as used herein shall include all legal and equitable interests in real 
or personal property, tangible or intangible, of the Authority. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
TERMINATION OR ADDITIONAL MEMBERS 

 
 Section 6.1. Termination of Authority. This Agreement may be terminated by the 

approval of seventy-five percent (75%) of the full Board of Directors or when less than two governmental 
parties are willing to remain as parties to this Agreement. Upon termination, each Party hereto shall be 
released from all further liability and obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the right of 
the Board or the Parties to terminate this Agreement shall be abrogated if the Authority has bonds, notes 
or other obligations outstanding at the time of the proposed termination, unless: (i) provision for full 
payment of such obligations, by escrow or otherwise, has been made pursuant to the terms of such 
obligations, and (ii) nationally recognized bond counsel has delivered an opinion to the effect that such 
termination or rescission, in and of itself, will not adversely affect the tax status of interest payable on 
such escrowed obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement and the resulting dissolution of 
the Authority, the assets of the Authority shall be distributed as follows: 

 
(i) All assets acquired from contributions from the City of Leadville or Lake County shall be 

returned to the contributing party if said assets are still in existence.   

 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

(ii) If assets contributed to the Authority are not in existence, the contributing party shall 
have the option of receiving the fair market value of each asset at the time of disposal by the Authority in 
either cash or assets of the Authority. 

 
(iii) All assets acquired by the Authority after the date of this Agreement from funds provided 

by the parties shall be distributed to the parties on the basis of the appraised value of said assets at the 
time of termination and in the same proportion as the respective contributions of funds by the parties for 
acquisition of each asset. 

 
(iv) The City of Leadville and Lake County may agree in writing to dispose of any assets of 

the Authority in any other acceptable manner. 

 
(v)  If the City of Leadville and Lake County cannot agree on the disposition of any assets of 

the Authority within sixty (60) days after termination, said assets shall be subject to an independent 
appraisal and shall be sold at public auction with the deed restriction intact as soon as practicable with the 
proceeds allocated to the City of Leadville and Lake County in the same proportion as the total 
contribution of funds by the respective parties for acquisition of the asset.   

 unless provision for full payment of the same has been made by escrow or otherwise. 
 
 Section 6.2. Termination of Participation. Any Party may terminate its participation in this 
Agreement as of the end of any calendar year by giving at least 90 days' written notice to the other Party 
or Parties, provided that such withdrawing party shall pay all of its obligations hereunder or pursuant to 
any effective funding agreement through and including the effective date of the termination of its 
participation. 
 
 Section 6.3. Amendment to Provide for Additional Members. This Agreement may be amended 
to add one or more additional parties upon: (a) resolution of the Board of Directors providing for such 
amendment; and (b) approval of such amendment by the governing body of the prospective additional 
party and each then-existing party. 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 Section 7.1. Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date of the last 
party to sign. 
 
 Section 7.2. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement about its subject 
matter among the Parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, if any, and may be 
amended, modified or supplemented only by an instrument in writing executed by all Parties to this 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 7.3. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Parties to this Agreement do not intend to benefit 
any person not a party to this Agreement. No person or entity, other than the Parties to this Agreement, 
shall have any right, legal or equitable, to enforce any provision of this Agreement. 
 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

 Section 7.4. Signatory Authority. Each person signing this Agreement in a representative 
capacity, expressly represents the signatory has the subject Party's authority to so sign and that the subject 
Party will be bound by the signatory's execution of this Agreement. Each Party expressly represents that 
except as to the approval specifically required by this Agreement, such Party does not require any third 
party's consent to enter into this Agreement. 
 

Section 7.5. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute one original Agreement. 

 
Section 7.6. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be adjudicated to be 

invalid, illegal or unenforceable, this Agreement shall be deemed amended to delete therefrom the term or 
provision thus adjudicated to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable and the validity of the other terms and 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

 
Section 7.7. Interpretation. Subject only to the express limitations set forth herein, this Agreement 

shall be liberally construed (a) to permit the Authority and the parties to exercise all powers that may be 
exercised by a multijurisdictional housing authority pursuant to Colorado law; (b) permit the parties 
hereto to exercise all powers that may be exercised by them with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement and applicable law; and (c) to permit the Board of Directors to exercise all powers that may be 
exercised by the board of directors of a multijurisdictional housing authority pursuant to Colorado law 
and by the governing body of a separate legal entity created by contract among the parties pursuant to 
C.R.S. § 29-1-203. 
 
 Section 7.8. Pre-Existing Projects.  The Authority shall not be the successor to any nonprofit 
corporation, agency, or other entity heretofore organized by the contracting member governments to 
provide the same function, service or facility.  No rights, contracts, obligations, and property, both real 
and personal, of such municipality or county used for or in relation to housing shall vest in the Authority, 
including any ownership interest in any housing projects in existence at the time of the execution of this 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 7.9. Notices. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice under this 
Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed sufficient when directly presented, sent via electronic 
mail, or sent via pre-paid, first-class United States Mail, to the party at the applicable address set forth 
below: 
 

If to Lake County:  Board of County Commissioners 
     Attn: County Manager 

P.O. Box 964 
     Leadville, CO  80461 
     tbergman@co.lake.co.us 
 

With a copy to:   Lake County Attorney 
     P.O. Box 964 
     Leadville, CO  80461 

chris@rmgclaw.com 
 

If to the City of Leadville: City Administrator 
City of Leadville 
800 Harrison Avenue 
Leadville, CO 80461 
cityadmin@leadville-co.gov 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

 
with a copy to:   Leadville City Attorney 

     Michow Cox & McAskin LLP 
6530 S. Yosemite St., Suite 200 
Greenwood Village, CO  80111 
christiana@mcm-legal.com 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW 
 
  

mailto:christiana@mcm-legal.com


Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT is executed and made effective as 
provided herein. 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
LAKE COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Kayla Marcella, Chair 
 
Date of execution: ______________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Patty Berger, Clerk and Recorder 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Chris Floyd, County Attorney 
 
  



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: _______________________  
 
Title: ______________________________ 
 
Date of execution: ____________________ 

ATTEST: 
 

 

__________________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM (excluding exhibits): 
 

 

__________________________________ 
City Attorney 
  



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

EXHIBIT A 
PROJECTED BUDGET 

 
 
 

(see next page)  
 
 



Draft – Clean City Revised 7-27-2022 

 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 ESTABLISHING THE  

LEADVILLE LAKE COUNTY REGIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of 
the Effective Date defined below by and among the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY OF LAKE, COLORADO, whose address is 505 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461; 
the CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO, whose address is 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 
80461; (collectively, the “Parties”). 

A. The provisions of Section 18 or Article XIV of the Colorado Constitution and C.R.S. § 
29-1-203, allow Colorado local governments to cooperate or contract with one another  to provide any 
function, service or facility lawfully authorized to each local government.  

 
B. The provisions of C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5 allow Colorado local governments to contract with 

each other, subject to annual appropriation, to establish a separate governmental entity to be known as a 
multijurisdictional housing authority. 

 
C. A multijurisdictional housing authority established pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5 may 

be used by the contracting local governments to effect the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction or repair, maintenance, management, and operation of housing projects or programs 
pursuant to a multijurisdictional plan to provide: (a) dwelling accommodations at rental prices or purchase 
prices within the means of families, or individuals, of low or moderate income; and (b) affordable housing 
projects or programs for employees of employers located within the jurisdiction of the authority. 

 
D. The Parties recognize the benefits and advantages obtained by working together to 

establish and create a multijurisdictional housing authority to provide affordable housing projects or 
programs for local low or moderate income families and for employees of local employers, and therefore 
desire to participate with one another in the establishment of a multijurisdictional housing authority 
serving the interest of residents of Lake County and the City of Leadville.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and obligations 
herein set forth, the parties hereby mutually agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AUTHORITY  

  
Section 1.1. Establishment and Name of Authority. The Parties hereby establish a 

multijurisdictional housing authority to be known as the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing 
Authority” (the “Authority”). 

 
Section 1.2. Purpose. As used in this Agreement, the term “affordable housing” shall include 

but shall not be limited to affordable housing, attainable housing, community housing, and workforce 
housing. This definition shall not be construed to place limits on the powers or duties of the Authority. 
The purpose of the Authority shall be to:  

 
(i) effect the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, reconstruction or repair, maintenance, 

management, and operation of housing projects or programs in Lake County, including the incorporated 
jurisdictions, to provide:  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

 
(a) (a) dwelling accommodations at rental prices or purchase prices within the means of families, 

or individuals, of low or moderate income;  
 

(b)  affordable housing projects or programs for employees of employers located within the 
jurisdiction of the Authority;  

 
(c)  senior housing facilities;  
 
(d)  administer housing voucher programs funded through the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development or other similar programs; and  
 
(e)  mixed income or mixed use properties that facilitate either of the purposes set forth in Section 

1.2 (a) or (b);  
 
(ii) administer programs such as lotteries and other administrative functions with respect to 

transferring deed restricted properties, with the individual jurisdictions being responsible for planning, 
financing, acquisition, construction, repair, maintenance, management, and operation of new Aaffordable, 
attainable and workforce Hhousing Uunits in Lake County and the City of Leadville;  

 
(iii) educate current and future residents about deed restrictions and housing opportunities within 

Lake County and the City of Leadville; and.  
 
(iv) to administer deed restriction compliance on behalf of the Parties. 
 
Section 1.3. Functions or Services. The Authority shall have any and all powers, duties, rights and 

obligations as such are set forth in C.R.S. Section 29-1-204.5, except as specifically provided herein. The 
functions and services of the Authority include without limitation the following: 

 
(i) Advise local governments of the practical applications of local housing policy and 

infrastructure needs; 

(ii) Review development proposals and participate as appropriate; 

(iii) Facilitate partnerships to create housing; 

(iv) Allocate funds for eligible housing projects; 

(v) Facilitate the establishment of a housing trust; 

(vi) Identify and facilitate the acquisition of vacant land that may be developed for affordable 
housing; 

(vii) Identify financing opportunities; 

(viii) Propose ballot initiatives in support of affordable housing; 

(ix) Acquire existing housing or other real estate to assure retention of or conversion to 
affordable housing stock; 

(x) Acquire land and obtain development approvals and issue requests for proposals for 
private sector and non-profit entities to build affordable housing; 

(xi) Develop new for-sale or rental affordable housing; 

(xii) Rehabilitate existing housing; 

Commented [CM1]: I would like some clarification on what 
this paragraph is intended to do/say. Maybe there is an 
example that will help illustrate? Isn't the Authority 
responsible for planning, financing, acquiring, etc. housing 
projects and programs? How is this clause different?  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(xiii) Manage affordable housing properties; 

(xiv) Administer housing voucher programs; 

(xv) Construct iInfrastructure to serve affordable housing. 

 

Section 1.4. Boundaries. The boundaries of the Authority shall be coterminous with the 
boundaries of the separate governmental entities that comprise the Authorityare party to this Agreement, 
unless said boundaries are modified by the Authority. 

 
 Section 1.5. Separate Entity. The Authority shall be a political subdivision of the state, a 

governmental authority separate and apart from the Parties, and shall be a validly created and existing 
political subdivision and public corporation of the state, irrespective of whether a Pparty to this 
Agreement to this agreement terminates its participation (whether voluntarily, by operation of law, or 
otherwise) in the Authority subsequent to its creation under circumstances not resulting in the rescission 
or termination of the Agreement establishing the Authority. It shall have the duties and the privileges, 
immunities, rights, liabilities and disabilities of a public body politic and the corporate. The Authority 
shall operate and exist pursuant to the provisions of C.R.S. Section 29-1-204.5, and is hereby explicitly 
recognized by the Parties not to exist under the laws of C.R.S. Section 29-4-201, et seq. The Authority 
may deposit and invest its moneys in the manner provided in this Agreement and in Article 10.5 and 47 of 
Title 11, Colorado Revised Statutes. The bonds, notes and other obligations of the Authority shall not be 
the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Parties. Further, the Parties to this Agreement do not waive or 
limit their right or ability to pursue their own individual affordable housing projects separate and apart 
from the Authority.  

 
Section 1.6. Term. The term of the Authority shall be continuous until terminated or rescinded in 

the manner set forth in Section 6.1. 
 
Section 1.7. No Waiver.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver by Lake  

County or the City of Leadville of any of their respective or joint planning, zoning, land use or other 
governmental authority or power.  All projects of the Authority shall be subject to the planning, zoning, 
sanitary, and building laws, ordinances, and regulations applicable to the locality in which a project is 
situated. 

 
ARTICLE II 

POWERS 
  

Section 2.1. Powers of Authority. In addition to any other powers provided by applicable law, the 
Authority shall have the following general powers: 

 
(i) To identify the need for affordable housing for the population segments identified by the 

Authority residing, or needing to reside, in either the City of Leadville or Lake County and to plan, 
finance, acquire, construct, reconstruct or repair, maintain, manage, and operate projects and programs 
pursuant to a multijurisdictional or individual jurisdiction plan within the means for families, or 
individuals, of low or moderate income, including without limitation the following programs: 

(a) First time home buyer education, 

(b) Home buyer down payment assistance, 

(c) Energy rehabilitation, 

(d) Mobile home rehabilitation, 

Commented [CM2]: There are a number of housing terms 
that Leadville has been using in various documents/settings, 
such as affordable housing, community housing, workforce 
housing, and attainable housing. Should those 
terms/concepts be incorporated here to ensure that the 
regional housing authority has the ability to be part of those 
projects? 

Commented [CF3R2]: I’m a bit concerned with getting too 
specific in the IGA, since that may artificially limit the scope 
of projects.  Perhaps it would be better to have the 
Community Guideline contain more specificity. 

Commented [CM4R2]: I don't want to get too specific. My 
concern is that just saying "affordable housing" is too 
specific and it won't line up with other documents or the 
broader spectrum of housing that the RHA is intended to 
assist with. 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(e) Deed restriction purchase programs, 

(f) Senior Hhousing, 

(g) Homeless and emergency housing services, 

(h) Senior housing rehabilitation program to keep seniors in their homes, and 

(i) Other programs that advance affordable housing efforts within Lake County. 

 
(ii) To plan, finance, acquire, construct, reconstruct or repair, maintain, manage, and operate 

affordable housing projects or programs for employees of employers located within the boundaries of the 
Authority; 

 
(iii) To make and enter into contracts with any person, including, without limitation, contracts 

with local, state or federal agencies, private enterprises, and nonprofit organizations also involved in 
providing such housing projects or programs or the financing for such housing projects or programs, 
irrespective of whether such agencies are parties to the agreement.  

 
(iv) To employ agents and employees, including an executive director, who may employees 

of one of the Parties, and to set the compensation and provide for performance review of the same; 
 
(v) The power, but not the duty or obligation, to develop creative financing and construction 

programs, as well as incentives, in order to encourage the public or private sector to provide Aaffordable 
Hhousing for families and individuals in the City of Leadville and Lake County, and to cooperate with 
state and federal governments in all respects concerning the financing of such housing projects and 
programs; 

 
(vi) To acquire, hold, lease (as lessor or lessee), sell, or otherwise dispose of any real or 

personal property, commodity, or service; 
 

(vii) Only with the express prior written permission of the local government within which the subject 
property is located, to condemn property for public use, if such property is not owned by any 
governmental entity or any public utility and devoted to public use pursuant to state authority’ provided, 
that the Authority has obtained the prior written consent of the party or parties having jurisdiction over 
the property to be condemned; 
 

(viii)(vii) To levy, in all of the area within the boundaries of the Authority, a sales or use 
tax, or both, upon every transaction or other incident with respect to which a sales or use tax is levied by 
the state, as more fully described in Section 4.3 of the Agreement. 

 
(ix)(viii) To levy, in all of the area within the boundaries of the Authority, an ad valorem 

tax, as more fully described in Section 4.4 of the Agreement.  
 
(x)(ix) To incur debts, liabilities, or obligations;’ 
 
(xi)(x) To sue and be sued in its own name; 
 
(xii)(xi) To have a corporate seal; 
 

Commented [CM5]: Is the deletion of this paragraph 
intended to remove the Authority's condemnation powers? 
If so, the reference to condemnation in paragraph vi in 
Article III below should be deleted.  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(xiii)(xii) To fix, maintain, and revise fees, rents, security deposits, and chargers for 
functions, services, or facilities provided by the Authority; 

 
(xiv)(xiii) To adopt, by resolution, bylaws, regulations, guidelines and policies respecting 

the exercise of its powers and the carrying out of its purposes; 
 
(xv)(xiv) To exercise any other powers that are essential to the provision of functions, 

services, or facilities by the Authority and that are specified in this Agreement; 
 
(xvi)(xv) To do and perform any acts and things authorized by C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5, as it 

may be amended from time to time, and by any other applicable law, under, though, or by means of an 
agent or by contracts with any person, firm, or corporation; and 

 
(xvii)(xvi) To establish enterprises for the ownership, planning, financing, acquisition, 

construction, reconstruction or repair, maintenance, management, or operation, or any combination of the 
foregoing, of housing projects or programs authorized by C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5, as in may be amended 
from time to time, and by any other applicable law, on the same terms as and subject to the same 
conditions provided in C.R.S. § 43-4-605, as it may be amended from time to time. 

 
(xvii) To propose a referred measure to the electorate providing that the Authority is authorized 

to collect and spend or reserve all revenues of the Authority from existing property and sales or use taxes, 
non-federal grants and other revenue sources in any given year or in perpetuity to fulfill any of the 
prescribed purposes of the Authority, notwithstanding any limitation set forth in Article X, Section 20 of 
the Colorado Constitution.  

 
(xviii) To hold, administer, enforce, and/or cure deed restrictions on behalf of the Authority 

and/or the Parties. 
 

Section 2.2. Duties of the Authority. The Authority will have the following duties set forth in this 
Section.: 
 
(i)  2.2.1 Administration:  The Authority shall: 
 

(a) (a) PTo prepare an annual budget for the Authority pursuant to the terms and 
provisions of the Local Government Budget Law of Colorado, which will identify 
revenues and expenditures required to accomplish the goals and objectives of the 
Authority as set forth in this Agreement, and which shall be approved by the parties 
to this Agreement; and 

(b)(a)  

(c) (b) With respect to accounting, reporting, auditing, and operational procedures, the 
Authority shall follow the provisions and guidelines of the Colorado Local 
Government Uniform Accounting Law and the Colorado Local Government Audit 
Law; . 

(d)(b)  

(e) (c) MTo maintain records of all Authority meetings, resolutions, and planning 
documents and make them available in the Authority’s office for public review; and. 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(f)(c)  

(g) Obtain its own legal counsel. (d) Legal assistance for the Authority will be 
provided by outside counsel.  The Secretary shall recommend to the Board when 
legal services are required and how they may be obtained; . 

(h)(d)  

 (e) PThe Authority shall purchase and maintain at all times an adequate policy of 
public entity liability insurance, which insurance shall at the minimum provide the 
amount of coverage described in C.R.S. 24-10-115(1), including errors and omissions 
coverage.  The Authority may purchase such additional insurance as the Board deems 
prudent.  The Authority’s employees acting within the scope of their employment 
shall be indemnified pursuant to C.R.S. Sec. 24-10-110; and. 

(e)  

(i) (f) AThe Authority shall administeradopt Ccommunity Hhousing Gguidelines and 
be responsible for the administration of these guidelines on behalf of the City and 
County. 

(f)  

   

 

(ii)  2.2.2 Management and Enforcement: The Authority shall:  
 

(a) (a) MTo maintain records of existing aAffordable hHousing (rental and resale) for 
deed restricted housing occupants designated in this IGA or identified by the 
Authority, and to assure that such housing is used and occupied in accordance with 
existing City of Leadville or Lake County development approvals, deed restrictions, 
contracts, or financing requirements; 

(b)(a)  

(c) (b) STo seek to assure that the owners and/or occupants of all deed restricted 
housing units comply with applicable regulations or resolutions concerning rental or 
resale of deed restricted housing, and to institute uniform administration of all deed-
restricted housing units within the City of Leadville and Lake County (which does 
not require that all deed restrictions have the same terms); 

(d)(b)  

(e) (c) ATo adopt by resolution procedures for investigating apparent violations of the 
Authority’s regulations and resolutions, as well as specific penalties the Authority 
may impose for such violations, and to establish and implement an enforcement 
program therefore, including housing projects in existence prior to the date of this 
IGA regarding which Lake County and/or the City of Leadville have contracted with 
the Authority for enforcement. Variances and exception requests pertaining to deed 
restricted properties will be decided upon by the appropriate body of the governing 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

jurisdiction consistent with the guidelines established by the City of Leadville and 
Lake County after being briefed by Authority staff; 

(f)(c)  

(g) (d) RTo review and recommend establishment of a computerized deed-restricted 
housing availability record system for use by the City of Leadville and Lake County, 
the population segments designated in this IGA or otherwise identified by the 
Authority, and members of the general public; and 

(h)(d)  

(i)(e) (e) ETo establish uniform fees and charges for services provided by the 
Authority, which fees may only be waived by the affirmative vote of a majority of 
the directors of the Authority. 

 
(iii) 2.2.3 Market Resales and Rental Vacancies and Review Qualifications of Applicants, 

Owners and Residents:  The Authority shall:  
 

(a) (a) NTo notify the public of the availability of and review qualifications of 
applicants, owners and residents for deed restricted or aAffordable hHousing rental 
units; and  

(b)(a)  

(c)(b) (b) NTo notify the public of the availability of and review qualifications of 
owners and applicants for, and arrange for transfer of title to, deed-restricted or 
aAffordable hHousing fee ownership housing units. 

 
(iv)  2.2.4 Needs Assessment: The Authority shall:  
 

(a) (a) ITo investigate aAffordable hHousing and employment conditions within the 
jurisdictions of the City of Leadville and Lake County and the means and methods 
for improving those conditions; and 

(b)(a)  

(c)(b) (b) MTo maintain data indicating aAffordable Hhousing needs in the City of 
Leadville and Lake County for the population segments designated in this IGA or 
otherwise identified by the Authority. 

 
(v) 2.2.5 Authority Recommendations:  To The Authority shall report annually to the 

governing bodies of the City of Leadville and Lake County the aAffordable hHousing needs within the 
City of Leadville and Lake County for the population segments designated in this IGA or identified by the 
Authority, as well as the qualifications for ownership or rental of such housing units, as required by 
existing agreements, land use regulations, deed restrictions, and, upon request, make recommendations 
for amendments to the development regulations of the City of Leadville and Lake County. 

 
ARTICLE III 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 
 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

 Section 3.1. Board of Directors. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors, 
in which all legislative power of the Authority shall be vested. 
 

(i) Number and Qualification of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have seven (7) 
members. Each of the Parties shall appoint two members to the Board, at least one of whom shall be an 
elected official of the appointing party. The Board of Directors shall select three (3) additional members 
at large who shall be appointed by majority vote of the Board of Directors. Individuals seeking 
appointment as an at large member of the Board of Directors shall apply by submitting at a minimum a 
letter of interest. All members of the Board of Directors must be residents of Lake County, Colorado, and 
shall have reached the age of 18 years on the effective date of their appointment.  

 
(ii) Term of Office. Each Board member who is an elected official shall serve a four year 

term expiring on January 31 following each year of a Presidential General Election or the expiration of 
his or her term in office, whichever occurs first.  Upon expiration of an elected official’s term, a new 
elected official shall be appointed by the Party experiencing the vacancy within thirty (30) days. The 
initial term appointments of at large members to the Board of Directors will have staggered terms of two 
(2), three (3) and four (4) years as determined by the appointing board.  Thereafter, each appointed board 
member shall serve a two year term commencing on January 31 following each election held on the first 
Tuesday in November in each odd numbered year.  

 

(ii)        Term of Office. The term of office of each member of the Board shall be four (4) years, 
except that the initial term of the at large members shall be two (2) years. Each member of the Board shall 
continue to serve until the successor to such member has been appointed and qualified. The term of initial 
members shall be computed from the date of the first meeting of the Board. The term of each member 
other than initial members shall be computed from the date of termination of the preceding term. Any 
member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which such member’s 
predecessor was appointed shall be appointed for the remainder of such term. 

 
(iii) Vacancies. Vacancies in positions filled by elected officials, other than by reason of 

expiration of terms, appointed by the Parties shall be filled by the entity experiencing the vacancy for the 
unexpired term.  Vacancies in at large positions shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining 
members of the Board. 

 
(iv) Resignation ofr Removal. Any Board member may resign at any time, effective upon 

receipt by the Secretary or the President of written notice signed by the person who is resigning. Members 
of the Board who are elected officials serve at the pleasure of their appointing entity. The appointing 
entities may terminate the appointment of their appointees at will as any time without cause. Furthermore, 
unless excused by the Board, if a director fails to attend three regular meetings of the Board in any 
twelve-month period, or otherwise fails to perform any of the duties or obligations as a director, he or she 
may be removed by the Board and their position shall be filled by the Board or, in the case of an elected 
official, the appointing entity shall fill such vacancy within thirty (30) days after such removal. 
Consideration of removal of a director by the Board shall be at a regular or special meeting of the Board, 
reasonable notice of which shall be given to the director to be removed and, in the case of an elected 
official, the entity which appointed him or her.  

 
(v) Compensation of Directors. Directors shall receive no compensation for their services, 

but shall be entitled to reimbursement of necessary expenses, including without limitation travel 
expenses, incurred in the discharge of their duties. 

 

Commented [CM6]: I recommend making this section 
more simple and straightforward. My suggested alternative 
paragraph is included below this paragraph in highlighted 
text. The way it's currently written, the terms could be 
confusing, the commencement dates for at large members 
may not compute properly, and there would be a lot of 
administrative headache to keep track of term start and end 
dates and timing of appointments. The suggested language 
below addresses those issues but still keeps the terms 
staggered.  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(vi) Action by Board. Each member of the Board shall have one vote on matters brought 
before the Board. A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum and a majority of the quorum shall 
be necessary for any action taken by the Board. Notwithstanding the forgoing, or any other provision 
herein to the contrary, the following actions shall require the approval of seventy-five percent (75%) of 
the full Board of Directors: (i) condemnation of property for public use; (ii) proposal of ballot initiatives; 
(iii) the removal of a director under Section 3.1 (d) herein; and (iv) termination of the Authority. Meetings 
of the Board of Directors shall be open to the public and conducted in accordance with the C.R.S. § 24-
672-4201 et seq. 

 
(vii) Duties of Board. The directors shall govern the business and affairs of the Authority. The 

directors shall also comply with all provisions of parts 1, 5, and 6 of Article 1 of Title 29 of the Colorado 
Revised Statues, which provisions relate to the obligations of local governments with respect to budgets, 
accounting, and audits, as such provisions may be amended from time to time.  

 

Section 3.2. Officers. The officers of the Authority shall be President, a Vice-President, a 
Secretary, and a Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. Such other officers 
and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. 
Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.  

 
(i) Election and tTerm of Office. The officers of the Authority shall be elected annually by 

the Board. Each officer shall hold the office until his/her successor shall have been duly elected and shall 
have been qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign or shall have been removed in 
the manner hereinafter provided.   

 
(ii) Resignation orf Rremoval. Any officer may resign from office at any time, effective upon 

receipt by the Secretary or the President of written notice signed by the person who is resigning. Any 
officer may be removed from office by the Board whenever in the Board’s judgement the best interest of 
the Authority will be served thereby.  

 
(iii) Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, 

disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of the unexpired portion of the term.  
 
(iv) Duties. 
 

(a) President: The President, when present, shall preside at all meetings of the Board of 
Directors. He or she may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the 
Authority deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board 
of Directors has authorized to be executed., except in cases where the signing and 
execution thereof shall beis expressly delegated by the Board of Directors to some 
other officer or agent of the Authority, or shall beis required by law to be otherwise 
signed or executed; and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of 
President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from 
time to time.  

 
(b) Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his or herthe 

President’s death, inability or refusal to act, the Vice -President shall perform the 
duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be 
subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice -President shall perform 

Commented [CM7]: If the Authority isn't meant to have 
condemnation power under this IGA (see question above), 
this reference to condemnation should be removed and the 
items in this list renumbered.  

Commented [CM8]: This reference should be to the open 
meetings law, which is CRS 24‐6‐401 et seq, and I've 
updated the references in this IGA accordingly. The current 
citation refers to the open records law. 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or herthe Vice 
President by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

 
(c) Secretary: The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Board 

of Directors; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions 
of the C.R.S. 24-672-4201 et seq. and this Agreement or as otherwise provided by 
law; ( c) sign attest to documents with signed by the President, Vice President, or 
other authorized member or agent of the Board of Directors; ( d) in general perform 
all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to 
time may be assigned to him or herthe Secretary by the President or by the Board of 
Directors. 

 
(d) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the financial officer for the Authority and shall: (a) 

coordinate with the department of revenue regarding the collection of sales and use 
tax authorized pursuant to paragraph (f.1) of subsection (3) of C.R.S. § 29-1-204.5; 
(b) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds of the Authority; (c) 
receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Authority from any 
source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Authority in such 
banks, trust companies or other depositaries as designated by the Board of Directors; 
and ( d) in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such 
other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or herthe Treasurer by the 
President or by the Board of Directors. All checks written from an Authority bank 
account over ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) shall require the signature of the 
Treasurer and a single member of the Board of Directors or the signature of two 
members of the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 3.3. Executive Director. The Executive Director shall be the chief executive officer of the 
Authority, shall supervise the activities of the Authority, shall see that all policies, directions and orders 
of the Board are carried out and shall, under the supervision of the Board, have such other authority, 
powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board. The Executive Director shall be appointed by a 
majority vote of the Board, shall report to the Board of Directors, and shall have his or her salary and 
compensation set by the Board. The Executive Director shall have the authority to hire additional staff 
members pursuant to the budget adopted by the Board and shall also have firing authority over those staff 
members. 

 
Section 3.4. Committees. The Board of Directors may create such committees as it deems 

necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the affairs of the Authority, which shall include the 
following:  

(i) Grievance Committee, which will have as members three (3) Board Members 
comprised of one elected official from each government entity and one at large member, with the 
following responsibilities:   

(a) Appeals or grievances of community guidelines, 

(b) Meetings scheduled as needed, 

(c) May request engagement of an attorney for legal advice, and 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(d) The executive director will submit staff reports and serves as staff for the committee. 

 
(ii) Development Committee, which will have as members the executive director, one 

Board member who has land use and/or property development experience (which may not include a 
Board member elected to or serving on the Lake County or City of Leadville planning commissions), and 
three committee members who do not serve on the Board. All recommendations, development plans, and 
expenditures of this committee must be approved by the Board.  

(a) The Development Committee is responsible for advancing development of affordable 
housing in Lake County by: 

o Preparing RFQs for development,. 
o Working and advancing public private partnerships, and 
o Leveraging land assets of the Authority for the development of affordable 

housing;. 
(b) The Development Committee will serve as a referral agency with the Eexecutive 

Ddirector for reviewing land use applications in both the City of Leadville and Lake 
County that have affordable housing components;, 

(c)  Meeting scheduled as needed with the Eexecutive Ddirector,; and 

(d) Attendance by two (2) or more members plus the Eexecutive dDirector will 
constitute a quorum. 

 
Section 3.5. Conflicts of Interest. No member of the Board nor any immediate member of the 

family of any such member shall acquire or have any interest, direct or indirect, in (a) any property or 
project acquired, held, leased or sold by the Authority; or (b) any entity with whom the Authority has 
contracted with to plan, finance, construct, reconstruct, repair, maintain, manage or operate any property, 
project or program related to the Authority. If any Board member has such an interest, whether direct or 
indirect, he or she shall immediately disclose the same in writing to the Board of Directors, and such 
disclosure shall be entered upon the minutes of the Board. Upon such disclosure, such Board member 
shall not participate in any action by the Board affecting the project, property, or contract unless the 
Board determines that, in light of such personal interest, the participation of such member in any such act 
would not be contrary to the public interest. 

 
 Section 3.6. Insurance. The Authority shall purchase and maintain at all times an 

adequate policy of public entity liability insurance, which insurance shall at the minimum provide the 
amount of coverage described in C.R.S. § 24-10-115(1), including errors and omissions coverage. The 
Authority may purchase such additional insurance as the Board deems prudent. The Authority's 
employees acting within the scope of their employment shall be indemnified pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-10-
110. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

SOURCES OF REVENUE 
  

Section 4.1. Sources of Revenue. The expected sources of revenue for the Authority may include, 
but are not limited to the following: 

(i) Federal, state, local and private grants or donations; 

(ii) Property management fees; 

(iii) Rents or other lease income; 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

(iv) Interest on interest bearing accounts’ 

(v) Proprietary revenue of the Parties in accordance with the Agreement; 

(vi) Sales and/or use taxes levied in accordance with this Agreement and other applicable 
law; 

(vii) Ad valorem taxes levied in accordance with this Agreement and other applicable law; 

(viii) Revenue or general obligation bonds issued in accordance with applicable law; and 

(ix) Development Impact Fees of not more than two dollars ($2.00) per square foot. 

 
Section 4.2. Prerequisites for All Tax Levies. The Authority shall not establish or increase any tax 

unless first submitted to a vote of the registered electors of the Authority in which the tax is proposed to 
be collected. Moreover, prior to levying any tax within the boundaries of the Authority, the Board of 
Directors shall: 

(i) Adopt a resolution determining that the levying of such taxes or fees will fairly distribute 
the costs of the Authority's activities among the persons and businesses benefited thereby and will not 
impose an undue burden on any particular group of persons or businesses; and 

 

(ii) Obtain the prior written consent of the governing party or parties having jurisdiction over 
the property on which the taxes or fees are proposed to be levied or imposed. 

 

Section 4.3. Sales and Use Tax. Any sales or use tax imposed or levied by the Authority on any 
transactions within the boundaries of the Authority shall not exceed the rate of one percent. A super 
majority vote (75%) of the entire board Board is required to advance a ballot initiative for a sales or use 
tax, including consent of all four (4) appointed members from the local governments and at least one (1) 
at large member.  Prior to levying any voter approved sales or use tax, the Authority shall designate a 
financial officer who shall coordinate with the Colorado Department of Revenue regarding the collection, 
administration, and enforcement of any sales and use tax to be levied in the manner established by C.R.S. 
§ 29-1-204.5, as it may be amended from time to time, and by other applicable law. The Authority shall 
apply the proceeds of all sales or use taxes solely towards the purposes, functions, or services authorized 
by this Agreement. 
 
 Section 4.4. Ad Valorem Taxes. The Authority may levy an ad valorem tax on all properties 
within the Authority's boundaries at a rate not to exceed one (1) mill on each dollar of valuation for 
assessment of the taxable property within such boundaries. To levy an ad valorem tax, the Board shall 
certify to the Lake County Board of County Commissioners the levy of ad valorem property taxes in 
accordance with the schedule prescribed by C.R.S. § 39-5-128, as it may be amended from time to time. 
Thereafter, Lake County shall levy and collect the ad valorem taxes in the manner prescribed by law. All 
taxes levied under this Section 4.4, together with interest thereon and penalties for default in payment 
thereof, and all costs of collecting them shall constitute, until paid, a perpetual lien on and against the 
property taxed, and such lien shall be on a parity with the tax lien of other general taxes. 
 
 Section 4.5. Other Sources of Revenue. The parties shall provide, at a minimum, funding for the 
Authority beginning on September 1, 2022 throught December 31, 2023 (“Initial Funding Term”) in the 
amounts set forth in subsection (i) of this Section 4.5. for the first five (5) full calendar years, beginning 
on [Insert Date], 2022, in the total aggregate amount of [Insert Amount] and 00/100 Dollars ($[Insert 
Amount]) for each year. Funding by the parties for the Initial Funding Term shall be consistent with the 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

initial projected budget for the Authority (“Projected Budget”), which is attached to this Agreement as 
Exhibit A. The parties may agree to provide additional funding for future years after the Initial Funding 
Term. The parties acknowledge that such funding may not be adequate to completely fund the Authority 
for such years. Funding from each party shall be subject to annual availability and appropriation by the 
governing body of each jurisdiction. 
 

(i) Proportional Shares of Funding. The Parties agree that the responsibility for funding the  
obligations during the Initial Funding Term set forth in Section 4.5 herein should be shared by the Parties 
in the following amounts: 

 
Lake County  $326,000.00XXX,XXX.xx 
City of Leadville $240,000.00XXX,XXX.xx 

 
(ii) Payment Dates. The pParties shall pay their respective sums due to the Authority no later 

than January 30th of each year. In addition to the foregoing, the pParties may, from time to time, pay the 
Authority with proprietary revenues or other public funds for services rendered or facilities provided by 
the Authority, as contributions to defray the cost of any purpose set forth in this Agreement, and/or as 
advances for any purpose subject to repayment by the Authority. 

 
ARTICLE V 

AUTHORITY PROPERTY 
 
In the event of termination or dissolution of the Authority, all right, title and interest of the Authority in 
General Assets (as hereinafter defined) shall be conveyed to the jurisdictions that are parties to this 
Agreement at the time of termination, as tenants-in-common subject to any outstanding liens, mortgages, 
or other pledges of such General Assets. The interest in the General Assets of the Authority conveyed to 
each party shall be that proportion which the total dollar amount paid or contributed by such jurisdiction 
to the Authority for all purposes during the life of the Authority bears to the total dollar amount of all 
such payments and contributions made to the Authority by all such jurisdictions during the life of the 
Authority. The term "General Assets" as used herein shall include all legal and equitable interests in real 
or personal property, tangible or intangible, of the Authority. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
TERMINATION OR ADDITIONAL MEMBERS 

 
 Section 6.1. Termination of Authority. This Agreement may be terminated by the 

approval of seventy-five percent (75%) of the full Board of Directors or when less than two governmental 
parties are willing to remain as parties to this Agreement. Upon termination, each Pparty hereto shall be 
released from all further liability and obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the right of 
the Board or the Pparties to terminate this Agreement shall be abrogated if the Authority has bonds, notes 
or other obligations outstanding at the time of the proposed termination, unless: (i) provision for full 
payment of such obligations, by escrow or otherwise, has been made pursuant to the terms of such 
obligations, and (ii) nationally recognized bond counsel has delivered an opinion to the effect that such 
termination or rescission, in and of itself, will not adversely affect the tax status of interest payable on 
such escrowed obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement and the resulting dissolution of 
the Authority, the assets of the Authority shall be distributed as follows: 

 
(i) All assets acquired from contributions from the City of Leadville or Lake County shall be 

returned to the contributing party if said assets are still in existence.   

Commented [CM9]: Do we have an idea of what each 
party is going to contribute?  

Commented [CM10]: See comment below re: repetitive 
termination sections.  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

 
(ii) If assets contributed to the Authority are not in existence, the contributing party shall 

have the option of receiving the fair market value of each asset at the time of disposal by the Authority in 
either cash or assets of the Authority. 

 
(iii) All assets acquired by the Authority after the date of this Agreement from funds provided 

by the parties shall be distributed to the parties on the basis of the appraised value of said assets at the 
time of termination and in the same proportion as the respective contributions of funds by the parties for 
acquisition of each asset. 

 
(iv) The City of Leadville and Lake County may agree in writing to dispose of any assets of 

the Authority in any other acceptable manner. 

 
(v)  If the City of Leadville and Lake County cannot agree on the disposition of any assets of 

the Authority within sixty (60) days after termination, said assets shall be subject to an independent 
appraisal and shall be sold at public auction with the deed restriction intact as soon as practicable with the 
proceeds allocated to the City of Leadville and Lake County in the same proportion as the total 
contribution of funds by the respective parties for acquisition of the asset.   

 unless provision for full payment of the same has been made by escrow or otherwise. 
 
 Section 6.2. Termination of Participation. Any Pparty may terminate its participation in this 
Agreement as of the end of any calendar year by giving at least 90 days' written notice to the other parties 
Party or Parties, provided that such withdrawing party shall pay all of its obligations hereunder or 
pursuant to any effective funding agreement to through and including the effective date of the termination 
of its participation. 
 
 Section 6.3. Amendment to Provide for Additional Members. This Agreement may be amended 
to add one or more additional parties upon: (a) resolution of the Board of Directors providing for such 
amendment; and (b) approval of such amendment by the governing body of the prospective additional 
party and each then-existing party. 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 Section 7.1. Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date of the last 
party to sign. 
 
 Section 7.2. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement about its subject 
matter among the Pparties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, if any, and may be 
amended, modified or supplemented only by an instrument in writing executed by all Pparties to this 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 7.3. No Third- Party Beneficiaries. The Pparties to this Agreement do not intend to 
benefit any person not a party to this Agreement. No person or entity, other than the Pparties to this 
Agreement, shall have any right, legal or equitable, to enforce any provision of this Agreement. 
 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

 Section 7.4. Signatory Authority. Each person signing this Agreement in a representative 
capacity, expressly represents the signatory has the subject pParty's authority to so sign and that the 
subject Pparty will be bound by the signatory's execution of this Agreement. Each Pparty expressly 
represents that except as to the approval specifically required by this Agreement, such Pparty does not 
require any third party's consent to enter into this Agreement. 
 

Section 7.5. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute one original Agreement. 

 
Section 7.6. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be adjudicated to be 

invalid, illegal or unenforceable, this Agreement shall be deemed amended to delete therefrom the term or 
provision thus adjudicated to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable and the validity of the other terms and 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

 
Section 7.7 Notices. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices or other 

communications by the Authority or any party hereto, any Board member or officer shall be in writing; 
shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when actually received. 

 
Section 7.8 Termination.  The withdrawal of either Party shall terminate this IGA.  This 

Agreement may be terminated at any time by written agreement of both of the contracting governments; 
however, This Agreement may not be terminated or rescinded as long as the Authority has bonds, notes, 
or other obligations outstanding, unless (i) provision for full payment of such obligations, by escrow or 
otherwise, has been made pursuant to the terms of such obligations, and (ii) nationally recognized bond 
counsel has delivered an opinion to the effect that such termination or rescission, in and of itself, will not 
adversely affect the tax status of interest payable on such escrowed obligations.  In the event of 
termination of this Agreement and the resulting dissolution of the Authority, the assets of the Authority 
shall be distributed as follows: 

 
(a)  All assets acquired from contributions from the City of Leadville or Lake County shall be 

returned to the contributing party if said assets are still in existence.   
 
(b)  If assets contributed to the Authority are not in existence, the contributing party shall have the 

option of receiving the fair market value of each asset at the time of disposal by the Authority in either 
cash or assets of the Authority. 

 
(c)  All assets acquired by the Authority after the date of this Agreement from funds provided by 

the parties shall be distributed to the parties on the basis of the appraised value of said assets at the time of 
termination and in the same proportion as the respective contributions of funds by the parties for 
acquisition of each asset. 

 
(d)  The City of Leadville and Lake County may agree in writing to dispose of any assets of the 

Authority in any other acceptable manner. 
 
(e)  If the City of Leadville and Lake County cannot agree on the disposition of any assets of the 

Authority within sixty (60) days after termination, said assets shall be subject to an independent appraisal 
and shall be sold at public auction with the deed restriction intact as soon as practicable with the proceeds 
allocated to the City of Leadville and Lake County in the same proportion as the total contribution of 
funds by the respective parties for acquisition of the asset.   

 
Section 7.97. Interpretation. Subject only to the express limitations set forth herein, this 

Agreement shall be liberally construed (a) to permit the Authority and the parties to exercise all powers 

Commented [CM11]: Why have two notice sections? I've 
deleted this one and kept/revised the notice section below. 

Commented [CM12]: This termination section is repetitive 
of Section 6.1. I recommend that Section 6.1 be updated 
with the additional details here and that this section re: 
termination be deleted. I've made the redlines showing this 
change.  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

that may be exercised by a multijurisdictional housing authority pursuant to Colorado law; (b) permit the 
parties hereto to exercise all powers that may be exercised by them with respect to the subject matter of 
this Agreement and applicable law; and (c) to permit the Board of Directors to exercise all powers that 
may be exercised by the board of directors of a multijurisdictional housing authority pursuant to Colorado 
law and by the governing body of a separate legal entity created by contract among the parties pursuant to 
C.R.S. § 29-1-203. 
 
 Section 7.8.10 Pre-Existing Projects.  The Authority shall not be the successor to any nonprofit 
corporation, agency, or other entity heretofore organized by the contracting member governments to 
provide the same function, service or facility.  No rights, contracts, obligations, and property, both real 
and personal, of such municipality or county used for or in relation to housing shall vest in the Authority, 
including any ownership interest in any housing projects in existence at the time of the execution of this 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 7.91.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice under this 
Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed sufficient when directly presented, sent via electronic 
mail, or sent via pre-paid, first-class United States Mail, to the party at the applicable address set forth 
belowAny formal notice (including, for example, notices of meetings and ordinary operational 
documents), demand or request given under this IGA shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly 
given if deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, as described below: 
 

If to Lake County:  Board of County Commissioners 
     P.O. Box 964 
     Leadville, CO  80461 
     tbergman@co.lake.co.us 
 

With a copy to:   Lake County Attorney 
     P.O. Box 964 
     Leadville, CO  80461 

chris@rmgclaw.com 
 

If to the City of Leadville: City Administrator 
City of Leadville 
800 Harrison Avenue 
Leadville, CO 80461 
cityadmin@leadville-co.gov 

 
with a copy to:   Leadville City Attorney 

     Michow Cox & McAskin LLP 
6530 S. Yosemite St., Suite 200 
Greenwood Village, CO  80111 
christiana@mcm-legal.com 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW 
 
   

Commented [CM13]: Should this be to County Manager 
instead? 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT is executed and made effective as 
provided herein. 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
LAKE COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Kayla Marcella, Chair 
 
Date of execution: ______________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Patty Berger, Clerk and Recorder 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Chris Floyd, County Attorney 
 
  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: _______________________  
 
Title: ______________________________ 
 
Date of execution: ____________________ 

ATTEST: 
 

 

__________________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM (excluding exhibits): 
 

 

__________________________________ 
City Attorney 

LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Gregory Labbe, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 
  



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

EXHIBIT A 
PROJECTED BUDGET 

 
 
 

(see next page)  
 
 



MCF/Lake County Draft 6-20231-2022 mkyeditsDraft – City Redlines 7-27-2022 

 



TO: Board of County Commissioners, Mayor Labbe, City of Leadville 
FROM: Jackie Whelihan, Housing Director 
SUBJECT: Housing Director staff report 

DATE:  August 2, 2022 

Background: 

Michael Yerman, Senior Planner from Southern Colorado Economic Development District has been assisting 
City and County staff as the City and County collectively prepare to apply for HB21-1271 Incentives Grant of 
1.4 million dollars. This grant will have a matching component of $280,000. The grant is intended to assist our 
community with infrastructure expenses for three possible development sites, two of which are owned by the 
County and one is owned by the School District. The sites are as identified by the affordable housing site 
analysis, which was presented by SCEDD, Shape Architecture and the SE Group at a BOCC/City Council public 
meeting. These sites will then be ready to break ground in 2024, with the potential to develop 70-80 housing 
units. If awarded the DOLA Incentives Grant, we will be able to offer deed restricted properties to qualified 
buyers at 140% or lower of AMI and renters at 80% or lower of AMI. 
 

Update: 

At the July 19th, 2022, BOCC and City Council meeting, Michael Yerman presented a proposed draft budget for the 

Leadville Lake County Regional Housing Authority. The budget outlined a 2-year budget which included operating 

expenses, a development budget, and a revenue stream for the LLCRHA. The BOCC was in favor of the 

proposed 2023, 2024 budget pending City Council’s approval. City Council voted to approve the 2023 budget, 

but decided against approving the 2024 budget at this time. Please find the full budget attached along with a 

timeline for site development. 

 

At the City Council meeting, there was conversation surrounding the City and County funding to support the 

2023 LLCRHA budget. If the City and County are successful in acquiring the DOLA grant, there is a required 

matching component. If awarded the grant, the County would contribute $300,000 along with the two parcels 

that they own, and the City would contribute $100,000 to the LLCRHA. The County’s portion is higher in 

consideration of the balance of 2A funds (after the Tourism panel, housing director salary contribution and 

administrative costs to run the program) being given to the LLCRHA.  

 

During the pre-application conference on July 27th with DOLA, staff was updated on what DOLA is expecting to 

see in application. Attached to this staff report please find the scoring matrix and grant guidelines for your 

review. DOLA is anticipating 30 plus applications for this upcoming round. 

 

Next Steps: 

August 2, BOCC and City Council regular meetings, staff will request that the BOCC adopt the IGA forming the 

LLCRHA. 

August 3, at 5PM, staff and SCEDD to attend Leadville Sanitation board meeting to discuss that that the DOLA grant 

would be paying for infrastructure upgrades that the district will control. 

August 8, at 6:30PM, staff and SCEDD to attend School District Board Meeting to solicit a letter of support 

August 11, at 5:30, staff and SCEDD to attend Parkville Water board meeting to discuss that that the DOLA grant 

would be paying for infrastructure upgrades that the district will control. 

August 16, staff to present to the City and the BOCC at their regularly scheduled meeting a resolution outlining the 

City and County Support for the LLCRHA and the commitment of matching funds. 

September 1, Staff will send a letter of intent to apply for DOLA grant on behalf of the City and the County. 



DOLA Incentives Grant Timeline 

 

 

• September, 2022 – Submit letter of intent for grant 

• October, 2022 – Submit formal grant request 

• December, 2022 – Notice of funding award 

• January, 2023 – DOLA contract execution 

• February, 2023 – Release of engineering RFQ for design of infrastructure 

• April, 2023 – May, 2023 – Infrastructure design and approval from Special Districts 

• June, 2023 – Release of construction bids 

• July, 2023 – Award of construction contract and begin construction of infrastructure 

• October, 2023 – completion of infrastructure 

• November, 2023 – Begin developer RFQ process 

• December, 2023 – Release developer RFQ 

• February, 2024 – Developer Selection and contract negotiation 

• March, 2024 – May, 2024 Developer presales and lottery 

• June, 2024 – Contract execution, construction financing and first time home buyer 

qualification approvals 

• July, 2024 – Begin construction 

• January, 2025 – Closing on first property 

• December, 2025 – Closing on last property 

 

 



R
ea

di
ne

ss
 a

nd
 C

ap
ac

ity
   

   
 

(6
 p

oi
nt

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e)

Pr
oj

ec
t t

im
el

in
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 ti
m

el
in

e 
is

 d
et

ai
le

d 
an

d 
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 m
ile

st
on

es
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ph

as
e 

of
 w

or
k 

an
d 

pr
e-

w
or

k 
th

at
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. T

im
el

in
e 

is
 c

le
ar

 th
at

 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
4.

 S
ta

ff 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

 ro
le

s 
ar

e 
cl

ea
rly

 a
rt

ic
ul

at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ph
as

e 
of

 
w

or
k.

 Id
en

tif
ie

s 
m

aj
or

 ri
sk

s 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

io
n.

 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

ea
m

 a
ss

em
bl

ed
 h

as
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
si

m
ila

r g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 li

m
ita

tio
ns

.  

Le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt 

an
d/

or
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 a

re
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

al
l p

ro
je

ct
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

so
m

e 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
. 

Ju
ris

id
ic

tio
n 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
co

nf
irm

ed
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 le

ve
ra

ge
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 P

ro
je

ct
 ti

m
el

in
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 g
en

er
al

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
ph

as
e 

of
 w

or
k 

an
d 

pr
e-

w
or

k 
th

at
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. T

im
el

in
e 

is
 c

le
ar

 th
at

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

4.
  S

ta
ff 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
 ro

le
s 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
rt

ic
ul

at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ph
as

e 
of

 w
or

k.
 Id

en
tif

ie
s 

m
aj

or
 

ris
ks

 to
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

om
pl

et
io

n.
 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

ea
m

 a
ss

em
bl

ed
 h

as
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
in

 
m

an
ag

in
g 

si
m

ila
r g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
.

Le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

al
l p

ro
je

ct
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

so
m

e 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
. S

om
e 

pa
rtn

er
s 

ha
ve

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

. J
ur

is
id

ic
tio

n 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
ed

 o
th

er
 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 le
ve

ra
ge

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 ti
m

el
in

e 
is

 v
ag

ue
 

or
 in

co
m

pl
et

e.
  U

nc
le

ar
 th

at
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
4.

 S
ta

ff 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

 ro
le

s 
ar

e 
no

t c
le

ar
ly

 
ar

tic
ul

at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ph
as

e 
of

 w
or

k.
 D

oe
s 

no
t i

de
nt

ify
 m

aj
or

 
ris

ks
 to

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

io
n.

C
ap

ac
ity

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
o 

lim
ite

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

t. 

Le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
al

l p
ro

je
ct

 
pa

rtn
er

s 
or

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 N

o 
pa

rtn
er

s 
ha

ve
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

. J
ur

is
id

ic
tio

n 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

or
 

co
nf

irm
ed

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 to
 le

ve
ra

ge
 fo

r t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t. 

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 ti
m

el
in

e 
do

es
 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t e
ac

h 
ph

as
e 

of
 

w
or

k.
 N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 

30
, 2

02
4.

 S
ta

ff 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

 ro
le

s 
ar

e 
no

t c
le

ar
ly

 a
rt

ic
ul

at
ed

 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ph

as
e 

of
 w

or
k.

 D
oe

s 
no

t i
de

nt
ify

 m
aj

or
 ri

sk
s 

to
 

pr
oj

ec
t c

om
pl

et
io

n.
 

C
ap

ac
ity

 a
pp

ea
rs

 v
er

y 
lim

ite
d 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t.

N
o 

le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
pr

oj
ec

t 
pa

rtn
er

s 
or

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 N

o 
pa

rtn
er

s 
ha

ve
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

. J
ur

is
id

ic
tio

n 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

or
 

co
nf

irm
ed

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 to
 le

ve
ra

ge
 fo

r t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 s
up

po
rt

2 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 (e

.g
. e

le
ct

ed
 o

ffi
ci

al
s)

. 
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
ed

 li
nk

s/
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

fo
r a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 a

do
pt

ed
 p

la
ns

, p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 o

r o
th

er
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 A

ny
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

ge
tti

ng
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r o
r 

ad
dr

es
se

d.

1.
5 

(M
ee

ts
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 (e

.g
. e

le
ct

ed
 o

ffi
ci

al
s)

. 
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
ed

 li
nk

s/
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 a
do

pt
ed

 p
la

ns
, p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 o
r o

th
er

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 A
ny

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 g
et

tin
g 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t h
av

e 
be

en
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r o
r 

ad
dr

es
se

d.

1 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
lim

ite
d 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 c
om

m
un

ity
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 (e
.g

. e
le

ct
ed

 o
ffi

ci
al

s)
 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

. J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
lin

ks
/d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

fo
r s

om
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 a

do
pt

ed
 

pl
an

s,
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 o
r o

th
er

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 A

ny
 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 g
et

tin
g 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t h

av
e 

be
en

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r o

r a
dd

re
ss

ed
.

.5
 (D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 

ha
ve

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 c
om

m
un

ity
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
(e

.g
. e

le
ct

ed
 o

ffi
ci

al
s)

 a
nd

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

ha
s 

no
t 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
or

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
lin

ks
/d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

fo
r p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s,
 o

r o
th

er
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 A
ny

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 g

et
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r o
r a

dd
re

ss
ed

.

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 
(8

 p
oi

nt
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e)

Ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
s,

 ta
rg

et
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
in

te
nd

ed
 im

pa
ct

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
cl

ea
rly

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 th
at

 w
ill 

be
 s

er
ve

d 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t f
ills

 a
 

ga
p 

pr
op

or
tio

na
l t

o 
th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 
co

m
m

un
ity

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rre
nt

 o
r t

he
 b

es
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

da
ta

 
an

d/
or

 n
ee

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 th
at

 w
ill 

be
 s

er
ve

d 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t f
ills

 a
 g

ap
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
l t

o 
th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
, 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
ur

re
nt

 o
r t

he
 b

es
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

/o
r n

ee
ds

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t.

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 

cl
ea

rly
 id

en
tif

y 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 th
at

 w
ill 

be
 s

er
ve

d 
or

 h
ow

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t f

ills
 a

 g
ap

 p
ro

po
rti

on
al

 to
 th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rre
nt

 o
r t

he
 b

es
t 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
da

ta
 a

nd
/o

r n
ee

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 

m
in

im
al

 o
r n

o 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

be
 s

er
ve

d 
or

 h
ow

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t f

ills
 a

 g
ap

 p
ro

po
rti

on
al

 to
 th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

cu
rre

nt
 o

r t
he

 b
es

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
da

ta
 a

nd
/o

r n
ee

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.

Lo
ng

-te
rm

 im
pa

ct

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 e
ns

ur
es

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 w

ith
 a

 u
se

 c
ov

en
an

t, 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t, 

or
 

ot
he

r d
ee

d 
re

st
ric

tio
n,

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
.

If 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

m
ix

ed
-in

co
m

e,
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ilit

y 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 w
ill 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 u

ni
ts

.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 P

ro
je

ct
 e

ns
ur

es
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 w
ith

 a
 u

se
 c

ov
en

an
t, 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
or

 o
th

er
 

de
ed

 re
st

ric
tio

n,
 b

ut
 it

 is
 u

nc
le

ar
 h

ow
 it

 w
ill 

be
 s

us
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

/o
r 

m
on

ito
re

d.

If 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

m
ix

ed
-in

co
m

e,
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ilit

y 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 w
ill 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 u

ni
ts

.

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 L
on

g-
te

rm
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ilit

y 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

bu
t u

nc
le

ar
 o

r u
nc

er
ta

in
 if

 it
 w

ill
 

w
or

k.

If 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

m
ix

ed
-in

co
m

e,
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ilit

y 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 w
ill 

on
ly

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
un

its
.

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 N
o 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 a
nd

/o
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

.

Su
st

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
Eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

Su
pp

or
t (

4 
po

in
ts

 a
va

ila
bl

e)

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 (o
r 

pl
an

s 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

in
) a

 ro
bu

st
 c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s.

  (
e.

g.
 m

ul
tip

le
 w

ay
s 

fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e,
 a

 
cl

ea
r p

la
n 

fo
r i

nv
ol

vi
ng

 m
ar

gi
na

liz
ed

 a
nd

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
, p

ro
po

se
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 n

av
ig

at
or

s)
. 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

ha
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
ve

r t
he

 c
ou

rs
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

ha
s 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 (o

r p
la

ns
 to

 
en

ga
ge

 in
) a

 g
en

er
al

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 (e
.g

. 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ee

tin
gs

, s
om

e 
ef

fo
rts

 to
 m

ar
ke

t t
o 

m
ar

gi
na

liz
ed

 a
nd

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

). 
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 h

ow
 th

ey
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ve
r t

he
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 
(o

r p
la

ns
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

in
) a

 li
m

ite
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
th

at
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
ou

tr
ea

ch
 to

 
m

ar
gi

na
liz

ed
 a

nd
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

. J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
br

ie
fly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 h

ow
 th

ey
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ve
r t

he
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
no

t 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 (o
r d

oe
s 

no
t p

la
n 

to
 e

ng
ag

e 
in

) a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
de

nt
ify

 h
ow

 th
ey

 
w

ill
 re

ac
h 

ou
t t

o 
m

ar
gi

na
liz

ed
 a

nd
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

.. 
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
no

t d
es

cr
ib

ed
 h

ow
 th

ey
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ve
r t

he
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.



C
om

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its
 (4

 
po

in
ts

 a
va

ila
bl

e)

C
om

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
cl

ea
rly

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 th

at
 w

ill 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
or

 s
up

po
rte

d 
du

rin
g 

an
d 

af
te

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. 

It 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
en

ef
its

 p
ro

vi
de

d/
su

pp
or

te
d 

ar
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

nd
 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly

 m
ar

gi
na

liz
ed

/u
nd

er
se

rv
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

re
ci

pi
en

ts
.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

de
sc

rib
es

 a
 fe

w
 b

en
ef

its
 

th
at

 w
ill 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

or
 s

up
po

rte
d 

du
rin

g 
an

d 
af

te
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.

It 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
en

ef
its

 p
ro

vi
de

d/
su

pp
or

te
d 

ar
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t b
ut

 u
nc

le
ar

 th
at

 ta
rg

et
ed

 a
nd

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 m

ar
gi

na
liz

ed
/u

nd
er

se
rv

ed
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
 w

ill 
be

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
re

ci
pi

en
ts

.

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
de

sc
rib

es
 

lim
ite

d 
be

ne
fit

s 
th

at
 w

ill 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
or

 s
up

po
rte

d 
du

rin
g 

an
d 

af
te

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

It 
is

 u
nc

le
ar

 th
at

 c
om

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its
 p

ro
vi

de
d/

su
pp

or
te

d 
ar

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

th
at

 ta
rg

et
ed

 a
nd

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 m

ar
gi

na
liz

ed
/u

nd
er

se
rv

ed
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
 w

ill 
be

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
re

ci
pi

en
ts

.

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
de

sc
rib

es
 

no
 b

en
ef

its
 th

at
 w

ill 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
or

 s
up

po
rte

d 
du

rin
g 

an
d 

af
te

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t (

8 
po

in
ts

 a
va

ila
bl

e) Pr
oj

ec
t l

oc
at

io
n

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 p
re

-
ex

is
tin

g 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
 o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t a
nd

 n
o 

ne
w

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
oj

ec
t (

as
id

e 
fro

m
 im

pa
ct

 fe
es

).

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 la
nd

 u
se

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t (

e.
g.

, a
da

pt
iv

e 
re

us
e,

 c
om

pa
ct

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

si
gn

, 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 w
al

ka
bl

e 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s)

.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 P

ro
je

ct
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 o
r c

om
m

er
ci

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 n

o 
ne

w
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
oj

ec
t (

as
id

e 
fro

m
 im

pa
ct

 fe
es

).

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 la
nd

 u
se

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t (

e.
g.

, a
da

pt
iv

e 
re

us
e,

 c
om

pa
ct

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

si
gn

,  
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 w
al

ka
bl

e 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s)

.

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 p

re
-e

xi
st

in
g 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 o
r c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

di
st

ric
t a

nd
 s

om
e 

ne
w

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 la
nd

 u
se

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t (

e.
g.

, a
da

pt
iv

e 
re

us
e,

 c
om

pa
ct

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

si
gn

, 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 w
al

ka
bl

e 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s)

.

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
gr

ee
nf

ie
ld

 a
nd

 n
ew

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
pr

oj
ec

t.

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 la
nd

 u
se

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 b

ei
ng

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t (
e.

g.
, a

da
pt

iv
e 

re
us

e,
 c

om
pa

ct
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

de
si

gn
, 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 w

al
ka

bl
e 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

s)
.

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 a

m
en

iti
es

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

es

4 
(E

xc
ee

ds
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 w

ith
in

 (1
/4

 m
ile

) o
f 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 to
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 g

ro
ce

ry
 s

to
re

s,
 

et
c.

3 
(M

ee
ts

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

) -
 P

ro
je

ct
 is

 w
ith

in
 (1

/2
 m

ile
) o

f 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
op

tio
ns

 a
nd

 in
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 g
ro

ce
ry

 s
to

re
s,

 e
tc

.

2 
(M

ee
ts

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 w

ith
in

 (3
/4

 m
ile

) 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 g
ro

ce
ry

 
st

or
es

, e
tc

.

1 
(D

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
) -

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 m

or
e 

th
an

 a
 

m
ile

 fr
om

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 

gr
oc

er
y 

st
or

es
, e

tc
.

Ex
tr

a 
Po

in
ts

 (U
p 

to
 3

 p
oi

nt
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e) R
eh

ab
ilit

at
io

n/
R

ep
ur

po
se

 
va

ca
nt

/u
nd

er
ut

iliz
ed

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
or

 in
du

st
ria

l b
ui

ld
in

gs

1 
ex

tr
a 

po
in

t a
va

ila
bl

e.
 P

ro
je

ct
 re

ha
bi

lit
at

es
 a

nd
 

re
pu

rp
os

es
 a

 v
ac

an
t o

r u
nd

er
ut

iliz
ed

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 o
r 

in
du

st
ria

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
in

 a
 c

or
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 o
r i

nd
us

tri
al

 a
re

a 
fo

r 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

.

En
er

gy
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds

1 
ex

tr
a 

po
in

t a
va

ila
bl

e.
 A

pp
lic

an
t d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

je
ct

 
in

co
rp

or
at

es
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
be

yo
nd

 th
at

 w
hi

ch
 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

in
 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f w

ay
s:

- P
ro

je
ct

 is
 b

ui
lt 

to
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

C
od

e 
20

18
 (o

r l
at

er
)

- P
ro

je
ct

 is
 b

ui
lt 

to
 h

ig
he

r e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

th
an

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
by

 X
%

- P
ro

je
ct

 in
co

rp
or

at
es

 o
ns

ite
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

pr
od

uc
tio

n
- P

ro
je

ct
 is

 b
ui

lt 
to

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 o
r h

as
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

LE
ED

, E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

G
re

en
 C

om
m

un
tie

s,
 Z

er
o 

En
er

gy
 R

ea
dy

 
H

om
es

 (Z
ER

H
), 

N
at

io
na

l G
re

en
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(N

G
BS

), 
or

 G
re

en
 G

lo
be

s.
- P

ro
je

ct
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

po
si

tiv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 in
 

an
ot

he
r m

an
ne

r c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
s 

of
 m

ee
tin

g 
hi

gh
 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

Lo
ng

-te
rm

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ilit
y

1 
ex

tr
a 

po
in

t a
va

ila
bl

e.
 A

pp
lic

an
t d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

je
ct

 
ac

hi
ev

es
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ilit

y 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 ty

pe
. (

Pe
r p

ro
gr

am
 g

ui
de

lin
es

: l
on

ge
r t

ha
n 

30
 y

ea
rs

.)



Le
ad

vi
lle

 L
ak

e 
Co

un
ty

 R
eg

io
na

l H
ou

sin
g 

Au
th

or
ity

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

ud
ge

t 2
02

3-
20

24

Co
nt

ac
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n:

Ja
cq

ue
lin

e 
W

he
lih

an
Ho

us
in

g 
Di

re
ct

or
71

9.
48

6.
41

02
ho

us
in

g@
co

.la
ke

.c
o.

us

Ex
pe

ns
es

20
23

20
24

Pe
rs

on
el

/S
al

ar
ie

d 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s

Po
sit

io
n

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Di

re
ct

or
Sa

la
ry

75
00

0
80

00
0

Be
ne

fit
s

21
00

0
33

60
0

As
sis

ta
nt

 (f
ut

ur
e)

Sa
la

ry
40

00
0

96
00

0
15

36
00

Tr
av

el
M

ile
ag

e
10

00
10

00
Lo

dg
in

g
10

00
10

00
Pe

r D
ie

m
10

00
10

00
30

00
30

00
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/E

du
ca

tio
n

25
00

25
00

25
00

25
00

Su
pp

lie
s -

 O
ff

ic
e

O
ffi

ce
 su

pp
lie

s
10

00
10

00
Po

st
ag

e
24

00
24

00
Co

pi
er

10
00

10
00

IT
 S

et
-u

p
ph

on
e,

 la
pt

op
, t

ab
le

t, 
de

sk
 to

p 
co

m
pu

te
r, 

so
ftw

ar
e

10
00

10
00

IT
 S

up
po

rt
Su

pp
or

t
50

0
50

0
O

ffi
ce

 fu
rn

itu
re

15
00

15
00

74
00

74
00

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s

Ad
ve

rt
isi

ng
 &

 M
ar

ke
tin

g
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t

50
00

50
00

Tr
an

sla
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
fo

r c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ui
de

lin
es

, b
y-

la
w

s a
nd

 a
ny

 p
ro

gr
am

in
g 

or
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g

20
00

20
00

Du
es

, S
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

, O
&

E 
in

su
ra

nc
e

Li
ce

ns
in

g,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l o

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p,
 O

&
E 

in
su

ra
nc

e
10

00
10

00
Co

m
m

un
ity

 O
ut

re
ac

h
fo

od
, c

hi
ld

 c
ar

e 
fo

r m
ee

tin
gs

30
00

30
00

11
00

0
11

00
0

O
ff

ic
e 

Sp
ac

e 
Re

nt
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

Ex
pe

ns
es

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
To

ta
l

11
99

00
17

75
00

Co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

RF
Ps

, R
FQ

s, 
et

c.
25

00
0

25
00

0
At

to
rn

ey
20

00
0

20
00

0
Su

rv
ey

or
20

00
0

60
00

0
Ti

tle
 w

or
k

50
00

50
00

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
St

ar
t U

p 
an

d 
Gr

an
t M

at
ch

50
00

0
50

00
Tr

an
sla

tio
n

10
00

0
20

00
13

00
00

11
70

00
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t T
ea

m
 C

om
m

itt
ee

M
at

ch
in

g 
Fu

nd
s f

or
 g

ra
nt

s
35

00
00

0
Pr

oj
ec

t G
ap

 F
un

di
ng

10
00

00
0

En
tit

le
m

en
t W

or
k

50
00

0
50

00
0

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

50
00

0
50

00
55

00
00

55
00

0

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f H
ou

sin
g 

To
ta

l
68

00
00

17
20

00

To
ta

l Y
ea

lry
 B

ud
ge

t
79

99
00

34
95

00
Tw

o 
Ye

ar
 B

ud
ge

t
11

49
40

0

Re
ve

nu
e

20
23

20
24

2A
-C

ity
 H

ou
sin

g 
Di

re
ct

or
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

70
00

0
70

00
0

Co
un

ty
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

26
00

0
26

00
0

Ci
ty

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
 L

ef
to

ve
r-2

A
10

00
00

10
00

00
Ci

ty
 G

ra
nt

 M
at

ch
10

00
00

0
Co

un
ty

 G
ra

nt
 M

at
ch

30
00

00
0

DO
LA

 G
ra

nt
10

00
00

0
0

15
96

00
0

19
80

24
Tw

o 
Ye

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
ed

 R
ev

en
ue

17
94

02
4

20
25

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

e
64

46
24

mailto:housing@co.lake.co.us


AGENDA ITEM # 8.D 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

____________  
MEETING DATE: 08/02/2022 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 35, Series of 2022: A Resolution Authorizing the City of Leadville to Enter into a 
Municipal Lease-Purchase Agreement with Community First National Bank for the Lease and 
Purchase of One Type 1 Fire Apparatus for the Leadville-Lake County Fire Rescue   

PRESENTED BY: Dan Dailey, Fire Chief 

_____ORDINANCE 
__X  _RESOLUTION 
_____MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 35, Series 2022 (“Resolution 35”), which would
approve a lease-purchase agreement with Community First National Bank (“Lease-Purchase
Agreement”) for the financing of a portion of the purchase price of a Type 1 Fire Engine for the Leadville
Lake County Fire Rescue (“LLCFR”).

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

City Council previously authorized the purchase of the Type 1 Fire Engine (“Equipment”) via Resolution No. 
24, Series of 2022. Resolution 24 authorized the purchase of the Equipment and approved a purchase
agreement with Boise Mobile Equipment, the vendor.

Resolution 35 authorizes the City to enter into a the Lease-Purchase Agreement with Community First
National Bank to finance the remaining portion of the cost of the Equipment over a term of five (5) years.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

Resolution 24 authorized a total not-to-exceed amount authorized for the Equipment of Five Hundred
Eighty-Nine Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($589,000.00). Resolution 24 also authorized the City to make 
an initial down payment for the Equipment of $100,000.00.

The County contributed $342,300.00 toward the purchase of the Equipment.

Therefore, the remainder of the cost of the Equipment financed under the Lease- Purchase Agreement is

CityClerk
Highlight



$164,460.65 (principal of $146,700.00 plus interest). The Lease-Purchase Agreement establishes annual 
payment amounts of $32,892.13 annually for five years. 

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

Under TABOR, the City is not allowed to enter into agreements that involve multi-fiscal year debt (e.g. paying 
for a fire engine for a term that goes beyond the current fiscal year) without getting voter approval.
However, the City does not need to get voter approval to acquire equipment necessary for the operations
of the City where that acquisition will mean making payments in future fiscal years if the City makes such
payments pursuant to a lease agreement or lease-purchase agreement (see C.R.S. § 31-15-801). Such lease
agreements must provide that the agreement terminates if the City does not appropriate funds for the
payments required under the lease agreement (which would mean, practically speaking, that the lessor
could seize the equipment if the City doesn’t make the scheduled payments due to non-appropriation).

Under state law, long-term lease agreements for such equipment must be approved by ordinance, and City
Council previously determined that a “long-term lease,” which includes lease-purchase agreements, means
agreements with a term of more than 5 years. Lease agreements with a term of 5 years or less may be
approved by resolution of City Council pursuant to Ordinance No. 3, Series of 2021 (codified at Section
3.08.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code).

The Lease-Purchase Agreement that would be approved by Resolution 35 is for a term of 5 years and may
be authorized by resolution of City Council. It also includes the necessary non-appropriation language so
that entering into the Lease-Purchase Agreement does not violate TABOR.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that City Council adopt the resolution, approve the agreement, and authorize the
Mayor, City Attorney, and City staff to take the actions necessary for the City’s financing of the fire engine
through the Lease-Purchase Agreement.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

Council may take one of the following actions:

1. Adopt the Resolution.

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.

3. Table for further discussion and consideration.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 35, Series of 2022, A Resolution Authorizing the City of Leadville to Enter
into a Municipal Lease-Purchase Agreement with Community First National Bank for the Lease and
Purchase of One Type 1 Fire Apparatus for the Leadville-Lake County Fire Rescue.”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 35, Series of 2022

Lease-Purchase Agreement



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 35 

SERIES OF 2022 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF LEADVILLE TO ENTER INTO 
A MUNICIPAL LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH COMMUNITY FIRST 
NATIONAL BANK FOR THE LEASE AND PURCHASE OF ONE TYPE 1 FIRE 

APPARATUS FOR THE LEADVILLE-LAKE COUNTY FIRE RESCUE 

WHEREAS, the City of Leadville (“City” or “Lessee”) is authorized by state law to acquire 
equipment for municipal purposes and to enter into leases for the same, which leases may include an 
option to purchase and acquire title to the leased property; and 

WHEREAS, City Council, as the governing body of the City of Leadville, has determined that 
a true and real need exists for the acquisition of a Type 1 Fire Apparatus ("Equipment") through a 
lease-purchase agreement with Community First National Bank ("Lease- Purchase Agreement"), for 
use in the efficient and proper operation of the Leadville-Lake County Fire Rescue; and 

WHEREAS, the City has taken the necessary steps under applicable law to arrange for the 
acquisition and financing of such Equipment; and 

WHEREAS, either there are no legal bidding requirements under applicable law to arrange for 
the leasing of such property under the Lease-Purchase Agreement or the City has taken the steps 
necessary to comply with the same with respect to the Equipment to be acquired under the Lease-
Purchase Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3.08.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code allows for the City's 
procurement of vehicles and other equipment under a lease-purchase agreement with a term of five 
years or less to be authorized by resolution of the City Council and in accordance with the City's 
adopted purchasing policy in effect at the time of approval of such agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the Lease-Purchase Agreement, in 
substantially the form attached hereto, to complete the purchase of the Equipment; and 

WHEREAS, City Council further desires authorize the Mayor, City Attorney, and City Staff 
to execute such documents and take such action as may be necessary to complete the acquisition of 
and financing for the Equipment. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein by reference 
and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

Section 2. Findings and Authorizations. The City Council of the City of Leadville 
makes the following findings and representations:  



(a) City Council previously approved the purchase of the Equipment via adoption of 
Resolution No. 24, Series of 2022.  

(b) City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute a Lease-Purchase Agreement with 
Community First National Bank following review and approval of the Lease-
Purchase Agreement by the City Attorney. The Mayor, the City Attorney, and City 
Staff, as necessary and appropriate, are authorized to execute and deliver on 
behalf of the City all documents necessary to acquire the Equipment, and the 
Mayor and City Attorney are further authorized to negotiate and approve on behalf 
of the City such revisions to the Lease-Purchase Agreement and supporting 
documents as deemed necessary or desirable as long as any such revisions do not 
materially increase the obligations of the City.  

 

___________________________________________   
Signature of Party to Sign Lease-Purchase Agreement 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

(c) The complete and correct name of the Lessee is the City of Leadville, a political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado. The City is and at all times shall be a duly 
organized and existing entity under the laws of Colorado with the full power and 
authority to own its properties and to transact the business and activities in which it 
is presently engaged or presently proposes to engage. The City does not do business 
under any other assumed business names.  

(d) The City maintains its offices at 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461.  

(e) The City will perform all acts within its power which are or may be necessary to 
maintain its legal status as a duly organized and existing entity under the laws of 
Colorado, which status is the basis for the interest portion of the rental payments 
coming due under the Lease-Purchase Agreement, and to at all times remain exempt 
from federal income taxation under the laws and regulations of the United States as 
presently enacted and construed or as hereafter amended.  

(f) The acquisition of the Equipment is necessary, convenient, in the furtherance of, and 
will at all times be used in connection with, the City’s governmental and proprietary 
purposes and functions and are in the best interests of the City. No portion of the 
Equipment will be used directly or indirectly in any trade or business carried on by 
any person other than a governmental unit of the State for lawful municipal purposes.  

(g) The meetings at which the City Council considered and adopted this Resolution were 
properly noticed and conducted as open meetings in accordance with Colorado law.  

(h) There are no legal or governmental proceedings or litigation pending against the 
Lessee which might adversely affect the transactions contemplated in or the validity 
of the Lease-Purchase Agreement.    



(i) Finally, City Council authorizes the Mayor, City Attorney, and City Staff to take 
such other actions as may be necessary and that do not increase the financial 
obligations of the City to execute the Lease-Purchase Agreement and to complete 
the acquisition of the Equipment 

 

Section 3. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 
Resolution be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair 
or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Resolution, the intention being that the various sections 
and provisions are severable. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption by 
City Council. 

 

ADOPTED this 2nd day of August 2022 by a vote of    _    in favor,    _     against,  

   _     abstaining, and    _     absent. 

 

 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 

  

___________________________________  
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

___________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



























































A
ug

 2
02

2 
P

ub
lic

 M
ee

tin
gs

 P
la

nn
er

 31
1

2
3

4
5

6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27

28
29

30
31

1
2

3

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 R
eg

ul
ar

 

9a
m

 - 
C

ou
rt

6p
m

 - 
C

A
N

C
E

LL
E

D
 - 

P
&

Z 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at



S
ep

 2
02

2 
P

ub
lic

 M
ee

tin
gs

 P
la

nn
er

 28
29

30
31

1
2

3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24

25
26

27
28

29
30

1

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 R
eg

ul
ar

 

9a
m

 - 
C

ou
rt

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at



O
ct

 2
02

2 
P

ub
lic

 M
ee

tin
gs

 P
la

nn
er

 25
26

27
28

29
30

1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30
31

1
2

3
4

5

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 R
eg

ul
ar

 

9a
m

 - 
C

ou
rt

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

1p
m

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at


	08.02.2022 DRAFT Agenda
	6- 07.19.2022 DRAFT Minutes
	7A City Council Q2 Updates
	7A LMSP Q2 Update
	8A_2018 Bldg Code (second reading)
	CCF_Ord 7 Series 2022_Building and Fire Codes (second reading 8-2-22)
	Ord. 7 Series 2022_2018 Building and Fire Codes second reading clean
	Ord 7 Series 2022_2018 Building Codes (second reading redline)

	8B_LURA Parcel PUD Amendment (second reading)
	CCF_Ord 8 Series 2022_LURA Parcel PUD Amendment (second reading 8-2-22)
	I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:
	II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
	City Council passed the Ordinance on first reading at its July 19, 2022 regular meeting. Leadville’s Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on and considered the Ordinance at its July 27, 2022 meeting. The Planning Commission found that ...
	The LURA owns a parcel of land within the Phase 1 area of the Railyard Leadville development. The parcel consists of approximately 0.59 acres. It is located at 1416 Silver Vault Street and is legally described as Lot 1, Block 6, Leadville Railyard, Fi...
	The zoning and development standards of the Phase 1 area of the Railyard development are governed by the Railyard at Leadville Planned Unit Development Phase 1 (“Phase 1 PUD”). Under the current Phase 1 PUD, the LURA Parcel is zoned as a Civic/Communi...
	The Ordinance amends the Phase 1 PUD to make the Civic/Community Building Lot Type have development standards and uses similar to that of the Phase 1 PUD’s Apartment Building Lot Type and provide more flexibility for development. The changes to the Ci...
	III. FISCAL IMPACTS:
	IV. LEGAL ISSUES:
	City Council must hold a public hearing on the Ordinance before Council adopts the Ordinance on second and final reading. Tonight’s public hearing was noticed in the Herald Democrat on July 14, 2022. Notice of the public hearing was also mailed to pro...
	V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:
	Council may take one of the following actions:
	1. Adopt the Ordinance on second reading.
	2. Adopt the Ordinance on second reading with amendments.
	3. Table the Ordinance for further discussion and consideration.
	VII. PROPOSED MOTION:
	VIII. ATTACHMENTS:

	Ord 8 Series 2022_Approving Railyard Phase 1 PUD Amd 3_clean final (second reading 8-2-22)

	8C_1 Regional Housing Authority IGA
	CCF_Reso 34 Series 2022_Regional Housing Authority IGA
	I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:
	II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
	The IGA before City Council for consideration was prepared following a series of joint meetings of the Leadville City Council and the Lake County Board of County Commissioners. The approval of the attached IGA will establish the Leadville Lake County ...
	A regional housing authority is a separate public entity from the City and County that is governed by the IGA. The IGA sets out the powers and duties of the LLCRHA, the membership of its board of directors and their terms of service, and provides for ...
	Following the formation of the LLCRHA, the Leadville Housing Authority (which serves within the City’s boundaries only) will continue to exist and serve its current housing project.
	III. FISCAL IMPACTS:
	IV. LEGAL ISSUES:
	There are a number of revisions to the IGA recommended by the City Attorney, as shown in the attached redline version of the IGA. The Resolution authorizes the City Attorney, in consultation with the City Administrator, to negotiate changes to the IGA...
	V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:
	Council may take one of the following actions:
	1. Adopt the Resolution.
	2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.
	3. Table the Resolution for further discussion and consideration.
	VII. PROPOSED MOTION:
	VIII. ATTACHMENTS:

	Reso 34 Series 2022_Regional Housing Authority IGA (8-2-22 mtg)
	Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference as findings and determinations of City Council.
	Section 2. The City Council hereby: (a) approves the Intergovernmental Agreement Establishing the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing Authority (“Agreement”) in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1; (b) authorizes the City Attorney, ...
	Section 3. Severability. If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions.

	IGA Leadville-Lake RHA-clean city draft 07272022
	IGA Leadville-Lake RHA-final city redlines 07272022

	8C2 August 2 Housing staff report
	8C3- DOLA Incentives Grant Timeline
	8C4- IHOI scoring criteria matrix_2.3.22 (1)
	Master

	8C5- RHA Draft Budget sent to attorneys
	Sheet1

	8D_Type 1 Fire Truck Lease Purchase
	CCF_Reso 35 Series 2022_Fire Apparatus Lease Purchase 8-2-22 final
	Reso 35 Series 2022_Type 1 Fire Truck Lease Purchase final

	8D2 Leadville, CO - Contract 072622
	9- Public Planner



